
City of Bethel 
         P.O. Box 1388 

    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

        Phone: 907- 543-2047 

           Fax: 907-543-3781 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

  

  

    

  

   

  

 
    Regular City Council Meeting  

June 27, 2017 

                               6:30 P.M. 

    Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 

4



Agenda posted on  June 21, 2017, at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office.  

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing July 11, 2017. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
June 27, 2017 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

Rick Robb 
Mayor 

Term Expires 2017 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 

Fred Watson 
Vice-Mayor 

Term Expires 2018 
fwatson@cityofbethel.net 

Leif Albertson 
Council Member 

Term Expires 2017 
lalbertson@cityofbethel.net 

Alisha Welch 

Council Member 
Term Expires 2017 
arwelch@cityofbethel.net 

Norman Ayagalria 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 

nayagalria@cityofbethel.net 

Mark Springer 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2017 

msprigner@cityofbethel.net 

Naim Shabani 
Council Member 

Term Expires 2017 
nshabani@cityofbethel.net 

Pete Williams 
Acting City Manager 

543-2047 
pwilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Lori Strickler 
City Clerk 

543-1384 
lstrickler@cityofbethel.net 

Patty Burley 
City Attorney 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

a) *6-6-2017 Special Meeting

b) *6-8-2017 Special Meeting

c) *6-13-2017 Regular Meeting

d) *6-15-2017 Special Meeting

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-27: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 9.36, Nuisance
Abatement, Penalties And Remedies (Mayor Robb)

b) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-29: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An Easement
From Bethel Native Corporation (City Manager Williams)

c) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-30: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An Easement
From Bethel Native Corporation (City Manager Williams)

d) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-31: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An Easement
From Bethel Native Corporation (City Manager Williams)

e) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-32: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An Easement
From Bethel Native Corporation (City Manager Williams)

f) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-33: Repealing And Replacing Ordinance 16-33,

Authorizing The Acquisition Of Interest In A Utility Easement From Bethel Native
Corporation (City Manager Williams)

g) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-34: Authorizing The Disposal Of Interest In
Easements/Land For Utility Acquired Through Ordinance 16-06 From YKHC (City
Manager Williams)

h) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-35: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An Easement
From The Yukon Kuskokwim Health Corporation (City Manager Williams)

i) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-36: Ballot Proposition Increasing Tax On Sales Of

Alcoholic Beverages From 12% To 15% And Dedicating 3% Of The Revenue To
Health, Public Safety And Social Services (Council Member Albertson)

j) Public Hearing Of Budget Ordinance 16-17 (O): Amending The Fiscal Year 2017
Budget For Bethel Embankment Project (City Manager Williams)

k) Employment Contract Negotiation/Renewal City Attorney (Mayor Robb)

5

P8
P11
P14
P23

P34

P36

P43

P49

P65

P67

P69

P75

P80A

P81
P86

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:fwatson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:arwelch@cityofbethel.net
mailto:nayagalria@cityofbethel.net
mailto:msprigner@cityofbethel.net
mailto:nshabani@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pwilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


Agenda posted on  June 21, 2017, at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office.  

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing July 11, 2017. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
June 27, 2017 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

IX. NEW BUSINESS

a) *Resolution 17-13: Requesting FY 18 Payment In Lieu Of Taxes Funding From The

Department Of Commerce, Community and Economic Development-With Required 
Corrections (City Manager Williams) 

b) *Introduction Of Ordinance 17-37: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 4.04, Budget 
Adoption (Mayor Robb) 

c) *Introduction Of Budget Ordinance 16-17 P: Amending The Fiscal Year 2017 Budget 
To Purchas Tracking Devices For City Vehicles (City Manager Williams) 

d) AM 17-42 Directing Administration To Bring To Council A Plan Of Action For The
Development Of A Park In Kasayuli Subdivision (Council Member Shabani)

e) *AM 17-43: Approving The City Clerk’s Administrative Leave – Election Policy 
Working Group (Mayor Robb) 

f) AM 17-44: Directing City Manager To Negotiate And Potentially Enter Into A Contract
With Arctic IT For IT Support Services (City Manager Williams )

g) AM 17-45: Authorizing Administration To Enter Into A Memorandum Of Agreement
With Orutsararmiut Native Council For Tribal Transportation Funds (City Manager
Williams)

h) AM 17-46: Approving The City Manager To Enter Into Contract With Accupoint Inc.

For Installing Fleet Tracking Equipment For Water/Sewer Vehicles (City Manager
Williams)

i) IM 17-04: Shovel-Ready Infrastructure Project Proposals to the Office of the
Governor (City Manager Williams)

j) *Personal Leave Request City Clerk, July 30 – August 4, 2017 (Mayor Robb) 

k) * Personal Leave Request For City Attorney (Mayor Robb) 

X. MAYOR’S REPORT 

XI. MANAGER’S REPORTS

XII. CLERK’S REPORT

XIII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a) Alaska Statutes Title 44.62.310: Matters, the Immediate Knowledge of Which Would

Clearly have an Adverse Effect upon the Finances of the Public Entity - Contract
Negotiations – City Attorney’s Employment (Council Member Albertson)

b) Alaska Statutes Title 44.62.310: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would
Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity- Potential

Litigation Faulkner-Walsh Contractors (4BE-16-034-CI); AVCP-RHA (Owl Park) (Mayor
Robb)

XV. ADJOURNMENT

6

P95

P97

P99

P101

P102

P111

P114

P116

P116



 

Approval of the Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

7



1 
 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 6, 2017 

Special Meeting 
June 6, 2017 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 
A Special Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on June 6, 2017 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. ROLL CALL 
 

 
IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD   

 
No one present to be heard.  
 

V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: Approve the Agenda.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson  
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer  

Opposed:  0 

 

          City Council Meeting  
       City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Mark Springer 

Vice-Mayor Fred Watson Council Member Leif Albertson 

Members Absent: 

Council Member Naim Shabani Council Member Alisha Welch 

Council Member Norman Ayagalria   

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler 

Jim Chevigny Finance Director  

8



2 
 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 6, 2017 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Item A –Budget Ordinance 17-28: Adopting The Fiscal Year 2018 City of Bethel 
Budget. 
 

Main Motion: 

Amend line item 10-70-698 to strike $220,000. Amend 58-50 and insert $220,000 

into a line item in the capital asset fund.  
Amend the Water and Sewer revenues to transfer $220,000 to the capital assess 

fund.  
Amend the general fund in kinds and transfers new line item to insert $204,504.  

Amend 58-50 51-10100 General Fund Transfer to insert $204,504.  

Amend 10-55-690 to strike $45,000.  
Amend 10-60-69X to strike $75,000.  

Amend 10-66-, Dust control Water truck to strike $84,504.  

Moved by: Albertson 
Seconded by: Watson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer  

Opposed:  0 

 

Main Motion: 

Amend in kinds and transfers to reflect $588,375 to account for the ½% increase 

from the alcohol tax contributions to the pool budget.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Watson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer  

Opposed:  0 

 

Main Motion: 

Amend Property Maintenance 10-70 personnel Maintenance Worker to strike 

$34,896 and insert $39,710. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Watson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer  

Opposed:  0 

 
 

Main Motion: Amend the water and sewer fund summary to strike $50,000.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Watson 

Action: No action taken by the Council 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Main Motion: Adjourn 

Moved by: Springer 

9



3 
 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 6, 2017 

Seconded by: Watson 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

 Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer  

Opposed: 0 

 
Time of Adjournment 9:05p. 
 
 
         _________________________ 

Richard Robb, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

10



1 
 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 8, 2017 

Special Meeting 
June 8, 2017 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 
A Special Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on June 8, 2017 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. ROLL CALL 
 

 
IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD   

 
No one present to be heard.  
 

V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: Approve the agenda 

Moved by: Albertson 
Seconded by: Watson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer Shabani 

Opposed:  0 

 

          City Council Meeting  
       City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Mark Springer 

Vice-Mayor Fred Watson Council Member Leif Albertson 

Council Member Naim Shabani   

Members Absent: 

Council Member Norman Ayagalria  Council Member Alisha Welch 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler 

Jim Chevigny Finance Director  

11



2 
 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 8, 2017 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Item A –Budget Ordinance 17-28: Adopting The Fiscal Year 2018 City of Bethel 
Budget. 
 

Main Motion: Amend to adopt the seven day budget proposal submitted for the YK Fitness Center. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer Shabani 

Opposed:  0 

 

Main Motion: 

Amend to reflect the $45,000 out of line 10-16300 for IT, $75,000 out of line 10-

16300 for Fire, $84,504 out of line 10-16300 Streets & Roads to be funded by 01-

102000 General Checking. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-1 

In favor:     Watson   Albertson   Springer Shabani 

Opposed: Robb 

 
Main Motion: Extend the meeting to 9:20p 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer Shabani 

Opposed:  0 

 

Main Motion: 

Amend 57-50 Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance,  

Strike 579,616 in 57-50-501 and insert 670,541 

Strike 3,000 in line item 57-50-563 and insert 1,500 

Strike 2,500 in line item 57-50-600 and insert 1,500 

Strike 50,000 in line item 57-50-601 and insert 5,000 

Strike 18,105 in line item 57-50-621 and insert 18,096 

Strike 105,993 in line item 57-50-998 and insert 120,296 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: 5-0 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Main Motion: Adjourn 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Watson 

12



3 
 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 8, 2017 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

 Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer Shabani 

Opposed: 0 

 
Time of Adjournment 9:35p. 
 
 
         _________________________ 

Richard Robb, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

13



1 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

Regular Meeting 
June 13, 2017 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 
A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on June 13, 2017 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. ROLL CALL 

 

 
IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD   

 
Cezary Maczynski- Provided a summary of his process in applying for a Conditional 
use permit with the City of Bethel to open a package store in the City of Bethel.  
 
Byron Maczynski- Stated frustration with the City’s Administration with the way they 
have handled his father’s Conditional Use Permit Application for a package store.  
 

V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda.  

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Shabani 

          City Council Meeting  
       City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Norman Ayagalria 

Council Member Mark Springer Vice-Mayor Fred Watson 

Council Member Naim Shabani Council Member Leif Albertson 

Members Absent:   

Council Member Alisha Welch    

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler 

City Attorney Patty Burley  

14



2 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment: New Business Item P, AM 17-41 To follow the Special Order of Business.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Removal from 

Consent: New Business, Introduction of Ordinance 17-36.  

Moved by: Springer 

 
Removal from 

Consent: New business, Introduction of Budget ordinance 16-17-O 

Moved by: Robb 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 

 
Item A – 5-18-2017 Special City Council Meeting. 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 
Item B – 5-23-2017 Regular City Council Meeting. 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 

 
Item C – 5-25-2017 Special City Council Meeting. 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 

 
Item D- 6-1-2017 Special City Council Meeting. 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

Public Safety and Transportation Commission  
No one available to provide a report.  
 
Port Commission   
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council Meeting.  
 
Planning Commission   
Planning Director Ted Meyer-  

15



3 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

June 1, the Commission approved a conditional use permit for the hospital expansion 
project and set conditions to mitigate traffic around the hospital.  
The Commission considered a right of way vacation.  
June 8, Continuation of the Conditional Use Permit for a package store license, Kusko 
Liquor. Also considered the Remand of the Appeal of the Tundra Liquor Cache.   
 
Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health and Safety Center Committee   
Parks Committee Representative, Beverly Hoffman –  
Reviewed and discussed the City budget related to Parks and Recreation and the pool 
facility. Provided suggestion to Administration on way to move recreation forward 
while still being fiscally responsible; requested this item be discussed with the Public 
Safety and Transportation Commission.   
The 4th of July Celebration is being coordinated by City staff.  
The Committee is trying to get a balance of the dedicated pool fund, hoping council 
will make this direction.  
Monitoring of the roof at the fitness center may not be as severe as once thought and 
please to see the wind turbine at the facility back in operation.  
 
Finance Committee   
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council Meeting. 
  
Energy Committee   
Council Representative Richard Robb- 
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council meeting.  
 
Public Works Committee   
Council Representative Naim Shabani-  
A meeting was not held due to a lack of a quorum.  
 

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
Item A – Appreciation to Byron Maczynski and Nikki Hoffman for their dedication to the 
City.   

 

NEW BUSINESS  

 

Item P- AM 17-41: Authorizing Vacation Of An Unimproved Right-Of-Way 7--Foot 
Radius Temporary Turnaround Easement Located On Lot 1, Block 12 And Lots 15 And 
16, Block 11, Kasayuli Subdivision.  

 

Main Motion: Approve AM 17-41.  

Moved by: Springer 

16



4 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

Item A – Public Hearing of Ordinance 17-26: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 
Chapter 4 – Revenue And Finance, Section .04 Budget And Audit. 

     Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
     No one present to be heard. 
     Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing.  
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 17-26. 

Moved by: Watson 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Item B – Public Hearing of Budget Ordinance 17-27: Amending Bethel Municipal 
Code 9.36, Nuisance Abatement, Penalties And Remedies.  

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 
Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing.  
 

Main Motion: Adopt Budget Ordinance 17-27. 

Moved by: Watson 

Seconded by: Ayagalria  

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Main Motion: Suspend the rules to hear from Eileen Arnold, with Tundra Women’s Coalition.   

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Ayagalria 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion does not carry by a vote of 5-1 

 Ayagalria 

Opposed:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   

 
Main Motion: Postpone 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer 

17



5 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Item C – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 17-28: Establishing A City Of Bethel Budget 
For Fiscal Year 2018 Beginning July 1, 2017. 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Budget Ordinance 17-28. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 4-2 

 Albertson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed:  Robb   Watson   

 
Main Motion: Suspend the rules to hear from the Finance Director.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 
Item D – Employment Contract Negotiation/Renewal City Attorney 

 
X. NEW BUSINESS 

 
Item A- Introduction Of Ordinance 17-29: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An 
Easement From Bethel Native Corporation 

Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

Item B - Introduction Of Ordinance 17-30: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An 
Easement From Bethel Native Corporation 
Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

Item C – Introduction Of Ordinance 17-31: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An 

Easement From Bethel Native Corporation. 
Passed on the consent agenda.  
 
Item D – Introduction Of Ordinance 17-32: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An 
Easement From Bethel Native Corporation. 
Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

18



6 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

Item E – Introduction Of Ordinance 17-33: Repealing And Replacing Ordinance 16-33, 
Authorizing The Acquisition Of Interest In A Utility Easement From Bethel Native 
Corporation. 

Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

Item F – Introduction Of Ordinance 17-34: Authorizing The Disposal Of Interest In 
Easements/Land For Utility Acquired Through Ordinance 16-06 From YKHC. 

Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

Item G- Introduction Of Ordinance 17-35: Authorizing The Acquisition Of An Easement 
From The Yukon Kuskokwim Health Corporation.  

Passed on the consent agenda.  
 
Item H-Introduction Of Ordinance 17-36: Ballot Proposition Increasing Tax On Sales Of 
Alcoholic Beverages From 12% To 15% And Dedicating 3% Of The Revenue To Health, 
Public Safety And Social Services.  

 
Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 17-26. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer  

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 

Item I- Introduction Of Budget Ordinance 16-17 (O): Amending The Fiscal Year 2017 
Budget For Bethel Embankment Project. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 16-17 (o). 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson  

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Robb   Albertson  Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 

Item J -Resolution 17-11: Requesting FY 18 Payment In Lieu Of Taxes Funding From 
The Department Of Commerce, Community and Economic Development.  

Passed on the consent agenda.  
 
Item K - Resolution 17-12: A Resolution By The Bethel City Council Empowering Council 
Members To Solicit Community And/Or Regional Partners For The Transit System.  

Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

19



7 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

Item L - AM 17-37: Appointment of Eileen Arnold to the Community Action Grant 
Technical Review Board.  

Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

Item M- AM 17-38: Appointment of Jason Brown to the Finance Committee as an 
Alternate Member. 

 

Item N- AM 17-39: Direct Administration to Develop Capitol Projects and Major 
Maintenance Plan.  

 

Main Motion: Approve AM 17-39. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Robb   Albertson  Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed: 0 

 

Item O- AM 17-40: Direct Administration To Prepare And Submit Three Infrastructure 
Development Proposals To The State Of Alaska. 

 

Main Motion: Approve AM 17-40. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Shabani 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 
 Albertson  Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed:  Robb   

 

Primary 

Amendment: Strike Bethel Small Boat Harbor Stabilization Project.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Shabani 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria 

Opposed:  Robb   Albertson 

 

Item Q- Personal Leave Request City Attorney, June 29 to July 11. 

 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT 
XII. MANAGER’S REPORT 
XIII. CLERK’S REPORT 
XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

20



8 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

Mayor Richard Robb –  
Thankful for the opportunity to do some subsistence fishing; hoped there is 
commercial fishing this summer as well.  
Follow all of the boating safety rules.  
 
Vice-Mayor Fred Watson –  
Thanked Nikki Hoffman and Byron Maczynski for their service.  
Thankful to have a fresh king salmon on the table for dinner tonight.  
 
Council Member Leif Albertson – 
Provided condolences to Blanch Jacobs’ family for their loss.  
Congratulated Nate Peters on his appointment to a Superior Court Judge.  
 
Council Member Mark Springer –  
Expressed condolences to Blanch Jacobs’ family for their loss.  
 
Council Member Naim Shabani –  
No comment.  
 
Council Member Norman Ayagalria –  
No comment.  
 

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Item A– Alaska Statutes Title 44.62.310, Matters, the Immediate Knowledge of Which 
Would Clearly have an Adverse Effect upon the Finances of the Public Entity - Contract 
Negotiations – City Attorney’s Employment. 

 

Item B– Alaska Statutes 44.62.310: Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and 
character of any person, provided the person may request a public discussion-Quarterly 
Evaluation of City Manager. 

 

Item C- Alaska Statutes Title 44.62.310: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which 
Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity- 
Potential Litigation Faulkner-Walsh Contractors (4BE-16-034-CI); AVCP-RHA (Owl Park); 
Appeal of Endangering Welfare Cases. 

Main Motion: 

 

Move into Executive Session to discuss Alaska Statutes Title 44.62.310, Matters, the 

Immediate Knowledge of Which Would Clearly have an Adverse Effect upon the 
Finances of the Public Entity - Contract Negotiations – City Attorney’s Employment. 

 

Alaska Statutes 44.62.310: Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and 

character of any person, provided the person may request a public discussion-

21



9 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 13, 2017 

Quarterly Evaluation of City Manager. 

 

Alaska Statutes Title 44.62.310: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would 

Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity- Potential 
Litigation Faulkner-Walsh Contractors (4BE-16-034-CI); AVCP-RHA (Owl Park); Appeal 
of Endangering Welfare Cases. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria   

Opposed: 0 

 
XVI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Main Motion: Adjournment. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Ayagalria  

Action: 

In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
 Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Shabani   Ayagalria  

Opposed: 0 

 
Council adjourned at 10:48 p.m.  
 
 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk   

22



Board of Adjustment June 20, 2017   pg. 1 

BETHEL BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MINUTES 
 

The Bethel Board of Adjustment met on Tuesday, June 20, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council 

Chamber, of City Hall, 300 State Highway, Bethel, Alaska with the following present:  

 

Board 
Richard Robb, Chairman  
Leif Albertson 
Alisha Welch 
Mark Springer (arrived at 6:49p) 
Naim Shabani 
 

Staff 
Michael Gatti, Attorney to the Board 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

Chairman Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

Appeal 17-01, Tundra Liquor Cache summarized the remand from the Board of Adjustment Meeting 

held May 4, 2017:  

Decision of the board of adjustment to remand of appeal of Steve Chung to the planning commission.  

The board of adjustment maintains jurisdiction of the appeal and remands the decision to the Planning 

Commission with the following directions:  

1. Prepare a complete record of decision.  

2. Assure conflicts of interest are declared and ruled on the record.  

3. Consider mitigation measures collaboratively between the applicant and interested parties.  

4. Prepare a resolution with findings and conclusions as described in BMC 18.60.050 (e) based upon 

the existing record on appeal.  

5. Consider the recommendations of the planner in the resolution setting for the findings and 

conclusions.  

The Planning Commission decision on remand of the Conditional Use Permit shall be decided by June 2, 

2017.  
 
If the Planning Commission reverses its decision, that decision may be subject to appeal.   

 

Motion made by Albertson and seconded by Welch, to supplement the record with the Planning 

Commission Resolution and the transcript from the Planning Commissions June 8, Meeting.  

Both parties, Planning Commission, represented by City Attorney Patty Burley, and Tundra Cache, 

represented by owner Steve Chung, were asked if there were objections to the supplementation of 

the record. Planning Commission had no objections, Steve Chung stated an objection.    

Motion carries 5-0 

 

A motion to move into a closed deliberative session was made by Springer and seconded by Welch.  

23



Board of Adjustment June 20, 2017   pg. 2 

Motion carries 5-0 

 

The Board of Adjustment went back on the record at 10:09 p.m. 

Motion to uphold the appeal by Mr. Chung was made by Robb and was seconded by Albertson. 

Motion does not carry by a vote of 3-2, Springer and Shabani opposed.  

 

Motion to adjourn was made by Springer and seconded by Welch.  

Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

 

Board of Adjustment adjourned at 10:16p. 

 

 

Attest:  

 

________________________________   ________________________________ 

Lori Strickler, City Clerk      Richard Robb, Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

24



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



26



27



28



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 1 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 7, 2017 

City of Bethel, Alaska  

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 
June 7, 2017 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

A regular meeting of the Public Safety and Transportation Commission was held on June 7, 2017 

in the Bethel City Hall Council Chambers. 

  

This meeting was called to order at 6:33 pm. 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Present:   Joan Dewey Chair 

   Eileen Hendrikson Vice Chair 

   Julene Webber  

   Mary Weiss 

   Jared Karr 

     

 

Absent:  Norman Ayagalria Council Representative 

   Naim Shabani 

   Daniel Maczynski 

   Mary Nanuwak 

 

 

Ex-Officio Present: 

   Andre  Achee Chief of Police 

   William Howell III Fire Chief 

   Christina Him Recorder and Transportation Inspector Designee 

 

Other Present:  Eileen Arnold TWC 

   Jesslyn McGowan 

  

 

III.  PEOPLE TO BE HEARD 

 

No one to be heard. 

 

 

IV.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Karr Motion to approve the agenda. 

SECONDED: Eileen 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor 

29



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 2 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 7, 2017 

 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOVED: Webber Motion to approve the minutes from the regular 

meeting of  SECONDED: Weiss 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor 

 

 

VI.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Update on Traffic Impact Analysis 

 

Ted Meyer not present. 

 

B. GEMT Program Resolution 

 

Discussed, no action taken. 

 

VII. NEW BUSINESS  

 

A. Vacancies  (Vice Chair, Henrikson) 

 

Excused vs. Unexcused 

 Excused: Medical, Work, Family Emergency, Vacation (notice ahead of time) 

 Unexcused: No show, no call 

Discussed to begin enforcing unexcused info and mentioned could also appear 

telephonically or make a disclaimer if not able to make it in person. 

 

B. “Alternate Road” Discussion  (City Manager, Pete Williams) 

 

Discussed, no action taken.  

 

C. Alcohol Impact  (Eileen Arnold, TWC)   

 

Discussed the increase in cases and the turnovers in employees is alarming. They only 

have been reporting to crisis cases. She discussed wanting to be more proactive and not 

reactive. Eileen would also like to see PSA’s relating to responsible drinking, how to 

avoid binge drinking type messages. Looking to do more coordinated community efforts 

with different partnerships to be more effective.  

 

 

D. DOT issues with new YKHC building (Mary Weiss) 

 

See report in commission packet. 

 

 

 

 

30



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 3 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  June 7, 2017 

VIII. CHIEF’s COMMENTS  

 

Chief Achee – see report in commission packet 

 

Fire Chief Howell – see report in commission packet 

 

 

IX. TRANSPORTATION INSPECTOR’S REPORT  

 

See report in commission packet. 

 

X. COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE’s COMMENTS 

 

Absent. 

 

XI. COMMISSION MEMBER’s COMMENTS  

 

Joan Dewey – We are moving in right direction with addressing the many public 

safety issues in Bethel. She is sorry to hear that Naim couldn’t make it and he asked 

her if he can still be on this commission even though he was assigned the public 

works committee.  

 

Eileen Henrikson – no comment. 

 

Julene Webber – no comment. 

 

Mary Weiss – no comment. 

 

Jared Karr – no comment. 

 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOVED: Webber Motion to adjourn. 

SECONDED: Karr 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:25 pm. 

 

 

APPROVED THIS _______  DAY OF_______________________, 2017.    

   

     

 

    

_________________________    ________________________ 

Jesslyn McGowan, Recorder     Joan Dewey, Chair 

31



32



 

Unfinished Business  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



Introduced by: Mayor Robb 
 Introduction Date May 23, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 13, 2017 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-27 

  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #17-27 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING BETHEL MUNICIPAL CODE  
CHAPTER 9.36 PUBLIC NUISANCE ABATEMENT, PENALTIES AND REMEDIES 

 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This is a Codified Ordinance and shall become part of the 
Bethel Municipal Code.   
 
SECTION 2. Amendments. Bethel Municipal Code Chapter 9.36 Public Nuisance 
Abatement is amended as follows (old language is stricken, new language is 
underlined):  
 
9.36.010 Purpose 
Various laws are directed towards the conduct of persons on private property, and are 
intended to ensure that neither the conduct of such persons, nor the physical condition 
of such properties, constitutes a nuisance to other residents in the vicinity of the 
properties or passers-by on the public rights-of-way. These laws are generally enforced 
against the persons immediately responsible for the violations. Notwithstanding these 
enforcement efforts, recurring violations of such laws on private property where 
individuals immediately responsible for such violations congregate can result in the 
creation of public nuisances which seriously threaten the peace and safety of 
neighboring residents and undermine the quality of life of the residents of the city. The 
purposes of this chapter are to enact a local public nuisance law in order to: make 
property owners where such individuals congregate vigilant in preventing public 
nuisances on their property; make such property owners responsible for the use of their 
property by tenants, guests, occupants and others on their property; provide locally 
enforceable remedies for violations of local public nuisance laws; and otherwise to deter 
public nuisances. 
 
This Ordinance is not intended to be a tool for landlord’s and property owners to 
discriminate against persons or to impeded the reporting of crimes, especially those 
involving domestic violence, and/or the reporting of injuries or illnesses.  The City of 
Bethel does not endorse or support any form of discrimination for any reason 
whatsoever.  Individuals who are the victims of discrimination are urged to report such 
discrimination to the proper State authorities.   
 
9.36.035 Enforcement & Exceptions 
 
The City recognizes that public nuisance laws can have an unintended consequence of 
preventing victims of domestic violence from reporting crime; or making people with 
significant illnesses afraid to call for help too many times for fear of eviction. 

34



 
Introduced by: Mayor Robb 

 Introduction Date May 23, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 13, 2017 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska   Ordinance 17-27   

  Page 2 of 2 

The purpose of the City of Bethel’s Public Nuisance Abatement ordinance is NOT to 
prevent the reporting of crimes, suspicious activity, illnesses or other incidences which a 
resident may experience. 
 
Enforcement of this Ordinance is vested only with the City Manager and not with 
property owner’s or landlord’s.  
 
No property owner may threaten to or may take actual action against a tenant simply 
because they are a victim of a crime; domestic violence; illness or injury.   
 

Violation Code Section Fine 

Failure to Prevent 9.36.030 $200 

Unauthorized Enforcement 9.36.035 $500 

Attempted Unauthorized 
Enforcement 

9.36.035 $500 

Threat of Action 9.36.035 $500 

 
9.36.090 Penalties and Remedies 
Violation of any provision of this Title is an infraction subject to a fine.  In accordance 

with AS 29.25.070(a), citations for the following offenses may be disposed of as 

provided in AS 12.25.195-.230, without a court appearance, upon payment of the fine 

amounts listed below plus the state surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and AS 

29.25.074.  Fines must be paid to the court.  The Rules of Minor Offense Procedure in 

the Alaska Rules of Court apply to all offenses listed below.  Citations charging these 

offenses must meet the requirements of Minor Offense Rule 3.  If a person charged 

with one of these offenses appears in court and is found guilty, the penalty imposed for 

the offense may not exceed the fine amount for that offense listed below.  If an offense 

is not listed on this fine schedule or another fine schedule, the defendant must appear 

in court to answer to the charges.  These fines may not be judicially reduced. 

SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon the adoption 
of City Council.  
 
ENACTED THIS    DAY OF JUNE 2017, BY A VOTE OF    IN FAVOR 
AND    OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 
 

35



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-29 

  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #17-29 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF AN EASEMENT FROM 
BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION (BNC) 

 
WHEREAS  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the State of Alaska (designated 

legislative grant) to provide for water and sewer improvements known as the 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project; 

 
WHEREAS  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 

sewer through described real property, including alignment of mains and 
service lines and other utilities through easements and rights-of-ways in 
perpetuity; 

 
WHEREAS the City needs to acquire various easements across the properties involved in 

the Institutional Corridor water/sewer project;  
 

WHEREAS the proposed easements are in the public interest because the easements allow 
the City the land necessary for placement of different utility lines for the I.C. 
project; 

 
WHEREAS in accordance with Section 4.08.020 of the Bethel Municipal Code, the City 

Council hereby authorizes the acquisition of an easement from Bethel Native 
Corporation (BNC), as set forth in this ordinance; 

 
WHEREAS Tract 4, BNC INDUSTRIAL PARK, according to the official plat thereof, filed 

under Plat Number 2012-3, in the records of the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska; 

 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, 
immunities and appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate 
pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 
Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States 
of America in the Patent of said land. 
 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 5 and more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W 

36



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date April 11, 2017 

Public Hearing:  
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska   Ordinance 17-29   

  Page 2 of 2 

a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

 
A portion of Tract 4, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2012-3 
in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being 
more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 

 
Beginning at the most westerly southwest corner of said Tract 4, common with 
the most easterly southeast corner of Lot 2, U.S. Survey 4000, and the Right-
of-Way of Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway, that point being the True Point of 
Beginning for this description; thence N24°33’37”W17.10 feet along the west 
line of said Tract 4, common with the east line of Lot 2, U.S. Survey 4000; 
thence departing said line along a non-tangential curve concave to the 
southwest having a radius of 781.20 feet, length of 71.64 feet, and a delta of 
05°15’17”; thence departing said curve S09°05’10”W 15.00 feet to a point on 
the south line of said Tract 4, common with the Right-of-Way of Chief Eddy 
Hoffman Highway; thence along a non-tangential curve concave to the 
southwest having a radius of 766.20 feet, a length of 62.14 feet, and a delta 
of 04°38’48”, said curve is on the south line of said Tract 4 and common with 
the Right-of-Way of Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway, to the True Point of 
Beginning of this description. Said easement embraces an area of 1,003 square 
feet, more or less, as calculated from said courses and distances. 

 
NOW, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, the City, hereby accepts and shall record the 
utility easement from the Bethel Native Corporation. 
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 
of Real Property   
 
SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  

ENACTED THIS    DAY OF JUNE 2017, BY A VOTE OF   IN FAVOR AND  
  OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

37



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 30
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 5

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

This Grant of Easement is made this ______ day of _____________, 2017, by and between BETHEL
NATIVE CORPORATION, hereinafter called Grantor, whose address is P.O. Box 719, Bethel, Alaska
99559, and the Grantee, CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, its successors
and assigns, hereinafter called “City”, whose address is P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559.

The Grantor does hereby grant an easement and right-of-way in perpetuity, with the right, privilege and
authority to the City, its successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate, replace, relocate, maintain
and repair above and below ground water lines, sewer lines, waste heat lines, collection and distribution
structures, protective structures, and fire hydrants, hereinafter collectively called “Utilities” for the
purpose of supplying water and collecting sewage through, across, over and under the following
described real property, to wit:

Tract 4, BNC INDUSTRIAL PARK, according to the official plat thereof, filed under Plat
Number 2012-3, in the records of the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District,
State of Alaska;

EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, immunities and
appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate pursuant to the Alaska
Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601,
1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States of America in the Patent of said land.

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 5 and more particularly described
as follows:

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station
BET C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W a distance of
2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of
6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet.

A portion of Tract 4, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2012-3 in the
Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being more
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:

Beginning at the most westerly southwest corner of said Tract 4, common with the most
easterly southeast corner of Lot 2, U.S. Survey 4000, and the Right-of-Way of Chief
Eddie Hoffman Highway, that point being the True Point of Beginning for this
description; thence N24°33’37”W 17.10 feet along the west line of said Tract 4, common
with the east line of Lot 2, U.S. Survey 4000; thence departing said line along a non-
tangential curve concave to the southwest having a radius of 781.20 feet, length of

38



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 30
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 5

71.64 feet, and a delta of 05°15’17”; thence departing said curve S09°05’10”W 15.00
feet to a point on the south line of said Tract 4, common with the Right-of-Way of Chief
Eddy Hoffman Highway; thence along a non-tangential curve concave to the southwest
having a radius of 766.20 feet, a length of 62.14 feet, and a delta of 04°38’48”, said
curve is on the south line of said Tract 4 and common with the Right-of-Way of Chief
Eddie Hoffman Highway, to the True Point of Beginning of this description. Said
easement embraces an area of 1,003 square feet, more or less, as calculated from said
courses and distances.

Only such rights in the land described shall be acquired as shall be necessary for the construction,
reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and repair of Utilities and
appurtenances, reserving unto the Grantor the right to use said property in any way, and for any
purpose consistent with the rights hereby acquired, provided that the City shall have the right without
prior initiation of any suit or proceeding at law, at such times as may be necessary, to enter upon said
property for the purpose herein described without incurring any legal obligation or liability therefore;
and provided that no building or buildings or other permanent structures shall be constructed or
permitted to remain within the boundary of said easement without written permission of the City, its
successors or assigns.

Grantor agrees to hold City harmless and to indemnify and defend City, its employees, agents, officials,
and any other representatives, from and against all claims, demands, suits and costs arising, in whole or
in part, from any damages or other claims resulting from Grantor’s activities on said property in or on
any structures on the easement. Grantor agrees not to interfere with any lateral support(s) in the area
covered by the easement, and will not excavate or place fill in the areas covered by the easement.

To the extent that the City is required to indemnify the Grantor, the obligation to indemnify is effective
only to the extent permitted by law. The obligation to indemnify is further conditioned on the
availability of a valid existing appropriation to cover the obligation. The parties to this Easement
recognize and agree that the City has no current appropriation available to it to indemnify under the
provisions of this Easement and that the enactment of an appropriation in the future to finance a
payment under these provisions remains in the sole discretion of the City Council and the City Council’s
failure to make the appropriation creates no further obligation or liability of the City. However, during
all times pertinent to this Easement, the City will maintain sufficient insurance coverage to protect
against any damage to or suits arising out of City’s use or entry upon Grantor’s premises.

Grantor shall not unduly withhold permission to the City for free ingress and egress to the easement
across Grantor’s property. Unless in case of an emergency, denoted by threat of loss of life or
substantial property damage, the City shall provide 72 hours advance notification to Grantor of the
intent to access City’s easement across Grantor’s property.

The grant and obligations in this Grant of Easement shall be covenants running with the land and shall
be binding on the Grantor, its successors and assigns forever.

39



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 30
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 5

Dated this day of , 2017.

BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION

By:
Anastasia Hoffman, President

By:
Donna Lindsey, Secretary

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION

STATE OF ALASKA )
) ss:

Fourth Judicial District )

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the
State of Alaska, personally appeared Anastasia Hoffman, President of Bethel Native Corporation, the
Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who
acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with
full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above
written.

[NOTARY SEAL]

Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska
My Commission Expires: ______________

40



City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 30
Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 4 of 5

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION

STATE OF ALASKA )
) ss:

Fourth Judicial District )

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the
State of Alaska, personally appeared Donna Lindsey, Secretary of Bethel Native Corporation, the
Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who
acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with
full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above
written.

[NOTARY SEAL]

Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska
My Commission Expires: ______________

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantee herein, pursuant to Ordinance 17- , hereby
accepts for public purposes the easement(s) described in this instrument and consents to the
recordation thereof:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this day of , 2017.

CITY OF BETHEL

By:
Peter A. Williams
City Manager

After Recording Return to:
City of Bethel
P.O. Box 1388
Bethel, AK 99559

41



ROW ACQUISITION TYPE:

PARCEL No.

SCALE:

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

CITY OF BETHEL

OWNER'S INITIALS:

PAGE       OF      DATED

DATE:

EXISTING PARCEL AREA:
±

S.F.

ROW ACQUISITION AREA:
±

S.F.

INSTITUTIONAL CORRIDOR PIPED

 

30

PUE

 

1"=160' MAY 2017

263,675

WATER DELIVERY SYSTEM

1,003

EXHIBIT A

5 5

42



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-30 

  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #17-30 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF AN EASEMENT FROM 
BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION (BNC) 

 
WHEREAS  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the State of Alaska (designated 

legislative grant) to provide for water and sewer improvements known as the 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project; 

 
WHEREAS  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 

sewer through described real property, including alignment of mains and 
service lines and other utilities through easements and rights-of-ways in 
perpetuity; 

 
WHEREAS the City needs to acquire various easements across the properties involved in 

the Institutional Corridor water/sewer project;  
 

WHEREAS the proposed easements are in the public interest because the easements allow 
the City the land necessary for placement of different utility lines for the I.C. 
project; 

 
WHEREAS in accordance with Section 4.08.020 of the Bethel Municipal Code, the City 

Council hereby authorizes the acquisition of an easement from Bethel Native 
Corporation (BNC), as set forth in this ordinance; 

 
WHEREAS Tract 1, BNC INDUSTRIAL PARK, according to the official plat thereof, filed 

under Plat Number 2012-3, in the records of the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska; 

 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, 
immunities and appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate 
pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 
Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States 
of America in the Patent of said land. 

 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 5 and more 
particularly described as follows: 

 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

43



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date April 11, 2017 

Public Hearing:  
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska   Ordinance 17-30   

  Page 2 of 2 

 

A portion of Tract 1, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2012-3 
in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being 
more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 

 

Commencing at the most westerly northwest corner of said Tract 1; thence 
S70°53’09” 385.12 feet along the south line of said Tract 1, common with the 
north line of Lot 3, U.S. Survey 4000, to the corner common to Lot 3 and Lot 
4A YKHC-BNC Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx, and on the southern boundary of  
said Tract 1, that point being the True Point of Beginning for this description; 
thence departing said line N28°33’42”E 314.82 feet to a point on the northern 
most property line of said Tract 1, common with the Right-of-Way of Chief 
Eddie Hoffman Highway; thence east along said Right-of-Way, along a non-
tangential curve concave to the south having a radius of 666.20 feet, length of 
31.88 feet, and a delta 02°44’31”; thence departing said curve S28°33’42”W 
320.58 feet to a point on the southern property line of said Tract 1, common 
with the north line of Lot 4A YKHC-BNC Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; thence 
along said line N70°56’36W 30.42 feet to the True Point of Beginning of this 
description. Said easement embraces an area of 9,531 square feet, more or 
less, as calculated from said courses and distances. 

 
NOW, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, the City, hereby accepts and shall record the 
utility easement from the Bethel Native Corporation. 
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 
of Real Property   
 
SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  

ENACTED THIS    DAY OF JUNE 2017, BY A VOTE OF   IN FAVOR AND  
  OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

44



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 28 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 5 

 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

This Grant of Easement is made this ______ day of _____________, 2017, by and between BETHEL NATIVE 
CORPORATION, hereinafter called Grantor, whose address is P.O. Box 719, Bethel, Alaska 99559, and the 
Grantee, CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, its successors and assigns, 
hereinafter called “City”, whose address is P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559. 
 

The Grantor does hereby grant an easement and right-of-way in perpetuity, with the right, privilege and 
authority to the City, its successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate, replace, relocate, maintain 
and repair above and below ground water lines, sewer lines, waste heat lines, collection and distribution 
structures, protective structures, and fire hydrants, hereinafter collectively called “Utilities” for the 
purpose of supplying water and collecting sewage through, across, over and under the following described 
real property, to wit: 
 

Tract 1, BNC INDUSTRIAL PARK, according to the official plat thereof, filed under Plat 
Number 2012-3, in the records of the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, 
State of Alaska; 
 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, immunities and 
appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate pursuant to the Alaska 
Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 
1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States of America in the Patent of said land. 
 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 5 and more particularly described 
as follows: 

 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station BET 
C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 
feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 
7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 

A portion of Tract 1, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2012-3 in the Bethel 
Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 

Commencing at the most westerly northwest corner of said Tract 1; thence S70°53’09” 
385.12 feet along the south line of said Tract 1, common with the north line of Lot 3, U.S. 
Survey 4000, to the corner common to Lot 3 and Lot 4A YKHC-BNC Subdivision, Plat No. 
2017-xx, and on the southern boundary of  said Tract 1, that point being the True Point of 
Beginning for this description; thence departing said line N28°33’42”E 314.82 feet to a 
point on the northern most property line of said Tract 1, common with the Right-of-Way 
of Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway; thence east along said Right-of-Way, 

45



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 28 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 5 

 

along a non-tangential curve concave to the south having a radius of 666.20 feet, length 
of 31.88 feet, and a delta 02°44’31”; thence departing said curve S28°33’42”W 320.58 
feet to a point on the southern property line of said Tract 1, common with the north line 
of Lot 4A YKHC-BNC Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; thence along said line N70°56’36W 
30.42 feet to the True Point of Beginning of this description. Said easement embraces an 
area of 9,531 square feet, more or less, as calculated from said courses and distances. 
 

Only such rights in the land described shall be acquired as shall be necessary for the construction, 
reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and repair of Utilities and 
appurtenances, reserving unto the Grantor the right to use said property in any way, and for any purpose 
consistent with the rights hereby acquired, provided that the City shall have the right without prior 
initiation of any suit or proceeding at law, at such times as may be necessary, to enter upon said property 
for the purpose herein described without incurring any legal obligation or liability therefore; and provided 
that no building or buildings or other permanent structures shall be constructed or permitted to remain 
within the boundary of said easement without written permission of the City, its successors or assigns. 
 
Grantor agrees to hold City harmless and to indemnify and defend City, its employees, agents, officials, 
and any other representatives, from and against all claims, demands, suits and costs arising, in whole or 
in part, from any damages or other claims resulting from Grantor’s activities on said property in or on any 
structures on the easement.  Grantor agrees not to interfere with any lateral support(s) in the area 
covered by the easement, and will not excavate or place fill in the areas covered by the easement. 
 
To the extent that the City is required to indemnify the Grantor, the obligation to indemnify is effective 
only to the extent permitted by law. The obligation to indemnify is further conditioned on the availability 
of a valid existing appropriation to cover the obligation. The parties to this Easement recognize and agree 
that the City has no current appropriation available to it to indemnify under the provisions of this 
Easement and that the enactment of an appropriation in the future to finance a payment under these 
provisions remains in the sole discretion of the City Council and the City Council’s failure to make the 
appropriation creates no further obligation or liability of the City.  However, during all times pertinent to 
this Easement, the City will maintain sufficient insurance coverage to protect against any damage to or 
suits arising out of City’s use or entry upon Grantor’s premises. 
 
Grantor shall not unduly withhold permission to the City for free ingress and egress to the easement 
across Grantor’s property. Unless in case of an emergency, denoted by threat of loss of life or substantial 
property damage, the City shall provide 72 hours advance notification to Grantor of the intent to access 
City’s easement across Grantor’s property. 
 
The grant and obligations in this Grant of Easement shall be covenants running with the land and shall be 
binding on the Grantor, its successors and assigns forever. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated this    day of     , 2017. 

46



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 28 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

       BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION 

 

 

       By:        
        Anastasia Hoffman, President  
 

 

       By:       
        Donna Lindsey, Secretary  

 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION 
 

STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District ) 

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Anastasia Hoffman, President of Bethel Native Corporation, the 
Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who 
acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with 
full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 
 
  

47



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 28 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 4 of 5 

 

STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District ) 

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Donna Lindsey, Secretary of Bethel Native Corporation, the Grantor, 
known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who acknowledged 
to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with full knowledge 
of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantee herein, pursuant to Ordinance 17-          , hereby 
accepts for public purposes the easement(s) described in this instrument and consents to the recordation 
thereof: 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this    day of    , 2017. 
 
 
      CITY OF BETHEL 
 
 
 
      By:         
       Peter A. Williams 
       City Manager 
 
 
 
After Recording Return to: 
City of Bethel 
P.O. Box 1388 
Bethel, AK 99559 

48



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-31 

  Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #17-31 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF AN EASEMENT FROM 
BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION (BNC) 

 
WHEREAS  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the State of Alaska (designated 

legislative grant) to provide for water and sewer improvements known as the 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project; 

 
WHEREAS  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 

sewer through described real property, including alignment of mains and 
service lines and other utilities through easements and rights-of-ways in 
perpetuity; 

 
WHEREAS the City needs to acquire various easements across the properties involved in 

the Institutional Corridor water/sewer project;  
 

WHEREAS the proposed easements are in the public interest because the easements allow 
the City the land necessary for placement of different utility lines for the I.C. 
project; 

 
WHEREAS in accordance with Section 4.08.020 of the Bethel Municipal Code, the City 

Council hereby authorizes the acquisition of an easement from Bethel Native 
Corporation (BNC), as set forth in this ordinance; 

 
WHEREAS Lot 4A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2017-xx, in the Bethel 

Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, 
 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, 
immunities and appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate 
pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 
Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States 
of America in the Patent of said land. 

 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Maps attached hereto as Pages 6 and 7 and more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

Parcel 29A 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

49



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date April 11, 2017 

Public Hearing:  
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska   Ordinance 17-31   

  Page 2 of 3 

 

A portion of Lot 4A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2017-xx, in the 
Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being more 
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 

Beginning at the most northerly northwest corner of said Lot 4A, common with 
the northeast corner of Lot 3, U.S. Survey 4000, and a point on the southern 
boundary of the northern portion of Tract 1, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, 
Plat No. 2012-3, being the True Point of Beginning for this description; Thence 
S70°56’36”E 30.54 feet along the northernmost line of said Lot 4A; thence 
departing said line S29°51’10”W 225.12 feet; thence S48°51’29”W 136.09 feet; 
thence S41°05’14”W 75.00 feet; thence S48°51’29”W 30.00 feet; thence 
N41°05’14”W 30.00 feet, along a 30’ waterline and access road easement that 
runs along the western line of said Lot 4A; to a corner on the westerly line of 
said Lot 4A, common with the easterly most corner of Lot 1A, YKHC-BNC 
Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; thence N41°05’14”W 75.00 feet along western 
boundary of said Lot 4A to a corner on west side of said Lot 4A, common with 
the northeast corner of Lot 1A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, and the southeast 
corner of Lot 3 U.S. Survey 4000, thence N48°51’29”E 161.04 feet along the 
west line of said Lot 4A, common with the east line of Lot 3, U.S. Survey 4000, 
thence N29°51’10”E 214.38 feet along the west line of said Lot 4A, common 
with the easterly most line of Lot 3, U.S. Survey 4000, to the True Point of 
Beginning of this description. Said easement embraces an area of 13,756 
square feet, more or less, as calculated from said courses and distances. 

 

Parcel 29B 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between 
NGS Station BET C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears 
S25°43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS 
Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. 
Survey Feet. 
 

A portion of Lot 4A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2017-xx, in the 
Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being 
more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 

Commencing at the most westerly southwest corner of said Lot 4A, common 
with a corner on the north line of Tract 2, BNC Industrial Subdivision, Plat 
No. 2012-3; thence S70°48’05”E 166.33 feet along the south line of said 
Lot 4A, common with the north line of Tract 2, BNC Industrial Subdivision, 
Plat No. 2012-3, to the True Point of Beginning for this description; thence 
departing said line N11°57’06”E 275.83 feet to a point on the southern line 
of a 10’ power line easement as recorded in Book 45, Page 209A; thence 
along said easement N69°59’15”W 121.20 feet; thence departing said 
easement N11°57’06”E 57.59 feet to a point on a line of the west portion 

50



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-31 

  Page 3 of 3 

of said Lot 4A, common with the south line of Lot 5A, YKHC-BNC 
Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; thence S69°59’15”E 30.30 feet along said 
line to a corner of the west portion of said Lot 4A, common with the most 
southerly southeast corner of Lot 5A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-
xx; thence S69°59’15”E 30.30 feet along a 30’ waterline and access road 
easement that runs along the west line of said Lot 4A; thence departing 
said easement S11°57’06”W 42.44 feet; thence S69°59’15”E 75.75 feet; 
thence S11°57’06”W 290.77 feet to a point on the south line of said Lot 4A, 
common with the north line of Tract 2, BNC Industrial Subdivision, Plat No. 
2012-3; thence N70°48’05”W 15.12 feet along said line to the True Point of 
Beginning of this description. Said easement embraces an area of 8,727 
square feet, more or less, as calculated from said courses and distances. 
 

 
NOW, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, the City, hereby accepts and shall record the 
utility easement from the Bethel Native Corporation. 
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 
of Real Property   
 
SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  

ENACTED THIS    DAY OF JUNE 2017, BY A VOTE OF   IN FAVOR AND  
  OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

51



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 29A & 29B 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 7 

 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

This Grant of Easement is made this ______ day of _____________, 2017, by and between BETHEL NATIVE 
CORPORATION, hereinafter called Grantor, whose address is P.O. Box 719, Bethel, Alaska 99559, and the 
Grantee, CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, its successors and assigns, 
hereinafter called “City”, whose address is P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559. 
 

The Grantor does hereby grant an easement and right-of-way in perpetuity, with the right, privilege and 
authority to the City, its successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate, replace, relocate, maintain 
and repair above and below ground water lines, sewer lines, waste heat lines, collection and distribution 
structures, protective structures, and fire hydrants, hereinafter collectively called “Utilities” for the 
purpose of supplying water and collecting sewage through, across, over and under the following described 
real property, to wit: 
 

Lot 4A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2017-xx, in the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, 
 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, immunities and 
appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate pursuant to the Alaska Native 
Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 1613(f) (1976) as 
reserved by the United States of America in the Patent of said land. 
 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Maps attached hereto as Pages 6 and 7 and more particularly 
described as follows: 
 

Parcel 29A 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station BET 
C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 
feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 
7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 

A portion of Lot 4A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2017-xx, in the Bethel 
Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 

Beginning at the most northerly northwest corner of said Lot 4A, common with the 
northeast corner of Lot 3, U.S. Survey 4000, and a point on the southern boundary of the 
northern portion of Tract 1, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, Plat No. 2012-3, being the 
True Point of Beginning for this description; Thence S70°56’36”E 30.54 feet along the 
northernmost line of said Lot 4A; thence departing said line S29°51’10”W 225.12 feet; 
thence S48°51’29”W 136.09 feet; thence S41°05’14”W 75.00 feet; thence  

52



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 29A & 29B 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 7 

 

S48°51’29”W 30.00 feet; thence N41°05’14”W 30.00 feet, along a 30’ waterline and 
access road easement that runs along the western line of said Lot 4A; to a corner on the 
westerly line of said Lot 4A, common with the easterly most corner of Lot 1A, YKHC-BNC 
Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; thence N41°05’14”W 75.00 feet along western boundary 
of said Lot 4A to a corner on west side of said Lot 4A, common with the northeast corner 
of Lot 1A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, and the southeast corner of Lot 3 U.S. Survey 4000, 
thence N48°51’29”E 161.04 feet along the west line of said Lot 4A, common with the east 
line of Lot 3, U.S. Survey 4000, thence N29°51’10”E 214.38 feet along the west line of said 
Lot 4A, common with the easterly most line of Lot 3, U.S. Survey 4000, to the True Point 
of Beginning of this description. Said easement embraces an area of 13,756 square feet, 
more or less, as calculated from said courses and distances. 
 

Parcel 29B 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station BET 
C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 
feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 
7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 

A portion of Lot 4A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2017-xx, in the Bethel 
Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 

Commencing at the most westerly southwest corner of said Lot 4A, common with a corner 
on the north line of Tract 2, BNC Industrial Subdivision, Plat No. 2012-3; thence 
S70°48’05”E 166.33 feet along the south line of said Lot 4A, common with the north line 
of Tract 2, BNC Industrial Subdivision, Plat No. 2012-3, to the True Point of Beginning for 
this description; thence departing said line N11°57’06”E 275.83 feet to a point on the 
southern line of a 10’ powerline easement as recorded in Book 45, Page 209A; thence 
along said easement N69°59’15”W 121.20 feet; thence departing said easement 
N11°57’06”E 57.59 feet to a point on a line of the west portion of said Lot 4A, common 
with the south line of Lot 5A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; thence S69°59’15”E 
30.30 feet along said line to a corner of the west portion of said Lot 4A, common with the 
most southerly southeast corner of Lot 5A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; 
thence S69°59’15”E 30.30 feet along a 30’ waterline and access road easement that runs 
along the west line of said Lot 4A; thence departing said easement S11°57’06”W 42.44 
feet; thence S69°59’15”E 75.75 feet; thence S11°57’06”W 290.77 feet to a point on the 
south line of said Lot 4A, common with the north line of Tract 2, BNC Industrial 
Subdivision, Plat No. 2012-3; thence N70°48’05”W 15.12 feet along said line to the True 
Point of Beginning of this description. Said easement embraces an area of 8,727 square 
feet, more or less, as calculated from said courses and distances. 
 

This easement is subject to an existing 10’ Power Line Easement (Book 45, Page 209A). 
 

Only such rights in the land described shall be acquired as shall be necessary for the construction, 
reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and repair of Utilities and 
appurtenances, reserving unto the Grantor the right to use said property in any way, and for any purpose 
consistent with the rights hereby acquired, provided that the City shall have the right without prior 
initiation of any suit or proceeding at law, at such times as may be necessary, to enter upon said property 

53



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 29A & 29B 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 7 

 

for the purpose herein described without incurring any legal obligation or liability therefore; and provided 
that no building or buildings or other permanent structures shall be constructed or permitted to remain 
within the boundary of said easement without written permission of the City, its successors or assigns. 
 
Grantor agrees to hold City harmless and to indemnify and defend City, its employees, agents, officials, 
and any other representatives, from and against all claims, demands, suits and costs arising, in whole or 
in part, from any damages or other claims resulting from Grantor’s activities on said property in or on any 
structures on the easement.  Grantor agrees not to interfere with any lateral support(s) in the area 
covered by the easement, and will not excavate or place fill in the areas covered by the easement. 
 
To the extent that the City is required to indemnify the Grantor, the obligation to indemnify is effective 
only to the extent permitted by law. The obligation to indemnify is further conditioned on the availability 
of a valid existing appropriation to cover the obligation. The parties to this Easement recognize and agree 
that the City has no current appropriation available to it to indemnify under the provisions of this 
Easement and that the enactment of an appropriation in the future to finance a payment under these 
provisions remains in the sole discretion of the City Council and the City Council’s failure to make the 
appropriation creates no further obligation or liability of the City.  However, during all times pertinent to 
this Easement, the City will maintain sufficient insurance coverage to protect against any damage to or 
suits arising out of City’s use or entry upon Grantor’s premises. 
 
Grantor shall not unduly withhold permission to the City for free ingress and egress to the easement 
across Grantor’s property. Unless in case of an emergency, denoted by threat of loss of life or substantial 
property damage, the City shall provide 72 hours advance notification to Grantor of the intent to access 
City’s easement across Grantor’s property. 
 
The grant and obligations in this Grant of Easement shall be covenants running with the land and shall be 
binding on the Grantor, its successors and assigns forever. 
 

 

Dated this    day of     , 2017. 

 

 

       BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION 

 

 

       By:        
        Anastasia Hoffman, President  
 

 

       By:       
        Donna Lindsey, Secretary  
 

 
 

54



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 29A & 29B 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 4 of 7 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION 
 

STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District ) 

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Anastasia Hoffman, President of Bethel Native Corporation, the 
Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who 
acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with 
full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District ) 

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Donna Lindsey, Secretary of Bethel Native Corporation, the Grantor, 
known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who acknowledged 
to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with full knowledge 
of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

55



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 29A & 29B 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 5 of 7 

 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantee herein, pursuant to Ordinance 17-          , hereby 
accepts for public purposes the easement(s) described in this instrument and consents to the recordation 
thereof: 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this    day of    , 2017. 
 
 
      CITY OF BETHEL 
 
 
 
      By:         
       Peter A. Williams 
       City Manager 
 
 
 
After Recording Return to: 
City of Bethel 
P.O. Box 1388 
Bethel, AK 99559 

56



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 31 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 5 

 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

This Grant of Easement is made this ______ day of _____________, 2017, by and between BETHEL NATIVE 
CORPORATION, hereinafter called Grantor, whose address is P.O. Box 719, Bethel, Alaska 99559, and the 
Grantee, CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, its successors and assigns, 
hereinafter called “City”, whose address is P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559. 
 

The Grantor does hereby grant an easement and right-of-way in perpetuity, with the right, privilege and 
authority to the City, its successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate, replace, relocate, maintain 
and repair above and below ground water lines, sewer lines, waste heat lines, collection and distribution 
structures, protective structures, and fire hydrants, hereinafter collectively called “Utilities” for the 
purpose of supplying water and collecting sewage through, across, over and under the following described 
real property, to wit: 
 

Tract 2, BNC INDUSTRIAL PARK, according to the official plat thereof, filed under Plat 
Number 2012-3, in the records of the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, 
State of Alaska; 
 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, immunities and 
appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate pursuant to the Alaska 
Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 
1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States of America in the Patent of said land 
 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 5 and more particularly described 
as follows: 
 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station BET 
C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 
feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 
7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 

A portion of Tract 2, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2012-3 in the Bethel 
Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 

Beginning at the most westerly northwest corner of said Tract 2, that point being the True 
Point of Beginning for this description; thence N89°57’33”E 650.23 feet along the north 
line of said Tract 2, common with the south line Tract 3, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, 
Plat No. 2012-3, to a point on the northern line of said Tract 2, common with the 
southeast corner of Tract 3, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision and southwest corner of Lot 
4A, YKHC-BNC Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; thence along said north line S70°48’05”E 
181.45 feet; thence departing said line S19°11’55”W 15.00 feet; 

57



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 31 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 5 

 

thence N70°48’05”W 178.91 feet; thence S89°57’33W 628.13 feet, thence S09°52’17” 
20.40 feet to a point on the western most line of said Tract 2; thence along said line 
N24°37’03”W 38.59 feet to the True Point of Beginning of this description. Said easement 
embraces an area of 12,513 square feet, more or less, as calculated from said courses and 
distances. 

 
Only such rights in the land described shall be acquired as shall be necessary for the construction, 
reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and repair of Utilities and 
appurtenances, reserving unto the Grantor the right to use said property in any way, and for any purpose 
consistent with the rights hereby acquired, provided that the City shall have the right without prior 
initiation of any suit or proceeding at law, at such times as may be necessary, to enter upon said property 
for the purpose herein described without incurring any legal obligation or liability therefore; and provided 
that no building or buildings or other permanent structures shall be constructed or permitted to remain 
within the boundary of said easement without written permission of the City, its successors or assigns. 
 
Grantor agrees to hold City harmless and to indemnify and defend City, its employees, agents, officials, 
and any other representatives, from and against all claims, demands, suits and costs arising, in whole or 
in part, from any damages or other claims resulting from Grantor’s activities on said property in or on any 
structures on the easement.  Grantor agrees not to interfere with any lateral support(s) in the area 
covered by the easement, and will not excavate or place fill in the areas covered by the easement. 
 
To the extent that the City is required to indemnify the Grantor, the obligation to indemnify is effective 
only to the extent permitted by law. The obligation to indemnify is further conditioned on the availability 
of a valid existing appropriation to cover the obligation. The parties to this Easement recognize and agree 
that the City has no current appropriation available to it to indemnify under the provisions of this 
Easement and that the enactment of an appropriation in the future to finance a payment under these 
provisions remains in the sole discretion of the City Council and the City Council’s failure to make the 
appropriation creates no further obligation or liability of the City.  However, during all times pertinent to 
this Easement, the City will maintain sufficient insurance coverage to protect against any damage to or 
suits arising out of City’s use or entry upon Grantor’s premises. 
 
Grantor shall not unduly withhold permission to the City for free ingress and egress to the easement 
across Grantor’s property. Unless in case of an emergency, denoted by threat of loss of life or substantial 
property damage, the City shall provide 72 hours advance notification to Grantor of the intent to access 
City’s easement across Grantor’s property. 
 
The grant and obligations in this Grant of Easement shall be covenants running with the land and shall be 
binding on the Grantor, its successors and assigns forever. 
 

  

58



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 31 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 5 

 

Dated this    day of     , 2017. 

 

 

       BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION 

 

 

       By:        
        Anastasia Hoffman, President  
 

 

       By:       
        Donna Lindsey, Secretary  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION 
 

STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District ) 

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Anastasia Hoffman, President of Bethel Native Corporation, the 
Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who 
acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with 
full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District ) 

59



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 31 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 4 of 5 

 

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Donna Lindsey, Secretary of Bethel Native Corporation, the Grantor, 
known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who acknowledged 
to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with full knowledge 
of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantee herein, pursuant to Ordinance 17-          , hereby 
accepts for public purposes the easement(s) described in this instrument and consents to the recordation 
thereof: 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this    day of    , 2017. 
 
 
      CITY OF BETHEL 
 
 
 
      By:         
       Peter A. Williams 
       City Manager 
 
 
 
After Recording Return to: 
City of Bethel 
P.O. Box 1388 
Bethel, AK 99559 

60



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 27 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 5 

 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

This Grant of Easement is made this ______ day of _____________, 2017, by and between BETHEL NATIVE 
CORPORATION, hereinafter called Grantor, whose address is P.O. Box 719, Bethel, Alaska 99559, and the 
Grantee, CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, its successors and assigns, 
hereinafter called “City”, whose address is P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559. 
 
The Grantor does hereby grant an easement and right-of-way in perpetuity, with the right, privilege and 
authority to the City, its successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate, replace, relocate, maintain 
and repair above and below ground water lines, sewer lines, waste heat lines, collection and distribution 
structures, protective structures, and fire hydrants, hereinafter collectively called “Utilities” for the 
purpose of supplying water and collecting sewage through, across, over and under the following described 
real property, to wit: 
 

That portion of Lot 4, U.S. SURVEY NO. 4117, according to the official survey in the Bethel 
Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, which lies Easterly of the 
Easterly State Right-of-Way line, as said line is described in the Right-of-Way Grant to the 
State of Alaska, recorded May 26, 1969 in Book 17 at Page 31. 
 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, immunities and 
appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate pursuant to the Alaska 
Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 
1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States of America. 

 
Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 5 and more particularly described 
as follows: 
 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station BET 
C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 
feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 
7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 4, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the easterly 15 
feet; and the southerly 15’ of said Lot 4.  Said easement embraces an area of 4,147 square 
feet, more or less. 

 
Only such rights in the land described shall be acquired as shall be necessary for the construction, 
reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and repair of Utilities and 
appurtenances, reserving unto the Grantor the right to use said property 

61



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 27 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 5 

 

in any way, and for any purpose consistent with the rights hereby acquired, provided that the City shall 
have the right without prior initiation of any suit or proceeding at law, at such times as may be necessary, 
to enter upon said property for the purpose herein described without incurring any legal obligation or 
liability therefore; and provided that no building or buildings or other permanent structures shall be 
constructed or permitted to remain within the boundary of said easement without written permission of 
the City, its successors or assigns. 
 
Grantor agrees to hold City harmless and to indemnify and defend City, its employees, agents, officials, 
and any other representatives, from and against all claims, demands, suits and costs arising, in whole or 
in part, from any damages or other claims resulting from Grantor’s activities on said property in or on any 
structures on the easement.  Grantor agrees not to interfere with any lateral support(s) in the area 
covered by the easement, and will not excavate or place fill in the areas covered by the easement. 
 
To the extent that the City is required to indemnify the Grantor, the obligation to indemnify is effective 
only to the extent permitted by law. The obligation to indemnify is further conditioned on the availability 
of a valid existing appropriation to cover the obligation. The parties to this Easement recognize and agree 
that the City has no current appropriation available to it to indemnify under the provisions of this 
Easement and that the enactment of an appropriation in the future to finance a payment under these 
provisions remains in the sole discretion of the City Council and the City Council’s failure to make the 
appropriation creates no further obligation or liability of the City.  However, during all times pertinent to 
this Easement, the City will maintain sufficient insurance coverage to protect against any damage to or 
suits arising out of City’s use or entry upon Grantor’s premises. 
 
Grantor shall not unduly withhold permission to the City for free ingress and egress to the easement 
across Grantor’s property. Unless in case of an emergency, denoted by threat of loss of life or substantial 
property damage, the City shall provide 72 hours advance notification to Grantor of the intent to access 
City’s easement across Grantor’s property. 
 
The grant and obligations in this Grant of Easement shall be covenants running with the land and shall be 
binding on the Grantor, its successors and assigns forever. 
 

 

Dated this    day of     , 2017. 

 

 

       BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION 

 

 

       By:        
        Anastasia Hoffman, President  
 

 

       By:       
        Donna Lindsey, Secretary  
 

62



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 27 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 5 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION 
 

STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District ) 

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Anastasia Hoffman, President of Bethel Native Corporation, the 
Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who 
acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with 
full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District ) 

On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Donna Lindsey, Secretary of Bethel Native Corporation, the Grantor, 
known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument and who acknowledged 
to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, with full knowledge 
of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 27 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 4 of 5 

 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantee herein, pursuant to Ordinance 17-          , hereby 
accepts for public purposes the easement(s) described in this instrument and consents to the recordation 
thereof: 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this    day of    , 2017. 
 
 
      CITY OF BETHEL 
 
 
 
      By:         
       Peter A. Williams 
       City Manager 
 
 
 
After Recording Return to: 
City of Bethel 
P.O. Box 1388 
Bethel, AK 99559 

64



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-32 

  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #17-32 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF AN EASEMENT FROM 
BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION (BNC) 

 
WHEREAS  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the State of Alaska (designated 

legislative grant) to provide for water and sewer improvements known as the 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project; 

 
WHEREAS  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 

sewer through described real property, including alignment of mains and 
service lines and other utilities through easements and rights-of-ways in 
perpetuity; 

 
WHEREAS the City needs to acquire various easements across the properties involved in 

the Institutional Corridor water/sewer project;  
 

WHEREAS the proposed easements are in the public interest because the easements allow 
the City the land necessary for placement of different utility lines for the I.C. 
project; 

 
WHEREAS in accordance with Section 4.08.020 of the Bethel Municipal Code, the City 

Council hereby authorizes the acquisition of an easement from Bethel Native 
Corporation (BNC), as set forth in this ordinance; 

 
Tract 2, BNC INDUSTRIAL PARK, according to the official plat thereof, filed 
under Plat Number 2012-3, in the records of the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska; 
 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, 
immunities and appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate 
pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 
Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States 
of America in the Patent of said land 

 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 5 and more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B. NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C. NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

65



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska   Ordinance 17-32   

  Page 2 of 2 

 

A portion of Tract 2, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, filed as Plat No. 2012-3 
in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, being 
more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 

Beginning at the most westerly northwest corner of said Tract 2, that point 
being the True Point of Beginning for this description; thence N89°57’33”E 
650.23 feet along the north line of said Tract 2, common with the south line 
Tract 3, BNC Industrial Park Subdivision, Plat No. 2012-3, to a point on the 
northern line of said Tract 2, common with the southeast corner of Tract 3, 
BNC Industrial Park Subdivision and southwest corner of Lot 4A, YKHC-BNC 
Subdivision, Plat No. 2017-xx; thence along said north line S70°48’05”E 181.45 
feet; thence departing said line S19°11’55”W 15.00 feet; thence N70°48’05”W 
178.91 feet; thence S89°57’33W 628.13 feet, thence S09°52’17” 20.40 feet to 
a point on the western most line of said Tract 2; thence along said line 
N24°37’03”W 38.59 feet to the True Point of Beginning of this description. Said 
easement embraces an area of 12,513 square feet, more or less, as calculated 
from said courses and distances. 

 

 
NOW, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, the City, hereby accepts and shall record the 
utility easement from the Bethel Native Corporation. 
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 
of Real Property   
 
SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  

ENACTED THIS    DAY OF JUNE 2017, BY A VOTE OF   IN FAVOR AND  
  OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

66



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-33 

  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #17-33 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING ORDINANCE 16-33, 
AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN A UTILITY EASEMENT 

FROM BETHEL NATIVE CORPORATION 
 

WHEREAS  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the State of Alaska (designated 
legislative grant) to provide for water and sewer improvements known as the 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project; 

 
WHEREAS  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 

sewer through described real property, including alignment of mains and 
service lines and other utilities through easements and rights-of-ways in 
perpetuity; 

 
WHEREAS the City needs to acquire various easements across the properties involved in 

the Institutional Corridor water/sewer project;  
 

WHEREAS the proposed easements are in the public interest because the easements allow 
the City the land necessary for placement of different utility lines for the I.C. 
project; 

 
WHEREAS on October 25, 2016, the City Council passed Ordinance 16-33 authorizing the 

acquisition of an easement across Lot 4, US Survey No. 4117 to be used in the 
I.C. project, this easement was never recorded; 

 
WHEREAS, since that time the I.C. route has been amended changing the route of the 

easement across the same lot;  
 
WHEREAS, the correct easement location is as follows:  
 

That portion of Lot 4, U.S. SURVEY NO. 4117, according to the official survey 
in the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska, which 
lies Easterly of the Easterly State Right-of-Way line, as said line is described in 
the Right-of-Way Grant to the State of Alaska, recorded May 26, 1969 in Book 
17 at Page 31. 
 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM the subsurface estate and all rights, privileges, 
immunities and appurtenances of whatsoever nature accruing unto said estate 
pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of December 18, 1971 (85 

67



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska   Ordinance 17-33   

  Page 2 of 2 

Stat 688, 704; 43 USC 1601, 1613(f) (1976) as reserved by the United States 
of America. 
 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as Page 5 and more 
particularly described as follows: 

 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S25°43’20.9”W 
a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has 
Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 4, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the 
easterly 15 feet; and the southerly 15’ of said Lot 4.  Said easement embraces 
an area of 4,147 square feet, more or less. 

 
 

NOW, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, the City Council, hereby repeals and replaces 
Ordinance 16-33 and accepts and shall record the utility easement from the Bethel 
Native Corporation as more properly outlined above.   
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 
of Real Property   
 
SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  

ENACTED THIS    DAY OF JUNE 2017, BY A VOTE OF   IN FAVOR AND  
  OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

68



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-34 

  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #17-34 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN 
EASEMENTS/LAND FOR UTILITY ACQUIRED THROUGH ORDINANCE 16-06 

FROM YKHC 
 

WHEREAS  in accordance with Bethel Municipal Code section 4.08.030 the City Council 
may, by ordinance, provide for the disposal of an interest in real property to a 
municipal, borough, state, federal or other appropriate entity providing a 
necessary public service without seeking bids and for less than the current 
assessed value or current appraised value of that interest in real property; 

 
WHEREAS  in accordance with Bethel Municipal Code section 4.08.020 the City Council may 

acquire any interest in real property by purchase, lease, exchange, transfer, 
donation or any other method; 

 
WHEREAS on March 22, 2016, the City of Bethel acquired four easements from the Yukon 

Kuskokwim Health Corporation (YKHC);  
 
WHEREAS in April of 2017, the City released one of the easements (#4) because it was 

no longer necessary for the institutional corridor project;  
 
WHEREAS now that the final route has been completed, two (2) additional previously 

acquired easements (# 1 and #2) are also no longer needed;  
 
WHEREAS since their acquisition, the land containing the easements has been transferred 

from YKHC to Bethel Native Corporation (BNC);  
 
WHEREAS the easements are more particularly described as follows: 
 
Easement #1 

PARCEL 12A: 
Lot 53, U.S. Survey No. 4117, according to the official Bureau of Land 
Management survey plat thereof, officially filed March 31, 2004, located in 
the Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska. 

 
The Easement to be released is more particularly described as follows:  

 
The Basis of Bearing for these descriptions is a local plane bearing between 
NGS Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 
25º43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS 

69



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska   Ordinance 17-34   

  Page 2 of 2 

Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. 
Survey Feet. 
 
Beginning at the northeast corner of said Lot 53, being the True Point of 
Beginning for this description; thence on the east line thereof S13°50’38”W 
15.45 feet; thence departing said east line N89°56’55”W 30.70 feet; thence 
N11°44’20”E 15.32 feet to the north line of said Lot 53; thence on said 
north line S89°56’55”E 34.38 feet to the True Point of Beginning. Said 
easement embraces an area of 465 square feet, more or less as calculated 
from said courses and distances. 
 

Easement #2 
PARCEL 12B: 
Beginning at the northeast corner of said Lot 53, being the True Point of 
Beginning for this description; thence on the east line thereof S13°50’38”W 
15.45 feet; thence departing said east line N89°56’55”W 30.70 feet; thence 
N11°44’20”E 15.32 feet to the north line of said Lot 53; thence on said 
north line S89°56’55”E 34.38 feet to the True Point of Beginning. Said 
easement embraces an area of 465 square feet, more or less as calculated 
from said courses and distances, calculated from said courses and 
distances. 

 
NOW, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, the City Council authorizes the disposal and 
release of the above described easement and authorizes the City Manager to complete 
the necessary paperwork to effectuate the release. 
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.030(B) Disposal 
to an Entity Providing Necessary Public Service and Bethel Municipal Code.   
 
SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  

ENACTED THIS    DAY OF JUNE 2017, BY A VOTE OF   IN FAVOR AND  
  OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

70



71



City of Bethel Release of Public Utility Easement Parcel R-12A & R-12B 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 3 

 

RELEASE OF PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

This Release of Public Utility Easement is made this ______ day of _______________, 2017, by and 
between the CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, its successors and assigns, 
hereinafter referred to as “City”, GRANTOR, whose address is P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559, and 
YUKON-KUSKOKWIM HEALTH CORPORATION, hereinafter referred to as “YKHC”, GRANTEE, whose 
address is P.O. Box 528, Bethel, Alaska 99559. 

Bethel Native Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “BNC”,  executed a Public Utility Easement on 
February 17, 2016, granting the City the Public Utility Easements known as Parcel 12A and 12B, recorded 
as Document No. 2016-000351-0, granting the City a utility easement on in perpetuity through, across, 
over and under the following described real property, to wit: 

Lot 53, U.S. Survey No. 4117, according to the official Bureau of Land Management survey 
plat thereof, officially filed March 31, 2004, located in the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska. 

The Easement to be released is more particularly described as follows:  

The Basis of Bearing for these descriptions is a local plane bearing between NGS Station 
BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W a distance of 
2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 
6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 

PARCEL 12A: 

Beginning at the northeast corner of said Lot 53, being the True Point of Beginning for this 
description; thence on the east line thereof S13°50’38”W 15.45 feet; thence departing 
said east line N89°56’55”W 30.70 feet; thence N11°44’20”E 15.32 feet to the north line 
of said Lot 53; thence on said north line S89°56’55”E 34.38 feet to the True Point of 
Beginning. Said easement embraces an area of 465 square feet, more or less as calculated 
from said courses and distances.   

PARCEL 12B: 

Beginning at the northeast corner of said Lot 53, being the True Point of Beginning for this 
description; thence on the east line thereof S13°50’38”W 15.45 feet; thence departing 
said east line N89°56’55”W 30.70 feet; thence N11°44’20”E 15.32 feet to the north line 
of said Lot 53; thence on said north line S89°56’55”E 34.38 feet to the True Point of 
Beginning. Said easement embraces an area of 465 square feet, more or less as calculated 
from said courses and distances.calculated from said courses and distances. 

Since the recording of the Easement, YKHC has acquired the property containing said Easement from BNC. 

72



City of Bethel Release of Public Utility Easement Parcel R-12A & R-12B 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 3 

The City desires to release, relinquish and terminate any and all rights that it has or may have to the Public 

Utility Easement described above as Parcel 12A and previously recorded in the Bethel Recording District, 

Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska as Document No. 2016-000351-0. 

NOW THEREFORE: 

1. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into this Release; 
2. The City does forever release, relinquish and terminate any and all rights that it has or may have 

under the Easement described as Parcel 12A and 12B which was previously granted by BNC, then 
transferred to YKHC which is referred to in this document and officially recorded at the State of 
Alaska Recorder’s Office under document number 2016-000351-0; 

3. This release shall not release, relinquish or terminate any other Easements the City may have on 
said property that are not specifically described in this document. 

 

DATED this _____ day of ____________, 2017. 
 
CITY OF BETHEL 
 
 
      
By:  Peter A. Williams 
 City Manager 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
      ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District  ) 

On this _____ day of _______________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and 
for the State of Alaska, personally appeared Peter A. Williams, City Manager, for the City of 
Bethel, a municipal corporation, the Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who 
executed the foregoing instrument and who acknowledged to me that he executed the same as 
the free and voluntary act of the City of Bethel, with full authority to do so, and with full 
knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year 
above written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
 
                                    
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 

73



City of Bethel Release of Public Utility Easement Parcel R-12A & R-12B 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 3 

 
CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantor herein, pursuant to Ordinance 17-_____, 

hereby accepts this Release of Public Utility  Easement described in this instrument, which is no 

longer required for the Institutional Corridor project, and consents to the recordation thereof: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this    day of    , 2017. 

 
 
      By:         
        Peter A. Williams, City Manager 
After Recording Return to: 
City of Bethel 
P.O. Box 1388 
Bethel, AK 99559 

74



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-35 

  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #17-35 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF AN EASEMENT FROM 
THE YUKON KUSKOKWIM HEALTH CORPORATION (YKHC) 

 
WHEREAS  the City of Bethel “City” has a grant from the State of Alaska (designated 

legislative grant) to provide for water and sewer improvements known as the 
institutional corridor piped water supply and sewer collection project; 

 
WHEREAS  the City has arranged for a multi-phase project to supply water and collect 

sewer through described real property, including alignment of mains and 
service lines and other utilities through easements and rights-of-ways in 
perpetuity; 

 
WHEREAS the City needs to acquire various easements across the properties involved in 

the Institutional Corridor water/sewer project;  
 

WHEREAS the proposed easements are in the public interest because the easements allow 
the City the land necessary for placement of different utility lines for the I.C. 
project; 

 
WHEREAS in accordance with Section 4.08.020 of the Bethel Municipal Code, the City 

Council hereby authorizes the acquisition of an easement from Bethel Native 
Corporation (BNC), as set forth in this ordinance; 

 
Lot 53, U.S. Survey No. 4117, according to the official Bureau of Land 
Management survey plat thereof, officially filed March 31, 2004, located in the 
Bethel Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska. 
 

Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as page 5 and more 
particularly described as follows: 

 
The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS 
Station BET C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 
25º43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station 
BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 53, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the 
south 15 feet of said Lot 53. Said easement embraces an area of 4,959 square 
feet, more or less. 

 

75



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
 Introduction Date June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska   Ordinance 17-35   

  Page 2 of 2 

This easement is subject to an existing Sewer and Water Easement (Plat No. 
84-20 & Book 39, Page 938). 
 

NOW, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, the City, hereby accepts and shall record the 
utility easement from the Bethel Native Corporation. 
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Authorization.  Pursuant to Bethel Municipal Code 04.08.020 Acquisition 
of Real Property   
 
SECTION 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the passage 

by the Bethel City Council.  

ENACTED THIS    DAY OF JUNE 2017, BY A VOTE OF   IN FAVOR AND  
  OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

76



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 12 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 1 of 5 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

This Grant of Easement is made this ______ day of _____________, 2017, by and between YUKON-
KUSKOKWIM HEALTH CORPORATION, hereinafter called Grantor, whose address is P.O. Box 528, Bethel, 
Alaska 99559, and the Grantee, CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, its 
successors and assigns, hereinafter called “City”, whose address is P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559. 
 
The Grantor does hereby grant this easement and rights-of-way in perpetuity, with the right, privilege and 
authority to the City, its successors and assigns, to construct, install, operate, replace, relocate, maintain 
and repair above and below ground water lines, sewer lines, waste heat lines, collection and distribution 
structures, protective structures, and fire hydrants, hereinafter collectively called “Utilities” for the 
purpose of supplying water and collecting sewage through, across, over and under the following described 
real property, to wit: 
 

Lot 53, U.S. Survey No. 4117, according to the official Bureau of Land Management survey 
plat thereof, officially filed March 31, 2004, located in the Bethel Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska. 

 
Said easement is depicted on the Parcel Map attached hereto as page 5 and more particularly described 
as follows: 
 

The Basis of Bearing for this description is a local plane bearing between NGS Station BET 
C and NGS Station BET B.  NGS Station BET B bears S 25º43’20.9”W a distance of 2672.85 
feet from NGS Station BET C.  NGS Station BET B has Bethel coordinates of 6,266.8084 N, 
7,694.8219 E. U.S. Survey Feet. 
 
A portion of Lot 53, U.S. Survey 4117 being more particularly described as the south 15 
feet of said Lot 53. Said easement embraces an area of 4,959 square feet, more or less. 
 
This easement is subject to an existing Sewer and Water Easement (Plat No. 84-20 & Book 
39, Page 938). 
 

Only such rights in the land described shall be acquired as shall be necessary for the construction, 
reconstruction, alteration, operation, replacement, relocation, maintenance and repair of Utilities and 
appurtenances, reserving unto the Grantor the right to use said property in any way, and for any purpose 
consistent with the rights hereby acquired, provided that the City shall have the right without prior 
initiation of any suit or proceeding at law, at such times as may be necessary, to enter upon said 

77



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 12 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 2 of 5 

property for the purpose herein described without incurring any legal obligation or liability therefore; and 
provided that no building or buildings or other permanent structures shall be constructed or permitted to 
remain within the boundary of said easement without written permission of Bethel, its successors or 
assigns. 
 
Grantor agrees to hold City harmless and to indemnify and defend City, its employees, agents, officials, 
and any other representatives, from and against all claims, demands, suits and costs arising, in whole or 
in part, from any damages or other claims resulting from Grantor’s activities on said property in or on any 
structures on the easement.  Grantor agrees not to interfere with the lateral support for the area covered 
by the easement, and will not excavate or place fill in the areas covered by the easement. 
 
To the extent that the City is required to indemnify the Grantor, the obligation to indemnify is effective 
only to the extent permitted by law. The obligation to indemnify is further conditioned on the availability 
of a valid existing appropriation to cover the obligation. The parties to this Easement recognize and agree 
that the City has no current appropriation available to it to indemnify under the provisions of this 
Easement and that the enactment of an appropriation in the future to finance a payment under these 
provisions remains in the sole discretion of the City Council and the City Council’s failure to make the 
appropriation creates no further obligation or liability of the City.  However, during all times pertinent to 
this Easement, the City will maintain sufficient insurance coverage to protect against any damage to or 
suits arising out of City’s use or entry upon Grantor’s premises. 
 
Grantor shall not unduly withhold permission to the City for free ingress and egress to the easement 
across Grantor’s property. Unless in case of an emergency, denoted by threat of loss of life or substantial 
property damage, the City shall provide 72 hours advance notification to Grantor of the intent to access 
City’s easement across Grantor’s property. 
 
The grant and obligations in this Grant of Easement shall be covenants running with the land and shall be 
binding on the Grantor, its successors and assigns forever. 
 
Dated this    day of     , 2017. 
 
 
      YUKON-KUSKOKWIM HEALTH CORPORATION 
 
 
      By:         
       Esai Tiwitchell, Jr., Chairman 
       YKHC Board of Directors 
 
 
      By:         
       Daniel Winkelman, President and CEO 
       Yukon-Kuskokwim Health Corporation 
 
 

78



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 12 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 3 of 5 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF GRANTOR-CORPORATION 
 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
     ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District  ) 
 
On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Esai Twitchell, Jr., Chairman of Yukon-Kuskokwim Health 
Corporation Executive Board of Directors, the Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who 
executed the foregoing instrument and who acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free 
and voluntary act of said corporation, with full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes 
therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                         
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
     ) ss: 
Fourth Judicial District  ) 
 
On this _____ day of _____________, 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of Alaska, personally appeared Daniel J. Winkelman, President and CEO of Yukon-Kuskokwim Health 
Corporation, the Grantor, known to me to be the identical person who executed the foregoing instrument 
and who acknowledged to me that they executed the same as the free and voluntary act of said 
corporation, with full knowledge of its contents, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year above 
written. 
 
[NOTARY SEAL] 
                                         
       Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska 
       My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 
 
 

79



 

City of Bethel Public Utility Easement Parcel 12 
 Institutional Corridor Piped Water Project Page 4 of 5 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the City of Bethel, Grantee herein, pursuant to Ordinance 16-34, hereby accepts 
for public purposes the easement(s) described in this instrument and consents to the recordation thereof: 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this    day of    , 2017. 
 
 
      CITY OF BETHEL 
 
 
 
      By:         
       Peter A. Williams 
       City Manager 
 
 
After Recording Return to: 

City of Bethel 
P.O. Box 1388 
Bethel, AK 99559 

80



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

Change to Bethel Embankment Stabilization Project CIP Fund

Increases-Appropiations

49-10100 Cash - Xfer in 1,125,000 

Bethel Embankment Stabilization Project - CIP Fund- 25% Match For US Army Corp

Total Increases 1,125,000 

Increases-Revenues

49-46-490 Revenue (1,125,000)

Total Decreases (1,125,000)

TOTAL Net Change to Multi Facility Improvement 0 

Change to Municipal Dock

Increases-Revenues

52-12300 Cash - xfer out (1,125,000)

Total Increases (1,125,000)

Increase-Appropriations

52-37500 Fund equity 1,125,000 

Total Decreases 1,125,000 

TOTAL Net Change to Municipal Dock 0 

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease) 1,125,000

Change to Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 1,125,000

These changes INCREASE↑ the Capital expenditures of the City by 1,125,000

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF JUNE 2017 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk

Peter Williams, City Manager

June 13, 2017

ORDINANCE #16-17 (O)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

Capital Expenditures of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for Fiscal 

Year 2017, July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

                                                                                          ____________________________________

                                                                       Richard Robb, Mayor

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2017 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2017 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

Port Multi Facility Improvment (49)

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #16-17 (o)

1 of 1

81



82



83



84



85



CITY OF BETHEL 
CITY ATTORNEY NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT 

1 

This agreement entered into this   day of April 2016, by and between the City of 

Bethel, Alaska, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "City" and Patty Burley, an 

individual, hereinafter referred to as "Employee or City Attorney" wherein the parties agree and 

understand as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, City desires to employ the services of said Employee as City Attorney of the City 

of Bethel, Alaska, as provided for by Alaska Statute Section 29.20.360; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Bethel City Council ("Council") to provide certain benefits, 

establish certain conditions of employment, and set working conditions for 

Employee; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Council to secure and retain the service of the Employee by 

and through the terms of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as City Attorney pursuant to the terms of 

this Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these recitals and the mutual covenants contained 

herein, City and Employee agree as follows: 

Section 1 Powers and Duties 

A. City hereby agrees to extend the current negotiated contract for employ Patty Burley as City 

Attorney of the City, effective May 1, 2016, to perform the functions, powers and duties 

specified in AS 29.20.370 and Bethel Municipal Code as well as performing other legally 

permissible and proper duties and functions as the Council shall from time to time assign.   

B. Employee is the Chief Legal Counsel of the City and shall faithfully perform the duties as 

prescribed in the job description and as set forth in the City’s ordinances and as may lawfully 

be assigned by the City and shall comply with all lawful governing body directives, state and 

federal law, City policies, rules and ordinances as they exist or may hereafter be amended.   

C. All duties assigned to the Employee by the governing body shall be appropriate to and 

consistent with the professional role and responsibility of the Employee.  

Requested agreement from Patty Burley 
April 14, 2017

86



  City Attorney Contract 

  2 

D. It shall also be the duty of the City Attorney to direct, assign, reassign, and evaluate all of the 

legal matters and issues that come before the City and advise the Council and City Manager 

consistent with policies and procedures, ordinances, charter, state and federal law. 

 

E. The City Attorney is expected to familiarize themselves with the terms of the Collective 

Bargaining Agreement and assist the City in ensuring that it is followed and adhered to.   

 

F. Employee warrants and agrees that Employee is licensed to practice law in this state without 

limitation. Employee must maintain Employee’s license to practice law in good standing 

throughout the term of this Agreement as a condition of employment. Should the Employee 

no longer be authorized to practice law in this state, this contract will terminate immediately 

for good cause.   

 

G. The Employee shall perform the duties of City Attorney of the City of Bethel with reasonable 

care, diligence, skill and expertise.   

 

H. The City Attorney shall attend, and will be permitted to attend, all meetings of the City 

Council, both public and closed, with the exception of those closed meetings the Council 

elects to hold without the presence of the City Attorney. 

 

Section 2 Term 
 

A. City Attorney shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and is an at-will employee of the 

City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of 

the Council to terminate the services of the Employee at any time with or without cause, 

subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 13 of this Agreement.  The City shall 

comply with the City’s insurance policy endorsement regarding any termination. 

 

B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the 

Employee to resign at any time from the position of City Attorney, subject only to those 

provisions set forth in any Relocation Agreement and any applicable sections of this 

Agreement. 

 

 

Section 3 Duration 
This Agreement is the sole and complete Agreement between the City and Employee.  This 

Agreement shall become effective when signed and executed and shall continue in full force and 

effect for a period of three (3) years with an option to renew for an additional three (3) years.  

 

City Attorney shall have the option to renew this Contract.  Discussion for renewal may be 

commenced by either party no earlier than six (6) months prior to expiration of the current 

contract. 

 

Section 4 Salary and Benefits 
A. City agrees to compensate Employee an annual base salary of One Hundred Twenty-Eight 

Thousand ($128,000) Dollars, payable in installments at the same time that the other 

87



  City Attorney Contract 

  3 

management employees of the City are paid.  Employee’s base salary shall be increased 

annually between zero (0) and three (3%) percent dependent on the City’s financial situation 

and at the discretion of the council upon a satisfactory performance evaluation.  

 

B. Employee is subject to all City personnel policies and procedures as laid out in the Bethel 

Municipal Code and in separate policies.   

 

C. Employee shall be allowed to participate in the City employee’s group coverage plan for full 

family Life, Accidental Death & Dismemberment, Long Term Disability, Dental, Vision and 

Health Insurance program equal to that which is provided to all other management 

employees.  

 

D. Employee shall have the opportunity to participate in the City Utility Services Benefit for the 

same monthly fee as paid by all other City management employees. 

 

E. The Employee will be enrolled in the Alaska Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

at a rate equal to that which is provided for all other employees of the City.   

 

F. Personal Time Off (PTO).  PTO shall accrue as follows:  

PTO shall accrue at the rate of eleven hours per pay period.  PTO can be accumulated up to a 

maximum accrual of two hundred fifty (250) hours. Employee shall use a minimum of One 

Hundred Sixty (160) hours per year. PTO should be requested two (2) weeks in advance.  

The City does not recognize or endorse “comp time”.   Unscheduled PTO shall be utilized 

only for the illness of the Employee or illness in the Employee’s immediate family.  Should 

the Employee be absent for more than three (3) consecutive working days, the Employee 

may be required to provide a physician’s certificate to the Mayor.  The City agrees to 

compensate the Employee for all remaining PTO hours at the time of termination of 

employment.     

 

G. Licensing and Bar Dues. City agrees to budget and pay for licensing fees and charges that are 

required of lawyers to practice law in the State of Alaska and professional dues, including 

State of Alaska annual Bar Dues and fees and dues necessary for continuation and full 

participation in national, regional, state, and local associations, and organizations necessary 

and desirable for the Employee’s continued professional participation, growth, and 

advancement, and for the good of the Employer.  These include: Alaska Municipal League 

(AML), Alaska Bar Association (ABA) and International Municipal Lawyer’s Association 

(IMLA).   

 

H. Jury Duty. As a regular, full-time employee, if summoned to jury duty, the City continues 

City Attorney’s salary during active periods of jury duty for up to a maximum of fifteen (15) 

working days per calendar year.  Employee is permitted to retain the allowance received 

from the court for such service.  Employee is also permitted paid time off if summoned to 

appear in court as a witness in their official capacity.  If summoned to appear in a personal 

matter, Employee is permitted nonpaid time off to appear.   

  

88



  City Attorney Contract 

  4 

To qualify for jury or witness duty leave, City Attorney must submit a copy of the summons 

or subpoena to the council as soon as practicable after receipt.   

 

I. Holidays. All holidays recognized by the Employer shall be granted to the City Attorney with 

holiday pay status provided the same as regular full-time positions of the City.  However, it is 

understood that from time to time Employee’s duties may require him/her to work on such 

holidays at no additional compensation.    

 

J. Family Medical Leave.  City Attorney may become eligible for family medical leave 

pursuant to federal and state law.  Upon eligibility, City Attorney shall have all the rights and 

protections of the Family Medical Leave Act as any other regular full-time employee of the 

City.   

 

K. Worker’s Compensation.  Should the City Attorney become injured on the job, he/she will be 

entitled to the compensation benefits as provided by Alaska’s Worker’s Compensation Act. 

 

L. Administrative Leave. The Employee may be granted administrative leave with pay by a 

majority vote of the Council for reason’s specified, including attendance at professional 

conferences.   

 

M. Emergency Leave. The City agrees to grant the Employee up to forty (40) hours of leave for 

the death or serious illness of an immediate family member.  For the purposes of this type of 

leave, Employee’s immediate family member includes the spouse of Employee, child, son-in-

law, daughter-in-law, parent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother and sister and 

grandchildren. 

 

Section 5 Hours and Days of Work 

 The City Attorney position requires the exercise of independent judgment on the part of 

the Employee and requires periods of extended work to exceed the normal office hours, work 

day and work week established by the Employer.  The Employee will be available during regular 

business hours.  Employee will be expected to work whatever hours are needed based upon the 

demands of the job.  Employee acknowledges she is an exempt employee and not entitled to 

overtime compensation or compensatory time off.  Any time worked in excess of the normal 

hours in a day or week is not compensated or credited in any manner by the Employer.   

 

Section 6 Performance Evaluation 

A. Employee shall be evaluated, in writing, by the Council annually on or about the anniversary 

date of hire.   

B. Evaluation of the performance of the City Attorney shall be directed towards improving the 

performance of the City Attorney.  However, evaluations shall also serve as a method for 

gathering information relevant to employee’s performance and continued employment. 

C. The evaluation process shall include, at a minimum, the opportunity for both parties to 

Conduct a formulary session where the City Council and the City Attorney meet to discuss 

goals and objectives of the past six (6) or twelve (12) month performance period (whichever 

is applicable) as well as the upcoming six (6) to twelve (12) month performance period; 

89



  City Attorney Contract 

  5 

D. Unless the City Attorney requests otherwise in writing, the evaluation shall at all times be 

conducted in executive session and shall be considered confidential to the extent permitted 

by law.  Nothing herein shall prohibit the Employer or Employee from sharing the content of 

the evaluation with their respective legal counsel. 

 

Section7 Additional Items 

A. Cell Phone: The City Attorney will be provided a cell phone for use in the performance of his 

or her duties.  While some personal calls may occur, the cell phone is issued for City 

purposes and any information gathered or stored on the cell phone is subject to public 

disclosure.  The City Attorney is responsible for any charges in excess of the basic monthly 

service fee.  Upon termination of employment, the cell phone must be returned to the City.   

B. Laptop: Recognizing the importance of constant communication and maximum productivity 

as well as the need for the Employee to work off-hours and while on official travel, the City 

shall provide the City Attorney a laptop computer for business use.   

 

Section 8 Outside Employment 

 Although the City expects employee to devote their primary efforts towards their duties 

and responsibilities with the City, employee may engage in outside employment with the prior 

approval of the council.  Generally, outside employment will be approved if it: 

 Does not conflict with employee’s responsibilities at the City, including employee’s 

ability to work overtime as required in the position; 

 Does not interfere with employee’s performance at the City; 

 Does not prove detrimental to the interests of the City; 

 Does not involve a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest; and 

 Does not involve the use of confidential or proprietary information of the City or its 

customers. 

 

 Before employee may serve as a paid officer, director or advisor for any company 

(whether or not for profit), the City must determine that employee’s accepting such a role is in 

the best interests of the City.  Such determinations will be made by the city council.  Any issues 

employee may be contemplating regarding outside employment should be resolved prior to 

employee accepting such employment.   

 

Section 9 Notices 
 Notices shall be either hand delivered or sent by mail to the following: 

 

 

EMPLOYER – CITY OF BETHEL 

Attn: Mayor 

PO Box 1388 

Bethel AK 99559 

 

CITY ATTORNEY –  

Patty Burley 

PO Box 2715 

Bethel AK 99559 

90



  City Attorney Contract 

  6 

Section 10 General Provisions 
 

A. The text herein shall constitute the entire agreement between both parties.   

 

B. Any modification or amendment shall be enforceable only if approved by a majority vote of 

the Council in a duly convened public session and if transcribed to a written document signed 

by both parties.   

 

C. Employee shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not transfer any interest 

in the same without the prior written consent of City. 

 

D. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held unconstitutional, 

invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion thereof, shall be 

deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

E. The failure of the City at any time to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall in no way 

constitute a waiver of the provisions, nor in any way affect the validity of this Agreement or 

any part thereof, or the right of the City thereafter to enforce each and every protection 

hereof.   

 

F. This Agreement is being executed by the parties following negotiations between them.  It 

shall be construed according to the fair intent of the language as a whole, not for or against 

any party.  The titles of sections in this Agreement are not to be construed as limitations or 

definitions but are for identification purposes only. 

 

G. If any section or clause of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

or is otherwise invalid under law, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 

H. The Council, in consultation with City Attorney, shall fix any other such terms and 

conditions of employment as it may deem necessary from time to time relating to the 

performance of City Attorney provided such terms and conditions are not inconsistent with 

or in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement, the City Code or any other applicable 

law. 

 

I. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alaska and the City of Bethel 

and any litigation brought shall be in Bethel, Alaska.  Employee expressly waives any rights 

he might otherwise have as provided in Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure to remove any 

action from Bethel, Alaska. 

 

Section 11 Bonding 
 The City shall bear full costs of any fidelity or other bonds required for the City Attorney 

under any law or ordinance. 

 

 

 

91



  City Attorney Contract 

  7 

Section 12 Indemnification 

 Beyond that required under State, federal or local law, the City of Bethel shall defend, 

save harmless and indemnify City Attorney against any obligation to pay money or perform, 

including without limitation, any and all losses, damages, judgments, interests, settlements, 

penalties, fines, court costs and other reasonable costs and expenses of legal proceedings 

including attorneys fees and any other liabilities arising from, related to, or connected with any 

tort, professional liability claim or demand or any other threatened, pending or completed action, 

suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, arbitrative or investigation, whether 

groundless or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance 

of City Attorney’s duties or resulting from the exercise of judgment or discretion in connection 

with the performance of program duties or responsibilities, unless the act or omission involved 

willful or wanton conduct.  The City Attorney may request and the City shall not unreasonably 

refuse to provide independent legal representation at Employer’s expense and Employer may not 

unreasonably withhold approval.  Legal representation, provided by Employer for Employee, 

shall extend until a final determination of the legal action, including any appeals brought by 

either party.   

 The City shall indemnify the City Attorney against any and all losses, damages, 

judgments, interest, settlements, penalties, fines, court costs and other reasonable costs and 

expenses of legal proceedings including attorneys fees, and any other liabilities incurred by, 

imposed upon, or suffered by such Employee in connection with or resulting from any claim, 

action, suit or proceeding, actual or threatened, arising out of or in connection with the 

performance of his or her duties unless the act or omission involved willful or wanton conduct.  

Any settlement of any claim must be made with prior approval of the City in order for 

indemnification, as provided in this Section, to be available.   

 Employee recognizes that the City shall have the right to compromise and unless the 

Employee is a party to the suit which Employee shall have a veto authority over the settlement, 

settle any claim or suit; unless, said compromise or settlement is of a personal nature to 

Employee.  Further, Employer agrees to pay all reasonable litigation expenses of employee 

throughout the pendency of any litigation to which the Employee is a party, witness or advisor to 

the Employer.  Such expense payments shall continue beyond Employee’s service to the 

Employer as long as litigation is pending.  Further, Employer agrees to pay Employee reasonable 

consulting fees and travel expenses when Employee serves as witness, advisor or consultant to 

Employer regarding pending litigation.   

 

Section 13 Termination and Severance 
A. Termination for Cause: In the event the City Attorney is terminated for cause, the City shall 

have no obligation to pay a severance pay.  The Mayor shall include in a notification of 

termination of City Attorney, a statement of cause. 

 

B. Termination without Cause: In the event the City Council desires to terminate the City 

Attorney without cause during such time as the Employee is willing to perform the duties of 

the City Attorney, the City agrees to provide the City Attorney with one month of severance 

pay including health benefits for each year of service, for a maximum of three (3) months.  

 

92



  City Attorney Contract 

  8 

C. For the purposes of this Agreement, termination occurs when the majority of the City 

Council votes to terminate the City Attorney at a properly posted and duly authorized public 

meeting.  

 The City Attorney may notify the council, in writing, that he or she requests an informal 

hearing before the Council.  The informal hearing shall be held by the Council at its next 

regularly scheduled meeting following receipt of the request. 

 The informal hearing may be opened or closed at the City Attorney’s request.  The 

Employee may be represented by counsel and may present and examine witnesses for the 

purpose of contesting termination.  Such witnesses shall be sworn.  The City Attorney shall 

advise the council, in writing, if he or she plans to be represented by counsel at the hearing and 

shall provide the names of witnesses that will testify at the hearing on their behalf.  

 A recording of the proceeding shall be kept.  Transcribed copies shall be furnished to the 

City Attorney at cost upon his or her request.  The decision of Council shall be furnished to the 

City Attorney within a reasonable time upon conclusion of the informal hearing and shall include 

the basis for the decision.  

 

D. Voluntary Resignation:  In the event City Attorney voluntarily resigns his or her position 

with the City before the duration of this Agreement has expired, the City Attorney shall give 

the City thirty (30) days advance written notice. In the event of voluntary resignation the 

employee is not entitled to severance pay.   

 

 

CITY ATTORNEY    CITY OF BETHEL 

 

 

___________________________  ___________________________ 

Patty Burley, Employee   Richard Robb, Mayor 

 

___________________________  ___________________________ 

Dated      Dated 

 

 

93



 

New Business   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

94



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Date: June 27, 2017 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Resolution #17-13 

    1 of 1  

    

 

CITY OF BETHEL 
 
 

Resolution # 17-13 
 

 
A RESOLUTION REPEALING AND REPLACING RESOLUTION 17-11 

REQUESTING STATE FY 18 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILT) 
FUNDING FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY 

AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. 
 
 

WHEREAS, 3 AAC 152.100 requires the governing body of a city to adopt a resolution requesting 
funding from the Payment in Lieu of Taxes Program for cities in the unorganized 
borough and to submit the resolution to the Department of Commerce, Community 
and Economic Development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city shall use the funds for any governmental purpose and establish and 

maintain a financial management and accounting system that conforms to generally 
accepted accounting principles; and 

   
WHEREAS, the city recognizes the State of Alaska may at any time, request a report on how the 

funds were expended;  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:  The City Council by this resolution hereby requests 
distribution from the FY 18 Payment in Lieu of Taxes Program by the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development on the date required by law. 
 

ENACTED THIS 27 DAY OF JUNE 2017 BY A VOTE OF _ IN FAVOR AND _ 
OPPOSED.  

 

 
 

___________________________  
Richard Robb, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 
 

 
___________________________ 

Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

95



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Date: June 13, 2017 

Action : Passed 
Vote: 6-0 

CITY OF BETHEL 

Resolution# 17-11 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FY 18 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES FUNDING 
FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY AND 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

WHEREAS, 3 MC 152.100 requires the governing body of a city to adopt a resolution requesting 
funding from the Payment in Lieu of Taxes Program for cities in the unorganized 
borough and to submit the resolution to the Department of Commerce, Community 
and Economic Development; 

WHEREAS, the city has conducted a regular election during the preceding state fiscal year and 
has report the results of the election to the commissioner; 

WHEREAS, regular meeting of the governing body are held in the city and a record of the 
proceedings is maintained; 

WHEREAS, ordinances adopted by the city have been codified in accordance with AS 29.25.050; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Bethel City Council by this resolution hereby 
requests distribution from the FY 17 Payment in Lieu of Taxes Program by the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development on the date required by law. 

ENACTED THIS 13th DAY OF JUNE 2017 BY A VOTE OF 6 IN 
OPPOSED. 

City of Bethel, Alaska 

Richard Robb, Mayor 

Resolution # 17-11 
1of1 

96



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
Introduction Date: June 27, 2017 

Public Hearing 
Date:  

July 11, 2017 

Action:   
Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-37 
  Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

 

Ordinance #17-37 
 

AMEND THE BETHEL MUNICIPAL CODE  
CHAPTER 4.04, BUDGET ADOPTION  

 
Whereas,  An important function of city council is to adopt an annual budget; 
 
Whereas,  the budge process can be slow and may not make timely progress; 
 
Whereas,  BMC states failure to adopt a budget in time defaults to the proposed 

budget; 
 
Whereas, this process can circumvent the intent of council to fulfill its duties and 

default to the administration’s proposed budget; 
 
Now, Therefore Be It enacted by the City Council of Bethel Alaska as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of permanent nature and shall be 

codified within the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment: Bethel Municipal Code 4.04 is amended, new language is 

underlined, removed language is stricken.  
 

4.04.050 Budget – Adoption. 

The council shall adopt the budget and make the appropriation by ordinance no later 
than the fifteenth (15th) day of June. Failing adoption, the budget estimate 
as submitted or amended shall go into effect and be deemed to have been 
adopted by the council; and the proposed expenditures therein shall 
become the appropriations for the next fiscal year. [Ord. 161 § 2, 1985.] 
the city manager will maintain essential public services, including public 
safety (police, fire), water and sewer services, landfill operations, and the 
Port of Bethel, at currently funded levels on and after July 1 until such time 
a new budget is passed.   

 
SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon passage by 
the Bethel City Council. 
 

97



Introduced by: Mayor Richard Robb 
Introduction Date: June 27, 2017 

Public Hearing 
Date:  

July 11, 2017 

Action:   
Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 17-37 
  Page 2 of 2 

ENACTED THIS _DAY OF JULY, 2017, BY A VOTE OF _ IN FAVOR AND _ 
OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 

Lori Strickler, City Clerk  
  

98



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No.  17-42 

Date action introduced: June 27, 2017 Introduced by:   Council Member Shabani  

Date action taken: 
 

          Approved                                 Denied                                           

Confirmed by:  

 

AM No. 17-42  

Direct Administration to begin working on a park development plan for Kasauli 
Subdivision.  
  
Attachment(s):   

Amount of fiscal impact:  Account information: 

X No fiscal impact  

 

Park development while important is sometimes difficult to fund by governments with 

all of the necessary services being so costly. Even with the current fiscal challenges, the 

Bethel City Council find importance in investing in our community’s public areas to help 

promote healthy activity and community togetherness.  

 

One area that is in need of a public park and playground is Kasauli Subdivision. The 

most outlaying subdivision in town, Kasauli is over five miles from the closest park.   

 

While funding may be an initial concern, there are a few grant options that 

Administration can consider when developing a plan that would help offset the cost of 

building the park; the Subdivision already has property, owned by the City, dedicated to 

Recreational Space; and there are many different low maintenance playground options 

that can be considered for future sustainability. 

 

Administration should bring back to Council an action plan for the development of a 

park in Kasauli with a goal of park construction in the summer 2018.   

 

99



6/21/2017 IMG_7090.JPG

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#inbox/15ccc92a51c17d6e?projector=1 1/1
100



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No.  17-43 

Date action introduced: June 27, 2017 Introduced by:   Mayor Robb 

Date action taken: 
 

          Approved                                 Denied                                           

Confirmed by:  

 

AM No. 17-43  

 

Attachment(s):   
Amount of fiscal impact:  Account information: 

X Funds are budgeted  10-52-545 

 

On May 22, Lt. Governor Byron Mallott convened the first meeting of a newly formed 

Election Policy Working Group. This working group will address policy issues and seek 

cost saving measures to implement state and federal mandates related to voter 

registration and language assistance, recruitment and training of election workers, and 

replacement of aging ballot tabulation system. Although this discussion primarily 

focuses on the State’s functionality of Election the outcome will affect municipal 

elections and possibly the entire framework of the election process.    

 

The working group, put together by the Lt. Governor, includes an array of individuals 

representing different regions and organizations throughout the State. City Clerk, Lori 

Strickler was asked to participate in the Working Group and participates as the only 

member from the YK Delta Region.  

 

The first meeting of the Working Group was held in Anchorage with accommodations 

provided by the State. The second meeting, scheduled for September 6 and 7, will be 

held in King County Washing, known to have one of the best election systems in the 

nation. The group will be reviewing the King County Elections process, touring facilities 

and meeting with Washington Election Officials to evaluate what works and what does 

not work in their election practices.    

 

The City Clerk is requesting administrative leave to attend the on-site fact-finding 

meeting in King County, which will not be paid for by the State. Not only will this in-

person observation and evaluation of King County’s election methods assist in 

determining the best course of action for the State, the information gathered would 

better prepare the City Clerk’s Office for any transitions that my occur as a result of the 

State modifying their election practices and afford the City Clerk with a rare opportunity 

to learn from what is said to be one of the best election’s office in the nation.   

 

 

101



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No. 
Date action introduced: Introduced by:  
Date action taken:   Approved       Denied 
Confirmed by: 

AM No. 

Route to:  Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

Attachment(s): 

Amount of fiscal impact: Account information: 
No fiscal impact 
Funds are budgeted for. 
Funds are not budgeted. 
Budget modification is required. 

102



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 
Action memorandum No.  17-44 

Page Number 

2 of 2 
Introduced by:   

City Manager Williams 
 
 

 

 
 
proposer, the City found it advantageous to combine all of the services into one 
contract, thus affording the City a discount for multiple services.   
 
Previously the City paid $23,964/year for the Police Department Support and 
$26,304/year for the City Hall support.  If the City were to add the additional tech 
support independently, the cost would have been $67,644 for the first year and $68,244 
for the 2nd year in addition to the one-time set-up fee.  Thus, for the first year alone, the 
total cost for services would have been $124,097 (including the one-time setup fee) 
 
By combining the Agreements into one, the City was able to get a reduction in the costs.  
The City’s new cost for the Police Department support will be $23,748/year; City Hall 
support will be reduced to $26,016/year and tech support for City PC’s, along with 3 
annual on-site visits, will cost $65,844 with no increase on year two.  The first year cost 
is thus reduced to $121,975 (including the one-time setup fee).   
 
In addition, all contracts will now run simultaneously.   
 
 

103



Arctic Information Technology, Inc.  2017 Ver 1.8  
Master Services Agreement for City of Bethel Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 

 

 

 
MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 This Master Services Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement") is made and entered into on the 1st 

day of July 2017 (effective date) by and between Arctic Information Technology, Inc., an Alaska corporation 

of 375 West 36th Avenue, Suite 300 Anchorage, Alaska 99503 (hereinafter "Arctic IT") and City of Bethel, 

a municipal corporation, of 300 Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway, Bethel, AK 99559 (hereinafter "Client").  

1. SECTION ONE – SERVICES 
1.1. Consulting Services:  Arctic IT will provide professional services to the Client on an “as 

requested” basis or in accordance with specific projects as described in a Statement of Work 
(SOW). 

1.1.1. Work Performed “As Requested”: “As Requested” are services that will be performed by 
Arctic IT for general assistance not relating to a specific project or Scope of Work following 
verbal approval by the Client.  Services are billed on a time and material basis according to 
the rates specified in SCHEDULE A. 

1.1.2. Work Performed under a SOW:  Tasks relating to a specific project or recurring network 
services will be mutually agreed to by both Arctic IT and the Client, and the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement will apply unless otherwise superseded by a written Addendum 
mutually agreed to in writing by both Arctic IT and the Client. 

2. SECTION TWO - TERMS OF PAYMENT 
2.1. Payment for Hardware, Software & Service Plans: Payment for all hardware, software and 

service plans shall be paid prior to Arctic IT's placement of any orders. Arctic IT shall be under no 
obligation to order (or to deliver or install) the scheduled hardware, or software programs until after 
payment in full, or agreed upon installments, for same have been received by Arctic IT.  Once 
hardware, software and maintenance plans have been ordered by Arctic IT, neither Arctic IT nor 
the manufacturers or software license owners will provide any refund or credit for the purchase 
price. 

2.2. Payment for Consulting Services: Arctic IT shall invoice Client monthly during the term of this 
Agreement for services rendered pursuant to an agreed upon Statements of Work (SOW).  All 
invoicing shall be at the rates specified in SCHEDULE A hereto together with out of pocket costs 
described in Section 2.3 hereof, or at the rate agreed upon in the SOW.  Client shall pay all invoices 
within 30 days of receipt of same, and invoices not paid within 35 days of the invoice date shall 
bear a monthly service charge equal to the maximum rate allowed by law until the same is paid in 
full.  In the event Client fails to pay an invoice within 35 days of its date, Arctic IT may, at its option, 
cease performing further services under this Agreement, and/or terminate this Agreement upon 
written notice of its election to do so, without waiving its right to recover all fees and costs incurred 
through the date of termination, and service charges thereon until paid in full.  Client's failure to 
contest any Arctic IT invoice in writing, or the adequacy of the services represented in any invoice, 
within 35 days of the date of the invoice, shall be deemed an acceptance of the adequacy of Arctic 
IT's services and charges therefor.  

104



Arctic Information Technology, Inc.  2017 Ver 1.8  
Master Services Agreement for City of Bethel Page 2 of 7 

2.3. Expenses: Arctic IT shall invoice for, and Client shall pay Arctic IT's out of pocket expenses such 
as airfare, parking, lodging, meals, long distance phone charges, etcetera (Expenses), without 
markup.   

2.4. Travel Time: Client shall pay Arctic IT for the actual Travel Time of Arctic IT's consultants at their 
standard hourly rates set forth in SCHEDULE A hereto, except that when Consulting Services 
performed exceed four hours in length, then Travel Time of Arctic IT's consultants shall be billed 
at one-half of the standard hourly rates set forth on SCHEDULE A.  When air travel is required, 
travel time begins one hour before scheduled flight departure and ends when arriving at the Client 
worksite or hotel and for the return, upon arrival at the departure airport and 30 minutes after 
arriving back in Anchorage.     

2.5. Minimum Billing Increment:  Arctic IT records and invoices consulting services in minimum billing 
increments of .25 hours for each quarter of an hour, or any lesser any portion thereof during which 
consulting services are rendered.   

2.6. After Hours and Emergency Rate:  Arctic IT performs Services from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday 
through Friday (AST), excepting the following holidays: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, 
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and the Friday following Thanksgiving, and 
Christmas Day (Regular Business Hours).  Should a holiday fall on a Saturday, it is observed on 
the Friday prior; should a holiday fall on a Sunday, it is observed on the following Monday. Client 
requests for services to be performed outside of Regular Business Hours or if Client declares an 
“Emergency” and requests immediate services; these services will be invoiced at the "After Hours 
and Emergency Rate" set forth on SCHEDULE A hereto and will be subject to a minimum charge 
of one (1) hour.   

3. SECTION THREE - FEE ESTIMATE 
3.1. Fees are Estimated: The estimated hours set forth on any SOW or provided by Arctic IT for “as 

requested” services by Client, are merely Arctic IT's good faith estimates of the time, or range of 
times, within which each scheduled task may be completed.  The actual time required to complete 
each such scheduled task may be greater or less than Arctic IT's estimate, which may be affected 
by unanticipated matters or matters outside of Arctic IT's control.  Estimates and quotes provided 
by Arctic IT may contain some of Arctic IT's assumptions upon which the estimated fees and costs 
are based.  In all cases, Client acknowledges that Arctic IT has merely estimated the length of 
time required to render the consulting services, and Client agrees to pay for the actual consulting 
time rendered by Arctic IT at the scheduled rates.   

4. SECTION FOUR – TERMS and TERMINATION 
4.1. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue until 

terminated pursuant to this Section or the mutual written agreement of the Parties. 

4.2. Either Party may terminate this Agreement for cause without liability upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to the other Party if the other Party materially breaches any of the terms of this Agreement, 
provided, however, that this Agreement shall not terminate if the breaching Party shall have cured 
the breach within such thirty (30) day period.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in 
this Agreement, if the material breach is of a nature that such material breach cannot be cured 
within thirty (30) days, then the non-breaching party can terminate this Agreement for cause 
without liability upon the delivery of a written notice to the other Party. 

4.3. This Agreement shall terminate automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events: 
Bankruptcy or insolvency of either Party; Death or dissolution of either Party; Assignment of this 
Agreement by Client without the consent of Arctic IT. 

4.4. This Agreement shall terminate automatically on June 30, 2019 unless extended or renewed by 
mutual written consent of both parties. 

105



Arctic Information Technology, Inc.  2017 Ver 1.8  
Master Services Agreement for City of Bethel Page 3 of 7 

4.4.1. Arctic IT shall provide Client with written notice of its request to renew the Agreement at 
least ninety (90) days prior to the Agreement Expiration. Renewal notices shall include the 
following: 

4.4.1.1. Any proposed rate changes; and 

4.4.1.2. Any changes requested to the existing Master Agreement and or Statement(s) of 
Work (SOW);  

 
4.4.2. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of a Request to Extend/Renew the Agreement, the City 

shall: 

4.4.2.1. Ensure that Arctic IT continues to be eligible to contract with the City [i.e., maintains 
a valid City of Bethel business license, a valid State of Alaska business license 
and is not delinquent on any sales taxes or other fees with the City]; 

4.4.2.2. Verify that Arctic IT' s certificates of insurance are up to date; 

4.4.2.3. Provide notice to Arctic IT of any requested changes to existing Master Agreement 
and/or Statement(s) of Work (SOW);  

4.5. If the City Council fails to appropriate sufficient funds or to authorize the expenditure of sufficient 
funds to continue service under this Agreement, Client may submit a written notice to Arctic IT 
terminating this Agreement.  Such notice shall be in writing and shall be not less than thirty (30) 
days prior to the date of termination.  The notice shall include a written statement documenting the 
reason for termination and an official document certifying the non-availability of funds (e.g., City 
Council action; official budget or other official government document).  Client shall be liable to 
Arctic IT for all charges and costs incurred for products and/or services prior to the effective date 
of the termination.   

5. SECTION FIVE – REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTY 
5.1. Client hereby represents and warrants that the execution, delivery and performance of this 

Agreement does not and shall not conflict with, breach, violate or cause a default under any 
contract, agreement, instrument, order, judgment or decree to which it is a party or by which it is 
bound. 

5.2. Arctic IT represents and warrants that the services shall be performed in a competent and 
workmanlike manner, in accordance with standards common and prevalent in the industry.  If 
Client notifies Arctic IT, in writing and in reasonable detail, of the nature and extent of a failure in 
the services within thirty (30) days after the completion of the applicable services, Arctic IT shall 
re-perform or cure any portion of such services that fail to satisfy the foregoing limited warranty. If 
Arctic IT and Client mutually determine that Arctic IT is unable to re-perform or cure the services 
in a manner that complies with this warranty Section through the exercise of commercially 
reasonable efforts, Arctic IT shall refund to Client the fees paid for such portion of the services. 

5.3. Arctic IT shall provide or assign to Client all third-party manufacturer product warranties associated 
with the hardware and software provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Client acknowledges and 
agrees that:  

5.3.1. Arctic IT shall not provide any separate, independent, or concurrent warranty of any kind 
or nature for such hardware and software; and  

5.3.2. Client shall make any warranty claims, if any, with respect to third party hardware 
equipment or software programs supplied by Arctic IT, directly to the manufacturer of such 
hardware equipment or software, and not to Arctic IT. 

5.4. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION, THE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED 
“AS-IS” AND, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, Arctic IT 
MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR 

106



Arctic Information Technology, Inc.  2017 Ver 1.8  
Master Services Agreement for City of Bethel Page 4 of 7 

IMPLIED (EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW) WITH RESPECT TO THE 
SERVICES.  Arctic IT EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY 
AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ALL WARRANTIES ARISING FROM 
CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALING, OR CUSTOM OF TRADE. USE OF THE SERVICES IS 
ENTIRELY AT CLIENT'S OWN RISK AND, EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION Arctic 
IT SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY OR RESPONSIBILITY FOR CLIENT’S SUCH USE.   

6. SECTION SIX – LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
6.1. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL A PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR 

CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, OR INDIRECT DAMAGES 
(INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF PROFITS, 
LOSS OF BUSINESS OR GOODWILL, OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) ARISING FROM, 
RELATING TO, OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF A PARTY HAS BEEN 
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF OR COULD HAVE FORESEEN SUCH DAMAGES. 

6.2. A PARTY’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY HEREUNDER SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED AN 
AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENT TO Arctic IT 
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE THREE (3) MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY 
PRECEDING THE OCCURRENCE GIVING RISE TO ANY SUCH CLAIM. 

6.3. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT, 
THIS SECTION SHALL NOT APPLY TO:  

6.3.1. ANY THIRD-PARTY CLAIM FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
INFRINGEMENT, PERSONAL INJURY;  

6.3.2. ANY CLAIM FOR INDEMNIFICATION;  

6.3.3. ANY CLAIM INVOLVING WILFUL REPUDIATION OF THIS AGREEMENT;  

6.3.4. ANY CLAIM ARISING FROM BREACH OF THE CONFIDENTIALITY PROVISIONS SET 
FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT; AND  

6.3.5. ANY CLAIM INVOLVING WILLFUL, INTENTIONAL OR GROSSLY NEGLIGENT 
CONDUCT 

7. SECTION SEVEN - CONFIDENTIALITY 
7.1. Confidential Information: The term “Confidential Information” shall mean any and all information 

which is disclosed before, on or after the Effective Date hereof by either party to the other verbally, 
electronically, visually, or in a written or other tangible form that is not generally disclosed to the 
public by the Discloser, including but not limited to, trade secrets, computer programs, software, 
software manuals and documentation, technology, systems, source code, databases, 
applications, engine protocols, routines, models, displays and manuals, including, without 
limitation, the selection, coordination and arrangement of the contents thereof, formulas, data , 
inventions, methodologies, algorithms, techniques, processes, research activities and plans, 
marketing and sales plans, strategic plans, forecasts, training materials, pricing and pricing 
strategies, methods of operation, internal controls, security procedures, third party confidential 
information, customer lists and unpublished financial information, or by its very nature, would 
cause a reasonable person to know or regard such information as confidential or proprietary. 

7.2. Non-disclosure: Both Parties shall keep Confidential Information in strict confidence and shall 
not disclose Discloser’s Confidential Information to any third party.  Recipient shall use Discloser’s 
Confidential Information in a manner consistent with the terms of this Agreement and only in the 
performance of Recipient’s responsibilities under this Agreement.  Recipient’s internal disclosure 
of Discloser’s Confidential Information shall be only to those directors, officers, employees, 
consultants, subcontractors, and agents having a need to know such information in connection 
with this Agreement and only insofar as such persons are bound by nondisclosure obligations 
consistent with the Agreement.  Neither party shall copy or otherwise duplicate such Confidential 

107



Arctic Information Technology, Inc.  2017 Ver 1.8  
Master Services Agreement for City of Bethel Page 5 of 7 

Information, except for the purpose of this Agreement, or knowingly allow anyone else to copy or 
otherwise duplicate any Confidential Information then under its control without the prior written 
approval of the other party.  A party shall promptly notify the other of any unauthorized disclosure 
or use of Confidential Information by any person and/or entity.  Upon termination of the Agreement, 
or Discloser’s written request, Recipient shall cease use of Discloser’s Confidential Information 
and immediately return all tangible Confidential Information to Discloser.  With respect to 
Discloser’s Confidential Information stored in electronic form, Recipient shall delete all such 
Confidential Information from its systems and certify in writing that such information has been 
deleted. 

7.3. Limits of Confidentiality: This Agreement imposes no obligation upon the parties with respect to 
Confidential Information which either party can establish by legally sufficient evidence:  (a)  was in 
the possession of, or was rightfully known by Recipient without an obligation to maintain its 
confidentiality prior to receipt from the other party; (b)  is or becomes generally known to the public 
without violation of the Agreement;  (c)  is obtained by Recipient in good faith from third party 
having the right to disclose it without an obligation on confidentiality;  (d) is independently 
developed by Recipient without the participation of individuals who have had access to the 
Confidential Information; or (e) is required to be disclosed by court order provided that Recipient 
shall have given Discloser reasonable notice and opportunity to object prior to such disclosure, 
will see confidential treatment of the information disclosed, and shall comply with any applicable 
protective order or equivalent. 

7.4. Term of Confidentiality: The obligations set forth in this Section 7 shall continue for a period of 
three (3) years from the date of the receipt of such Confidential Information or three (3) years from 
the date of termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs last. 

8. SECTION EIGHT – OTHER TERMS 
8.1. Force Majeure:  Neither party shall be liable for any failure or delay in performance under this 

Agreement (other than for delay in the payment of money due and payable hereunder) to the 
extent said failures or delays are proximately caused (I) by causes beyond that party's reasonable 
control and occurring without its fault or negligence, including, without limitation, failure of 
suppliers, subcontractors, and carriers, or party to substantially meet its performance obligations 
under this Agreement, provided that, as a condition to the claim of non-liability, the party 
experiencing the difficulty shall give the other prompt written notice, with full details following the 
occurrence of the cause relied upon. Dates by which performance obligations are scheduled to be 
met will be extended for a period of time equal to the time lost due to any delay so caused. 

8.2. Covenant Not to Hire: Client agrees not to offer employment to Arctic IT's employee/consultants 
directly or indirectly through any subsidiary or affiliate of Client during the engagement or within 
an 18-month period following the termination of Agreement.  Should Client hire an 
employee/consultant of Arctic IT during or within 18 months of the termination of this Agreement, 
Client shall pay to Arctic IT $75,000 as a personnel replacement fee to compensate Arctic IT for 
the loss of each such employee so hired by Client.  Arctic IT agrees that it will not offer employment 
to any of Client's employees either directly or indirectly through any subsidiary or affiliate of Arctic 
IT during the engagement or for a period of 18 months following the termination of Agreement.  
Should Arctic IT hire an employee of Client during the engagement or within 18 months of the 
termination of this Agreement, Arctic IT shall pay to Client $75,000 as a personnel replacement 
fee to compensate Client for the loss of each such employee so hired by Arctic IT.     

8.3. Independent Contractor Relationship: It is the intention of the parties that Arctic IT be an 
independent contractor and not an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of Client.  Nothing 
in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between Client and either Arctic IT or any employee or agent of Arctic IT.  
Arctic IT agrees that Arctic IT is not and shall not become an employee, partner, agent, or principal 
of Client while this Agreement is in effect.  Arctic IT agrees that Arctic IT is not entitled to the rights 
or benefits afforded to Client’s employees including, but not limited to, disability or unemployment 
insurance, workers’ compensation, medical insurance, or sick leave.  Arctic IT is responsible for 

108



Arctic Information Technology, Inc.  2017 Ver 1.8  
Master Services Agreement for City of Bethel Page 6 of 7 

providing, at Arctic ITs own expense, disability, unemployment, and other insurance, workers’ 
compensation, training, permits, and licenses for Arctic IT and for all of Arctic IT’s employees and 
subcontractors. 

8.3.1. Arctic IT may, at Arctic ITs own expense, employ any assistants or employees that Arctic 
IT deems necessary to perform the services required of Arctic IT by this Agreement.  Client 
may not control, direct, or supervise Arctic IT’s assistants or employees in the performance 
of those services. 

8.3.2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, nothing in this 
Agreement shall create an exclusive relationship between the Parties.  Client 
acknowledges and agrees that Arctic IT shall provide services to other Clients and 
customers. 

8.4. Use of Client as Reference: Client consents to Arctic IT's use of Client's name and corporate 
logo as a reference in the promotion of Arctic IT's services. 

8.5. Choice of Law/Venue: This Agreement shall be governed by the Laws of the State of Alaska, 
and venue for any action arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be filed in the trial courts 
in Anchorage. 

8.6. Savings Clause: Should any term or provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, be 
deemed invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the remainder 
of this Agreement, which shall remain full enforceable in accordance with its terms giving full effect 
to the evident intent of the parties. 

8.7. Rule of Construction: Both Client and Arctic IT having had the opportunity to review the 
Agreement with the counsel of their choice, agree that the rule of construction that a contract be 
strictly construed against the drafter shall not apply. 

8.8. Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive understanding of the 
parties, and supersedes all prior sales proposals, negotiations, agreements and other 
representations or communications, whether oral or written.  If there is any conflict between the 
term and conditions of any other purchase or sales document and the term and conditions of this 
agreement, this agreement shall control.  This agreement may not be altered, varied, revised or 
amended except by as agreed in writing by both parties and signed by both parties to indicate 
commitment. The representative executing this Agreement on behalf of Client represents that 
he/she is duly authorized to enter into this Agreement on its behalf and Client promises to 
indemnify and hold Arctic IT harmless from any and all costs and damages, including attorney’s 
fees, incurred by reason of a lack of such authority. 

 
 
City of Bethel 

 
 
 
Arctic Information Technology, Inc. 

 
 
   
Signature  Signature 

Peter A. Williams   
Printed Name  Printed Name 

City Manager   
Title  Title 

   
Date  Date 

109



Arctic Information Technology, Inc.  2017 Ver 1.8  
Master Services Agreement for City of Bethel Page 7 of 7 

SCHEDULE A 

Consulting Hourly Rate Schedule 

2017 
 

Business Applications Hourly Rate 
Project Manager 200.00 
Consultant 185.00 
 
Platform & Infrastructure  
Project Manager  $  200.00 
Solutions Architect 175.00 
Sr. Consultant  165.00  
Staff Consultant  150.00 
Help Desk Technician 120.00 
 
After Hour and Emergency Services 
Additional amount charged per hour for  $    60.00 
After Hours and Emergency Services 
 
Per Diem 
The Federal Per Diem Schedule will be used for food and incidentals when  
consultants travel on behalf of customers. 
 

 

110



17-45
June 27, 2017 City Manager Williams

17-45 111



112



113



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No. 12-XX 
Date action introduced: Introduced by: 

Date action taken: ¥¥Approved Denied 
·-···· 

Confirmed by: 

SUBJECT/ACTION: 

Approval to enter into installation contract with Accupoint Inc. 

for installing fleet tracking equipment for water/sewer vehicles 

Route to: Department/Individual: lnitia~~- Remarks: 
X City Manager v 

City Attorney I 
X Finance I .I 

Planning \ 

Port ~ 
Parks and Recreation / 

X Public Works v 
Police 
Fire 

Attachment(s): 

1} Accupoint Inc. quote for installation of eight tracking devices in water/sewer trucks 

. 2} Sole-source justifications 

Amount of fiscal Account information: 
impact 

No fiscal impact 

Funds are budgeted for. 

'J(} 
Funds are not budgeted. :57-?s-~t.fJ 

\ ~ .... Budget modification is required. 
~~- ~-(~J / 

Affected account number: 

AM No.l2-XX Page 1 

17-46
Manager Williams June 27, 2017

17-46

114



Sole-source Justifications 

The City has tried to explore the possibility of fleet tracking in the past, meeting with a lot of results that, 

due to our location and infrastructure, were unacceptable to the City's needs. For this particular project, 

GCI was approached and asked to get us in touch with a specific vendor(s) whose product would work 

on GCI's cellular network in Bethel without fail- a factor that is very important given that the only other 

network (Verizon) does not yet stably blanket Bethel in its entirety. 

For this fleet tracking endeavor, Accupoint Inc. is being considered as a sole-source vendor for the 

product(s) and service(s) we wish to purchase for the following reasons: 

• Accupoint Inc. is the only company that GCI recommended that could guarantee us tracking 

devices that would work on their Bethel cellular network 

• Accupoint Inc. allowed the City of Bethel to demo three different devices in order to see what 

might work best for our needs. Upon confirming that one of the devices functioned in Bethel to 

our specifications, further investigation revealed that Accupoint Inc. is the only vendor in Alaska 

of the specific device that was confirmed working 

Three devices were tested in total: a device that utilizes GCI's cellular network exclusively, a 

device the utilizes an available satellite network exclusively, and one that would work on 

both GCI's cellular network and the available satellite when cellular service was unavailable. 

The cell-only device worked but not in all portions of town, thus disqualifying it as a viable 

option as water/sewer trucks will need to be tracked in distant subdivisions like Kasayuli. 

The satellite device worked in all of Bethel, however the costs for satellite uptime are 

drastically higher than a device that functions on a cellular network. 
The combination device worked in all of Bethel and managed to remain connected to the 
cellular network in all areas of Bethel, making it a superior device to the first cell-only 

device. This device will help to keep costs lower. 

• Devices tested from other companies have proven not to work on GCI's Bethel network 

115



17-04
June 27, 2017

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

131



CITY MANAGERS REPORT  
May 16 to May 30,2017  

Intuitional Corridor- on 5/31 DOWL submitted drawings and specs for Phase II; 6/8- 

received approval from the DEC to go ahead with the change order for the Bethel 

Intuitional Corridor. on 6/14 DOWL submitted the estimate of $4.5M for Phase II, the 

estimate for Phase I was $300-$325; 6/19 forwarded documentation to PM from Alaska 

Office of History and Archaeology stating that no known historical or culture resources 

would be affected by this project. 6/20- Discussed with DOWL Inc., the project 

manager. Phase II of the project is about ready to go out to bid. We are waiting for the 

final documentation showing that BNC and YKHC have finalized exchanging properties. 

I’ll be working to facilitate the reminder of the items that need to be done this week. 

Budget is tight. 

Sewer Lagoon/Jetty Project- 6/9 we discussed the RFP for this project with CH2M 

and forwarded concerns of the CA and the Grant writer to ensure the RFP follows 

requirements of the procurement code in the BMC. 6/16 Rec proposed RFP and 

Contract for review. 6/19-recievrd and signed off on that there were no historical 

properties affected. 6/20-  Should go out to bid the week by June 26th and the contract 

on the City Council Agenda July 25th. This project is cutting it close to make this 

construction season but if we stick to the timeline I believe it will be completed. 

Finance Dept.-We are reviewing the use of the P-cards; Purchasing code Chapter 4; 

on 6/23 we will have meeting concerning the personnel and see we can come with a 

plan to the finace department forward.                          

Public Works- 6/8 PW Director is on vacation and the American Waterworks Assoc. 

There will be a presentation concerning the re-sheaving water pipes, this might pertain 

to the ABC water loops in Bethel Heights. 6/9 Reviewed the mechanical services needed 

to maintain the pool with the property maintenance foreman. Mechanical Serv. Inc. has 

been performing these services for approximately $25,000 a year and MSI will walk 

around with the City’s property maintenance foreman and his team at the pool by July 

1st of this year. 6/9- walked around the inside of the Senior Citizen Ctr. 6/19- the waste 

hauler truck. Has been paid for and should on the July or August AML sailing. The new 

water and sewer trucks are still on schedule. 

Port Ops. Ctr.- 6/9 site work, pads and posts, glue lams for floor; 6/19 the building’s   

interior walls have been erected. Budget mod with supporting documents sent to the 

City Clerk. 

Bethel Bank Stabilization Project – 6/8 a Certification of Lands documenting that 

the project will take place on land that the City owns was forwarded to the USACE. 

132



2 

6/13-Forwarded deeds for the Certification to the USACE. 6/13 Received plans for the 

East Bulkhead-Wales and Tiebacks.  

Wind Turbine- 6/7 Pad for the pole was completed, AVEC will attempt to straighten 

the pole out. 6/11- Northern Power arrived in Bethel for their yearly maintenance check 

and did find some repairs were needed to some of the electrical boards. 6/20 AVEC 

attempted to stand up the pole some more and will go back one more time to hopefully 

finish the job. 

Courthouse Lease- 6/6 Review changes we agreed on from our last meeting on 6/2; 

on 6-13 reviewed City response with the CA and sent it  

 Parks- the ball field at Pinky’s park is being extended to the legal dimensions required 

for a soccer and football field. 

ONC- 5/16- received a MOU for funding for 70K for roads that needs to be reviewed by 

the City Attorney. Forwarded Ordinance #17-? For ONC’s review.5/30- Mark-up of the 

MOU was sent back to ONC for comments. 6/20 Sent to City Clerk to on the agenda. 

DOT/YKTP-6/7 attended PWTC meeting and discussed the State Transportation 

Improvement Program (STIP). After the DOT determines our options regarding we will 

meet. DOT figures it will tale 3 mos. too resolve the ROW issues. 

Police Dept.- 6/15 Police chief retired. 6/16 Notified the sergeants in person and 

discussed a course of action moving forward. Stated that I will be the Dept. head till 

someone else is hired. Receiving Daily Reports 6/20 Gave permission to Sgt. Davis to be 

interviewed with KYUK concerning the process when an adult is inebriated and children 

are involved. 6/20 Attended a meeting at the Police Station with all the officers on duty, 

most were there.  

Planning; Reviewed the Sub-Division Agreement for the Blue Sky sub-division with 

Streets and Roads foreman and the CA. There are some matters to resolve yet. 

Union Neg.- 5/24 & 25- H.R. Fin Dir. and myself had our first meeting with the 

APEA/AFT. HR manger, Fin. Director and myself union members meet on 6/7 to 6/8 and 

there were several articles the APEA and the City have agreed on. We will be discussing 

PTO proposing instituting a sick leave bank, and wages next. Our next meeting is on 

June 21 and 22. 

 

 

   

 

133



 

       Bethel Police Department | P.O. Box 809 | 157 Salmonberry Rd. | Bethel, Alaska 99559 

                 Telephone 907-543-3781 | Fax 907-543-5086 | www.cityofbethel.org 

 

City of Bethel 

PPoolliiccee  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt 
              
 

 

May 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 

Personnel: 

 

Community Service Patrol Martin Oulton, finished up his field training and 

is doing really well. He has recently accepted a conditional job offer as a 

Patrol Officer. Congratulations to Martin! 

 

Community Service Officer Brandon Oulton finished up his field training. 

Brandon has begun working on his CSO duties and is working to get animal 

control functions in order.  

 

Jesslyn McGowan started training as the Administrative Assistant. She is in 

training right now and is doing a fantastic job. Welcome to the Bethel Police 

Department family.  

 

Dispatch Supervisor Natalie Hayes has extended her stay with the Bethel 

Police Department. This is great news for the Bethel Police Department.  

 

Christina Himm has resigned to go work for Bethel Courts. Christina did a 

great job during her employment with the Bethel Police Department, and we 

wish her the best! 

 

Community Service Officer William Charles graduated the Alaska State 

Trooper Police Academy and has been offered and accepted a Patrol Officer 

position. He starts his Field Training on June 23, 2017. 

 

Community Service Officer Alexie Nick started his field training. Welcome 

to the Bethel Police Department family. 

 

Community Service Patrol Michael Shawgo has accepted a position as a 

Patrol Officer and will attend the Alaska State Trooper Academy in Sitka 

coming up in July. Congratulation to Michael.  

134



 

       Bethel Police Department | P.O. Box 809 | 157 Salmonberry Rd. | Bethel, Alaska 99559 

                 Telephone 907-543-3781 | Fax 907-543-5086 | www.cityofbethel.org 

 

 

Public Safety Dispatcher Dimitri Hoover resigned before he completed his 

field training.  

 

PSD Supervisor Hayes is conducting a background check on an applicant for 

the one open Dispatch position.  

 

We currently have one applicant in the background phase for a Patrol 

Officer Position. 

 

 

Operations: 

 

Dispatch handled 1,790 calls for service for the month of May. BFD 130, 

AST 9, OCS 2, Probation 15, BPD 1324 of which 74 required case reports. 

 

 

Community Service Patrol: 

CSP for this reporting period handled 147 individuals, of which 77 were 

males and 70 were females. Of the 147 persons contacted by the CSP, 20 

were placed at YKCC, and 127 Sobering Center. 

 

These numbers do not reflect Title 47 inebriates handled by patrol or the 

CSO. 

 

Animal Control: 

The CSO handled 45 animal control calls for service for the month of May.  

 

 

 

135



From: 

To: 

RE: 

Jim Chevigny 

Pete Williams 

CITY OF BETHEL 
P.O. Box 1388 Bethel, Alaska 99559 

907-543-204 7 

FAX # 543-3817 

The following are a few of the areas that I have been a part of over the past month: 

The FY18 budget 
Renewal of the City's liability insurance package, which included updating the individual asset 
line items (vehicles, properties and equipment), coverages in each area, deductibles, etc. 
Ensuring the COB liability insurance is up to date and provides adequate coverage is ongoing, yet 
the changes implemented are adequate at this time. 
Finalizing and assisting in implementing the City's employee benefit plan, including the new 
health plan, which was modified from the original, and is effective 7.1.17. Two changes that will 
help the COB costs in this area are: The spousal waiver, wherein if the spouse is covered by 
another employer's insurance the COB will no longer provide double coverage, and a $150 
deductible for ER visits, which@ 310 last year are remarkably over the norm for a group this 
size, estimated to be 10-20 by our insurance broker. Considering their research shows our 
average ER visit is $1,400 and we are self-insured, this average cost alone totaled $434,000. 
Contracted D&B (Dunn and Bradstreet) in order to determine what D&B rating the City has. Due 
to an historically poor payment history, I discovered the City has a lower rating than it should 
and the most recent data in the City's profile was almost 15 years out of date, so no one 
managed this critical "face" of the City. I am working with D&B in order to set a program in place 
to raise our D&B rating, and that will increase our ability to establish vendor accounts for 
purchasing. As an example, we cannot open a freight account at Alaska Airlines, who cut us off 
some time in the past. 
We have established investment accounts that are favorable to the City in terms of interest 
rates earned and ease of use, in order to maximize the interest earnings to the City. As rates 
have been increased several times this year and are expected to be periodically raised over the 
foreseeable future, keeping the investments short-term and flexible to address the City's cash 
needs while also maximizing earnings is imperative. Presently the AMLIP account is paying .89% 
on our balances. 
I discovered the Port and the PD have never had credit card terminals, so we installed them 
Monday June 12th, and have seen a high usage rate and an increase in customer and employee 
satisfaction. This eliminates the need to handle paper payments (cash and checks), increasing 

"Deep Sea and Transportation Center of the Kuskokwim" 

136



security to the City and making the employee's job easier. We are using terminals at the Port 
and PD office and the "square", a smart phone device, at the SBH, so the employee can be on 
the dock, in the parking lot or at the boat ramp collecting fees. This increases customer service 
and also the incidence of collection, increasing revenue to the City. 
We have signed up with the Wells Fargo "Ciientline" service for the first time, which allows our 
accounting staff to log on and view all credit card transactions on a real time basis. This allows 
them to stay current when posting transactions to our accounting system, check on daily batch 
totals, view individual transactions and immediately settle disputes or answer questions. This 
will make closing at month end more timely, as it can be updated daily and errors will be 
corrected ongoing. 
We are in the process of finalizing the proposed FY18 Capital Budget, including detailed 
descriptions, for submittal to the council in July. 
I am in the process of performing staff reviews, which I have discovered have not been 
completed for anyone in Finance for at least 3 years. 
An important aspect of this position has been to raise the level of job satisfaction and morale 
with the Finance staff, which was rather poor upon my arrival. This is ongoing and we have seen 
positive results. Communication is better, attendance appears to be better and this allows for 
better training of the staff. 
Purchasing: I am taking on the position of Purchasing Agent and what that entails. It is an 
ongoing process and I expect to be reasonably up to speed in the near term. 
Over the next several months I will investigate how we establish the annual budgets' 
documentation through the City's Caselle accounting system. This should streamline the 
process, including the ability to monitor the budget ongoing and to see direct impacts to fund 
balances. The present system is an in-house, Excel spreadsheet dating back to at least 2007 and 
can be greatly improved. 

137



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 1 of 13 

Staffing 

Operational Staff:  

 Front Desk: Fully Staffed 

 Facility Attendant: Fully Staffed 

 Lifeguards:  Looking for 3-4 certified lifeguards to start in August.   

o Free Lifeguard training will be offered August 8th – August 12th.   

 

Programming Staff: We are still looking for programming staff to fill the below roles: 

 Swim Instructors 

 Fitness Instructors and Certified Personal Trainers 

 Instructors for any activity, craft or music patrons might be interested in learning.  

Anyone interested in working with us can call 543-0390 or visit ykfitness.org for information. 

 

Programming 

Fitness and Aquatic Classes: Spring classes ended May 14th with some classes holding makeups during the week of 

May 16th.  Summer Sports Camp and summer classes started May 23rd. 

Rentals:  May rentals included 5 parties and 4 hours of swim lane rentals. .  

 

Facility Maintenance 

Water Usage for May was within normal range.  

Warranty Maintenance:  We continue to wait on movement on warranty maintenance.  

 

Routine Maintenance:   

 5/4 cleaned hair and lint strainers and backwashed spa 

 5/5/17 Cleaned pool Pulsar tray 

 5/10 & 5/17 cleaned hair and lint strainers and backwashed pool 

 Cleaned air filters on pool & spa UV lamps 

 

Corrective Maintenance: 

 5/8/17 Worked with City crew to replace fluorescent bulbs  with LED bulbs to reduce electric consumption 

 5/19/17 cleaned treadmill hydrolic pump, retreaded bike pedel on cycling machine 

 5/22/17 Reorganized cardio machines to meet manufacturer’s standards for space required around units, 

particularly the treadmills.   

 5/22/17 replaced boiler room locking mechanism to correct lock fault 

 5/24/17 replaced vent fan in boiler room to correct due to bearing failure  

 

  

138



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 2 of 13 

Maintenance needed: 

 Solenoid controlling the relay locking mechanism for the Family Locker room door has malfunctioned.  The part 

was special made for that relay assembly, we are working with the company attempting to get a replacement 

part.   

 While moving cardio machines we found that the treadmills are wearing groves into the linoleum in some places 

and causing the linoleum to bubble in others.  Need to look into alternative flooring options for under these 

pieces.   

 Experiencing leaking from shower handles, need to replace gaskets and seals.   

 Experiencing difficulties with BIAMP Interface modules for playing music in the cardio/weight room and studio.  

We are reviewing system to determine whether they can be fixed or will need to be replaced.  

 

Facility Utilization 

Facility Check-In: Facility Check-In numbers represent the total number of patrons who visited the facility and are 

based on a compilation of the number of members who checked-in, the number of daily passes sold and the number 

of participants in programs, activities, rentals and special events.  These numbers represent facility visits, not 

individuals as most individuals visit the facility multiple times.  

 

The above facility utilization rates include several groups from LKSD who utilized the pool for recreation.  

 

Facility Check-In Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Total

Member Checkins 1,830 2,134 2,227 2,333 2,047 2,064 2,015 2,578 2,654 3,457 3,046 26,385

Daily Admissions 1,189 1,095 833 827 979 873 910 1,222 1,751 1,378 1,504 12,561

Rentals 25 105 186 150 162 130 87 125 135 146 134 1,385

Events 0 30 0 100 0 55 0 68 62 0 0 315

Fitness Programming 64 12 75 101 123 96 112 150 101 240 103 1,177

Aquatics Programming 0 220 258 309 283 160 231 322 303 270 133 2,489

Youth Programs 33 0 50 83

Monthly Totals 3,108 3,596 3,579 3,820 3,594 3,378 3,355 4,465 5,006 5,491 4,920 44,395

Time In Group Name SchoolHead Staff Name#Staff #Students Activity

5/5/2017 10:09 AM Mrs. Jacobsons Special needs classBRHS Mrs. Jacobson 3 4 Pool

5/5/2017 7:24 BRHS Mr. robert kelso 8 1 pool

5/6/2017 12:00 noon School trip ChefornakMs. MorganSchool trip3 6 pool

5/9/2017 10:00 AM Mrs. Jacobson's Special needs classBRHS Mrs. Jacobson 1 1 Pool

5/10/2017 10:00 AM Life Skills-BRHS BRHS Ms. Jacobson 1 1 pool

5/11/2017 9:30 AM Intensive Needs Class Gladys jungMr. Garcia 0 5 pool

5/16/2017 9:00 AM End of School Party Gladys jungMs. Hoffman 1 14 pool

5/16/2017 9:30 AM End of School Party Gladys jungMs. Charles 3 43 pool

5/16/2017 9:45 End of School Party Gladys jungMs. Arno 1 21 pool

5/16/2017 12:24 End of School Party ME Ms. Harris 3 18 pool

5/16/2017 1229 End of School Party ME Ms Jung 3 19 pool

5/16/2017 1:00 PM End of School Party ME Mrs. Cronk/ Mr. Damers2 37

5/17/2017 9:20 AM End of School Party ME Ms. Scoccia 1 21 pool

5/17/2017 9:25 AM End of School Party ME Ms. Sleppy 1 21 pool

5/17/2017 1:15 PM End of School Party ME Ms. Aloysius/Atwood4 38 pool

5/23/2017 6:14 PM LKSD Summer Academy various villagesPaul Conti 1 24 Pool

5/23/2017 7:47 PM LKSD Summer Academy various villagesPaul Conti 1 20 Pool

5/27/2017 7:30 PM LKSD Summer Academy various villagesJoel Thomas 1 25 pool

5/28/2017 7:30 PM LKSD Summer Academy Various villagesLisa Crank 1 30 Pool

5/28/2017 8:00 PM LKSD Summer Academy Various villagesLisa Crank 1 21 Pool

5/30/2017 6:30 PM LKSD Summer Academy Various villagesLisa Crank 1 23 Pool

139



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 3 of 13 

Area Usage: Count of the number of individuals in each area at the top and bottom of each hour.  Showing trends 

and patterns of area usage, these numbers are not an accurate reporting of the overall number of patrons using the 

facility as patrons who remain in any area for more than 30 minutes are counted more than once. The below charts 

show average number of users for each area, by day of the week, per 30 minute period.   

Combined Facility Totals 

 

   

140



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 4 of 13 

 
 

 
  

141



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 5 of 13 

 
 

   

142



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 6 of 13 

 

 

   

143



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 7 of 13 

 

 

 

 

144



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 8 of 13 

  

Concessions Annual 

Total

Annual 

Total

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17

4oz juice 7 19 35 5 2 2 2 72 $3.55 13.47$        4.97$          $21.99

Apple Sauce 1 1 $1.89 $1.89

Big Pickle 3 3 1 4 4 15 $7.08 $4.25 $1.42 $5.68 $5.68 $24.11

Bottle Water 88 82 43 59 29 26 33 56 86 74 78 654 $208.97 $154.87 $81.23 $111.39 $54.79 $49.08 $62.33 $105.75 $160.48 $135.99 $147.29 $1,272.17

Burger/Rib Sandwich 11 7 12 4 $67.43 $42.93 $73.57 $24.52

Breakfast Sandwich 2 4 3 5 5 7 6 32 $8.96 $17.92 $13.44 $22.40 $22.40 $31.36 $26.88 $143.36

Burrito 3 2 4 15 12 1 18 13 16 8 6 98 $14.25 $6.60 $13.20 $49.51 $39.60 $3.30 $59.40 $42.92 $52.82 $26.42 $19.81 $327.83

canned juice 11-13oz 13 48 6 $36.79 $135.84 $16.98

Candy 88 51 51 56 35 19 28 58 75 64 56 581 $174.42 $96.32 $96.32 $124.09 $82.59 $44.83 $66.05 $136.88 $176.98 $151.01 $127.43 $1,276.92

Chicken Nuggets 36 14 11 11 16 8 21 11 10 10 14 162 $116.61 $44.00 $36.31 $36.30 $50.44 $26.41 $69.31 $33.00 $33.01 $33.03 $46.21 $524.63

Chips 110 73 98 118 115 83 80 89 121 92 88 1067 $275.00 $182.50 $231.63 $278.43 $271.33 $193.48 $186.40 $214.72 $283.11 $219.36 $207.61 $2,543.57

Corn Dog 30 28 30 26 31 20 15 6 26 13 17 242 $82.50 $72.56 $77.79 $67.43 $80.41 $51.84 $38.93 $15.56 $67.44 $33.71 $44.11 $632.28

CLIFF Bar 5 $5.00 $11.80

Crackers 3 8 10 12 7 4 2 5 8 20 11 90 $1.50 $9.44 $11.80 $14.16 $8.26 $4.71 $2.36 $3.54 $9.44 $25.95 $15.59 $106.75

Cup of Noodles 1 12 19 13 3 5 13 28 94 $2.36 $28.32 $42.47 $30.67 $9.44 $11.80 $30.68 $66.08 $221.82

Cupcakes-2 pack 4 4 19 15 17 21 23 6 10 119 $11.32 $11.32 $53.77 $39.62 $48.11 $62.26 $65.09 $16.98 $28.30 $336.77

Extra Cheese 5 5 14 20 5 10 2 14 13 10 8 106 $3.75 $3.75 $9.98 $14.17 $3.55 $7.08 $1.41 $9.93 $9.19 $7.10 $5.65 $75.56

Emergen-C 3 5 6 11 7 23 55 $2.25 $4.72 $5.43 $7.80 $4.96 $16.28 $41.44

Fruit Snacks 34 4 8 5 3 13 43 46 19 31 206 $48.25 $7.55 $15.10 $9.43 $5.65 $21.45 $70.95 $75.92 $31.35 $51.16 $336.81

Gatorade 98 125 124 114 125 135 156 105 142 132 139 1395 $392.00 $500.00 $469.65 $430.00 $471.44 $509.24 $577.15 $396.06 $535.59 $494.14 $528.12 $5,303.39

Granola Bars 17 31 31 31 33 28 72 61 54 49 45 452 $25.17 $43.98 $43.94 $42.52 $46.77 $102.00 $87.78 $73.62 $68.02 $65.16 $598.96

Halloween Candy 12 5 17 $12.00 $4.71 $16.71

Hot Dogs 43 43 22 24 37 20 7 14 26 17 13 266 $155.78 $152.20 $77.85 $84.94 $130.96 $70.77 $24.77 $49.55 $97.85 $64.14 $45.26 $954.07

Hot Pocket 18 18 23 16 6 8 13 7 4 12 125 $63.00 $63.63 $81.39 $56.64 $21.21 $28.32 $46.01 $24.77 $14.15 $42.48 $441.60

Hot Wings 3 3 8 10 12 12 5 53 $11.31 $11.31 $30.17 $37.74 $45.26 $45.27 $18.87 $199.93

Jalapeno Poppers 6 3 13 5 6 7 5 8 20 73 $19.81 $9.91 $42.91 $16.51 $19.82 $23.11 $16.52 $26.40 $66.02 $241.01

Jalapenos 2 2 $1.50 $1.50

Large Coffee 1 12 39 11 12 21 25 27 19 167 $1.89 $22.66 $73.68 $20.79 $22.67 $39.66 $47.22 $51.01 $35.86 $315.44

Large Hot Chocolate-2 packets 1 2 10 21 13 18 18 11 12 106 $1.89 $3.78 $18.89 $39.62 $24.55 $34.01 $33.98 $20.78 $22.68 $200.18

Large Juice 69 68 33 20 17 20 11 83 26 16 17 380 $270.52 $256.43 $124.42 $75.46 $64.13 $75.46 $41.49 $313.00 $98.09 $60.35 $64.15 $1,443.50

Mac&Cheese 2 5 1 3 11 $7.00 $16.50 $3.30 $9.90 $36.70

Muffin 29 29 18 20 18 26 13 40 15 31 239 $79.75 $81.91 $48.11 $56.60 $50.94 $73.58 $39.62 $104.71 $39.62 $84.90 $659.74

Nachos 69 101 96 159 69 110 115 125 133 95 87 1159 $310.50 $454.50 $430.17 $739.47 $325.59 $518.99 $542.57 $589.85 $627.64 $448.26 $410.51 $5,398.05

Nutella &Go pack 10 1 11 $30.00 $2.83 $32.83

Oatmeal 9 11 3 19 16 19 11 11 22 16 137 $12.76 $15.56 $4.25 $26.92 $22.64 $26.92 $15.59 $15.59 $29.76 $22.67 $192.66

Pancake/Sausage stick 4 13 18 13 24 20 25 117 $9.44 $30.67 $42.47 $30.68 $54.27 $47.20 $58.98 $273.71

Peanut butter crackers 11 3 7 6 1 11 9 5 53 $16.50 $4.50 $10.01 $8.51 $1.42 $15.58 $12.77 $7.08 $76.37

Pizza 19 31 27 38 40 24 26 51 38 26 13 333 $104.50 $160.89 $140.13 $197.22 $207.60 $119.37 $140.11 $264.68 $197.20 $134.93 $57.09 $1,723.72

Popcorn 2 2 6 1 1 2 1 15 $2.36 $7.07 $1.18 $1.18 $2.36 $1.18 $15.33

Propel Water 25 57 63 50 35 40 41 53 24 388 $64.77 $147.76 $163.25 $129.61 $90.96 $103.69 $106.34 $137.38 $62.21 $1,005.97

Pudding Cup 5 2 5 4 9 4 5 2 1 6 43 $7.50 $2.84 $7.10 $5.67 $12.76 $5.68 $7.06 $2.84 $1.42 $9.90 $62.77

Razz Tea 8 6 $34.00 $25.48

Salted Peanuts 2 2 4 $4.00 $4.00 $8.00

SanPellegrino 14 14 $40.98 $40.98

Small Coffee 19 34 41 34 33 23 28 34 34 27 24 331 $23.40 $40.12 $48.38 $40.11 $38.93 $27.14 $33.04 $40.12 $40.11 $31.86 $28.32 $391.53

Small Hot Chocolate-1 packet 24 26 12 38 21 22 11 13 30 30 227 $28.32 $30.68 $14.16 $44.84 $24.78 $25.96 $12.98 $15.34 $34.22 $35.40 $266.68

Small Juice 14 52 58 79 92 75 99 69 67 112 124 841 $28.00 $104.00 $110.30 $149.13 $173.65 $141.56 $181.28 $143.49 $153.40 $264.21 $292.59 $1,741.61

Soft Pretzels 17 169 185 204 172 187 230 264 253 239 258 2178 $59.50 $591.50 $654.54 $752.23 $648.82 $701.56 $867.69 $999.49 $950.51 $901.55 $965.61 $8,093.00

String Cheese 10 13 5 9 8 10 55 $11.79 $15.34 $5.90 $9.44 $9.44 $11.80 $63.71

Trail Mix 3 9 9 16 5 15 12 1 14 10 94 $6.62 $19.08 $19.11 $33.94 $8.51 $31.82 $25.44 $4.24 $29.69 $21.20 $199.65

Vitamin Water 1 1 22 34 20 27 17 11 59 46 10 248 $3.77 $3.77 $82.96 $128.23 $75.44 $98.07 $64.12 $41.49 $222.59 $173.53 $37.74 $931.71

Ice Cream Bars 9 13 14 $33.95 $49.02 $52.79

Yogurt 1 1 4 13 4 2 6 31 $2.36 $2.36 $9.44 $30.65 $9.43 $4.72 $14.16 $73.12

Total 800 1042 1055 1245 1188 1079 1250 1379 1552 1361 1364 13159 $2,384.89 $3,157.11 $3,092.41 $3,769.41 $3,426.47 $3,185.55 $3,648.41 $4,247.30 $4,669.61 $4,009.62 $3,911.35 $38,892.03

Number of Sales by Item Value of Sales per Item

145



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 9 of 13 

 

Pro-Shop
Annual 

Total

Annual 

Total

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17

Adult Goggles 24 5 5 43 19 50 35 37 57 39 38 352 $432.00 $90.00 $56.60 $486.76 $215.08 566 396.2 418.85 645.25 441.49 418.85 $4,167.08

Adult Silicon Swim Cap 2 4 1 1 2 1 6 8 25 $18.86 $37.72 $9.43 9.43 18.86 9.43 56.58 75.46 $235.77

Anti fog spray 6 1 1 33.96 5.66 5.66

Animal Kids Goggles 38 29 16 23 29 13 148 $285.00 $175.00 $77.18 $108.55 $136.81 61.34 $843.88

Arm Floats 8 4 4 6 3 11 13 10 59 $30.18 $15.09 15.08 22.63 11.32 41.53 57.54 47.17 $240.54

Beach Balls 2 3 4 1 0 5 3 2 3 2 25 $6.00 $5.78 $7.55 $1.88 9.44 5.66 3.78 5.66 3.77 $49.52

Beach Towel 2 5 1 16 3 2 2 5 6 8 12 62 $36.00 $50.00 $10.00 $150.94 $28.29 $18.86 $18.86 $47.15 $56.59 $75.46 $113.18 $605.33

Boys Swim Trunks 25 14 8 24 11 12 8 12 17 14 18 163 $575.00 $319.00 $154.35 $452.86 $207.57 $226.44 $150.95 $226.43 $320.77 $264.16 $339.62 $3,237.15

Camelbak eddy Water Bottle 1 4 2 7 $25.00 $95.74 $47.17 $167.91

Critter Silicon Swim Cap 5 2 1 2 2 3 4 3 6 28 $60.00 $20.00 $7.55 $15.10 $15.09 $22.65 $30.19 $22.64 $56.59 $249.81

Dive Rings, Sticks or Discs 3 8 8 3 11 15 9 5 3 8 8 81 $27.00 $40.00 $38.31 $14.16 $51.89 $70.78 $42.47 $23.59 $14.16 $37.75 $37.74 $397.85

Diving Sticks 2 2 4 $18.00 $18.00 $36.00

Ear plugs 15 15 17 11 16 8 4 10 7 11 18 132 $71.25 $41.00 $33.00 $20.78 $30.24 $15.12 $7.56 $18.89 $13.23 $25.48 $50.94 $327.49

Flip Flops 3 2 2 6 5 5 10 3 36 $15.75 $8.00 $7.54 $22.63 $18.86 $18.85 $37.72 $11.31 $140.66

Fun Kids Kickboards 4 5 2 7 4 3 6 3 2 36 $56.00 $66.00 $19.44 $66.04 $37.74 $28.30 $56.62 $28.30 $18.87 $377.31

Girls One Piece Suit 21 8 6 19 15 16 17 20 17 16 19 174 $588.00 $200.00 $116.61 $358.53 $283.05 $301.92 $320.78 $377.39 $320.78 $301.92 $358.52 $3,527.50

Goggle Mask 1 2 3 $14.15 $28.30 $42.45

H20 Dumbells 1 1 $15.00 $15.00

Hand Paddles 2 1 1 4 $18.00 $7.55 $7.55 $33.10

Head Phones 2 4 1 5 1 1 2 16 $14.00 $22.00 $4.72 $23.60 $4.72 $9.44 $78.48

Junior Goggles 4 48 62 39 21 38 26 46 53 55 48 440 $32.00 $480.00 $600.10 $367.81 $198.08 $358.43 $253.70 $433.87 $499.87 $518.73 $452.76 $4,195.35

Lip Balm 1 2 1 4 $2.36 $4.72 $1.89 $8.97

Lock 33 15 13 21 14 23 22 28 27 17 14 227 $330.00 $95.00 $62.76 $99.10 $66.07 $108.56 $103.83 $127.36 $127.43 $80.24 $66.06 $1,266.41

Men's Swim Trunks 14 14 8 13 9 8 13 10 26 13 15 143 $350.00 $350.00 $191.48 $306.55 $212.23 $188.64 $306.55 $234.47 $613.16 $306.56 $353.71 $3,413.35

Mesh Bag 1 2 1 1 5 $10.00 $18.87 $9.44 $9.43 $47.74

Noodles 4 5 4 6 3 6 5 8 3 4 48 $34.00 $28.50 $19.44 $28.31 $14.15 $28.31 $23.58 $37.75 $14.15 $18.87 $247.06

Nose Plugs 45 27 21 25 34 23 14 14 20 16 42 281 $135.00 $81.00 $61.13 $70.75 $96.22 $65.09 $39.62 $39.62 $56.60 $45.28 $118.88 $809.19

Regular Kickboards 1 2 3 2 2 1 3 2 16 $16.00 $19.43 $28.29 $18.86 $18.87 $9.43 $28.30 $18.87 $158.05

Retro Women Suit 4 6 1 11 $113.20 $169.80 $28.30 $311.30

Shammy Towel 2 1 1 1 1 6 $28.00 $10.00 $9.43 $9.43 $9.43 $66.29

Swim Diapers 18 19 15 32 27 14 14 19 14 20 24 216 $36.00 $38.00 $28.89 $60.47 $50.96 $26.45 $26.44 $35.98 $26.41 $37.80 $45.35 $412.75

Water Squirts 2 3 6 1 6 18 $20.00 $15.00 $28.59 $4.72 $28.30 $96.61

Water Wings 4 2 6 $12.00 $6.00 $18.00

Women's Multi-Color one piece suit 4 5 7 1 1 18 $84.00 $200.49 $277.34 $39.62 $39.63 $641.08

Women's Solid Color One Piece Suit 13 11 5 9 6 5 4 10 27 26 20 136 $416.00 $366.00 $168.04 $297.17 $198.12 $165.10 $132.08 $330.20 $891.54 $858.51 $660.40 $4,483.16

Work out gloves 1 1 3 1 2 8 $15.00 $14.15 $42.45 $14.15 $18.86 $104.61

YKFC Tank Top 1 2 1 4 $20.00 $37.74 $18.87 $76.61

YKFC Bag 1 2 $4.72 $9.43

YKFC T-Shirt 11 6 1 2 1 2 3 1 27 $330.00 $160.00 $23.58 $47.16 $23.58 $47.17 $70.75 $23.58 $725.82

Star Wars Swim Shorts 2 1 1 $49.06 $24.53 $24.53

Shorty Swim Suit 3 0 1 4 $141.51 $141.51 $47.17 $188.68

YKFC water bottle 2 1 3 1 7 $22.64 $23.58 $70.74 $11.32 $128.28

Character Towel 3 56.61

Exercise Towel 1 9.43

Penguin Tube 1 5.66

Total 297 259 215 330 262 253 205 260 322 294 308 2977 $3,913.00 $2,850.50 $2,092.54 $3,365.62 $2,231.18 $2,490.62 $2,239.62 $2,777.95 $4,032.94 $3,483.89 $3,253.72 $31,983.46

Number of Sales by Item Value of Sales per Item

146



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 10 of 13 

HeathFitness Operating Budget 

   

Revenue Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Total Budgeted %

Member Fees $16,840 $12,543 $9,699 $26,378 $11,867 $43,140 $10,624 $14,985 $10,739 $10,064 $11,488 $178,366 $336,000

Daily Admissions $5,433 $6,323 $5,084 $6,218 $5,385 $6,520 $3,573 $9,659 $6,299 $5,530 $4,692 $64,716 w/memberships

Rentals $940 $945 $1,375 $1,050 $1,060 $595 $520 $605 $895 $1,266 $1,502 $10,753 $15,000

Programming $2,300 $305 $3,580 $2,022 $3,165 $747 $5,962 $5,555 $11,532 $710 $3,329 $39,207 $110,000

Concessions $2,037 $3,148 $3,095 $3,769 $3,426 $3,186 $3,648 $4,247 $4,671 $4,011 $3,911 $39,150 $69,000

Pro Shop $3,883 $2,879 $2,034 $3,470 $2,231 $2,491 $2,240 $2,778 $4,033 $3,473 $3,254 $32,764 $48,000

Miscellaneous $0 $0 $0 $596 $0 $454 $0 $0 $467 $91 $0 $1,608 $0

Monthly Revenue Total $31,433 $26,142 $24,867 $43,503 $27,134 $56,677 $26,567 $37,829 $38,170 $25,053 $28,177 $365,553 $578,000

Expenses Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Total Budgeted

FT Staff Wages $6,991 $10,664 $15,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $15,000 $10,000 $10,000 $117,656 $135,000

PT Staff Wages $10,725 $22,826 $29,032 $19,752 $19,713 $19,481 $18,583 $30,762 $30,365 $20,679 $19,168 $241,084 $381,734

Benefits $2,687 $5,023 $6,605 $4,463 $4,457 $4,422 $4,287 $4,614 $6,805 $6,049 $5,814 $55,227 $96,410

Management $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $128,333 $140,000

Liability Insurance $1,255 $1,255 $1,255 $1,255 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $13,595 $15,063

Staff Meetings $583 $229 $843 $100 $577 $2,332 $2,200

Cost of Living Adjustment $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $33,000 $36,000

Bank Fees $604 $500 $547 $1,139 $636 $524 $809 $780 $952 $611 $618 $7,721 $13,000

Advertising/Marketing $181 $494 $188 $103 $522 $699 $39 $103 $2,329 $10,000

Sub-Contractor Maintenance Cost $43 $5,985 $5,985 $5,985 $17,998 $35,790

Building Maintenance Contingency Reserve $2,920 $2,920 $3,300

Exercise Equipment Maintenance $422 $422 $5,600

Pool/Building Maintenance Supplies $73 $222 $78 $116 $5,803 $310 $114 $46 $310 $0 $256 $7,329 $5,000

Chemical Supplies $6,973 $4,637 $36 $11,645 $26,500

Paper and Cleaning Products $140 $3,724 $297 $133 $897 $98 $1,471 $315 $7,075 $22,000

Point of Sale System $1,026 $274 $263 $462 $282 $599 $338 $399 $380 $335 $295 $4,652 $5,889

Office Supplies $133 $221 $39 $92 $46 $7 $83 $72 $693 $4,000

Postage $5 $5 $1,000

Unforeseen Expense $0 $1,500

Fitness Items $51 $144 $147 $125 $466 $1,500

Aquatics Program Items $221 $595 $39 $70 $217 $70 $51 $1,263 $2,500

Concession Items $926 $2,844 $1,795 $1,471 $3,053 $1,523 $3,143 $2,278 $3,163 $2,502 $2,786 $25,484 $42,000

Pro-Shop Items $0 $3,637 $793 $196 $1,396 $2,200 $397 $1,115 $3,539 $3,120 $761 $17,155 $32,000

Cable TV $0 $0 $294 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $1,479 $1,908

Shipping $153 $76 $228 $20,000

Monthly Expenditures $38,996 $70,114 $75,717 $58,716 $62,335 $61,668 $54,949 $72,965 $77,475 $70,907 $56,248 $700,091 $1,039,894

147



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 11 of 13 

Daily Patron Counts Total for Facility 

 

 

 

5/2/2017 5/3/2017 5/4/2017 5/5/2017 5/6/2017 5/7/2017 5/9/2017 5/10/2017 5/11/2017 5/12/2017 5/13/2017 5/14/2017 5/16/2017 5/17/2017 5/18/2017 5/19/2017 5/20/2017 5/21/2017 5/23/2017 5/24/2017 5/25/2017 5/26/2017 5/27/2017 5/28/2017 5/30/2017 5/31/2017

Time Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday

Total: 
6:00am 8 10 3 2 1 2 4 4 3 3 1 4 2 2 3 5 3 4

6:30am 12 8 7 7 6 9 8 6 9 4 5 5 8 5 10 6 9 5

7:00am 8 9 9 5 1 3 4 5 7 6 5 4 8 4 3 1 8 1

7:30am 3 2 3 3 2 1 0 4 0 0 5 6 3 3 3 2 3 1

8:00am 3 4 2 1 4 2 3 2 4 3 8 4 4 0 5 3 2 3

8:30am 4 4 3 5 2 3 4 6 5 4 7 5 5 1 11 2 4 2

9:00am 5 5 3 8 0 5 6 3 10 4 3 4 6 4 2 9 11 10 11 6 4 1

9:30am 6 3 6 6 0 7 6 5 7 9 15 36 4 4 11 9 10 11 12 16 16 0

10:00am 7 6 5 2 8 7 5 2 8 5 13 10 50 40 7 4 17 6 7 1 12 5 16 6 20 12

10:30am 16 1 11 8 7 6 16 6 3 4 18 14 53 35 14 0 22 9 5 8 12 2 11 14 33 13

11:00am 18 7 10 9 6 3 18 7 4 4 22 19 50 3 14 4 24 6 4 14 11 8 16 14 28 6

11:30am 19 10 11 7 12 6 7 3 2 4 20 29 25 2 1 3 24 5 10 15 2 10 17 16 5 6

12:00pm 5 11 11 0 23 11 9 5 3 4 18 16 0 2 4 3 10 7 9 16 5 10 8 8 3 1

12:30pm 7 0 9 4 27 18 9 3 7 5 15 14 20 3 8 7 8 9 10 6 8 4 12 7 7 6

1:00pm 8 4 1 3 20 9 3 3 0 4 18 21 42 3 7 9 7 19 15 3 12 4 14 5 1 9

1:30pm 2 13 4 1 21 13 3 3 2 11 18 19 64 42 1 7 8 16 35 12 23 19 15 3 1 8

2:00pm 4 11 11 22 21 19 6 12 13 29 19 22 43 1 2 11 14 35 24 13 38 19 21 15 14 11

2:30pm 1 9 8 21 18 23 7 2 16 33 32 20 3 3 2 12 22 36 25 12 28 20 15 3 21 10

3:00pm 4 11 1 1 25 20 3 8 5 18 14 28 6 7 4 14 22 46 25 30 22 26 51 28 23 11

3:30pm 4 0 4 6 30 22 5 2 3 16 25 26 6 8 3 18 29 41 9 36 23 24 51 29 23 13

4:00pm 8 0 5 5 17 22 9 3 6 6 21 21 4 9 3 10 36 38 15 29 23 22 44 26 9 9

4:30pm 11 7 2 3 16 25 6 8 4 5 18 14 11 10 5 11 15 21 23 29 16 19 39 34 6 4

5:00pm 21 16 13 6 11 14 18 14 22 12 35 16 22 9 9 10 25 26 18 29 12 20 21 26 13 5

5:30pm 46 22 15 10 8 18 31 20 35 21 35 17 28 22 8 14 28 24 9 12 18 23 12 28 16 10

6:00pm 43 17 37 20 15 20 34 37 31 25 29 24 14 16 15 14 20 23 15 16 27 21 12 18 17 14

6:30pm 24 17 27 15 12 29 31 22 32 10 41 22 26 11 25 6 23 22 36 29 41 14 44 35 35 14

7:00pm 18 9 21 26 21 25 38 12 40 18 41 23 17 12 31 12 9 20 40 36 38 38 39 33 37 24

7:30pm 7 7 13 26 20 29 25 16 17 22 56 18 19 13 25 18 11 28 12 11 50 31 6 22 37 25

8:00pm 13 5 22 30 14 17 19 22 21 23 38 9 21 16 26 18 6 23 21 44 56 28 27 36 38 27

8:30pm 3 0 0 11 3 15 9 6 10 5 20 0 11 6 0 5 0 18 0 0 0 4 1 3 0 9

Total: 321 203 260 258 330 353 325 234 302 294 579 402 581 333 255 246 393 478 415 437 533 413 514 409 436 264

148



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 12 of 13 

Daily Patron Counts By Area 

     

5/2/2017 5/3/2017 5/4/2017 5/5/2017 5/6/2017 5/7/2017 5/9/2017 5/10/2017 5/11/2017 5/12/2017 5/13/2017 5/14/2017 5/16/2017 5/17/2017 5/18/2017 5/19/2017 5/20/2017 5/21/2017 5/23/2017 5/24/2017 5/25/2017 5/26/2017 5/27/2017 5/28/2017 5/30/2017 5/31/2017

Time Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday

Studio
6:00am 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6:30am 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0

7:00am 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

7:30am 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8:00am 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8:30am 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9:00am 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9:30am 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00am 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:30am 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0

11:00am 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 7 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 8 0 7 0 3 0 0

11:30am 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 3 7 9 0 7 0 3 1 0

12:00pm 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 7 0 0 0 0

12:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0

1:30pm 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 3 0 0 0 0 6 1 10 0 6 7 0 0 0 0

2:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 3 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 8 7 0 2 0 0

2:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 5 4 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0

3:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 7 2 0 0

3:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 6 2 0 0 0 2 5 0 0

4:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 8 2 0 0 0 2 5 0 0

4:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 2 0 0 1 2 0 0 0

5:00pm 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 1 12 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 1

5:30pm 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 3 0 2 3 8 2 1 0 0 0 0 6 4 0 2 0 4

6:00pm 1 5 11 0 0 0 2 5 6 4 0 4 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 6 1 0 4 0 6

6:30pm 4 5 8 0 0 0 1 3 12 0 0 4 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 8 1 0 4 2 6

7:00pm 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 2 0 0 5

7:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 2 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 1 5

8:00pm 3 0 3 0 0 0 7 1 4 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 5

8:30pm 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 6 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

Total: 23 13 31 4 0 0 20 13 66 13 16 45 28 10 4 5 25 33 24 27 61 53 15 33 4 37

5/2/2017 5/3/2017 5/4/2017 5/5/2017 5/6/2017 5/7/2017 5/9/2017 5/10/2017 5/11/2017 5/12/2017 5/13/2017 5/14/2017 5/16/2017 5/17/2017 5/18/2017 5/19/2017 5/20/2017 5/21/2017 5/23/2017 5/24/2017 5/25/2017 5/26/2017 5/27/2017 5/28/2017 5/30/2017 5/31/2017

Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday

Fitness
6:00am 8 7 3 1 1 2 4 4 3 3 1 4 1 1 3 4 3 4

6:30am 7 7 3 2 3 4 4 2 5 4 3 5 3 3 5 5 6 4

7:00am 6 2 5 5 1 1 0 1 2 2 1 3 3 4 1 1 4 1

7:30am 2 2 3 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 5 0 3 1 1 1 1

8:00am 2 3 0 0 1 2 1 1 1 2 4 3 0 0 1 1 0 2

8:30am 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 3 1 2 3 2 2 0 1 1 1 1

9:00am 1 2 2 2 3 2 2 2 4 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 1 1 1 6 0 0

9:30am 2 0 3 4 4 2 2 1 1 5 0 1 0 1 5 1 1 3 1 9 0 0

10:00am 5 5 2 0 1 3 2 1 1 2 7 4 0 1 5 0 7 1 4 0 10 1 10 0 4 0

10:30am 9 0 9 1 3 2 14 4 1 3 7 4 3 2 13 0 5 1 4 1 10 0 5 7 14 0

11:00am 16 5 9 0 2 2 14 4 2 4 6 6 0 3 14 1 4 0 3 1 10 0 2 5 14 2

11:30am 15 2 9 0 2 1 0 1 1 4 5 5 0 2 0 0 6 1 3 2 2 1 3 5 1 2

12:00pm 1 4 2 0 2 5 0 3 3 4 4 3 0 1 3 2 4 1 5 2 2 2 6 2 3 1

12:30pm 6 0 4 4 1 6 3 1 5 4 5 3 0 2 4 5 2 3 5 4 3 3 4 2 7 5

1:00pm 5 4 1 3 0 3 3 2 0 4 6 3 0 2 2 4 0 6 2 2 3 4 4 3 1 5

1:30pm 0 3 3 1 0 4 1 1 1 4 5 1 2 3 1 3 1 4 5 2 1 3 5 1 1 5

2:00pm 3 3 1 5 0 3 3 1 3 5 3 3 3 1 0 5 4 4 6 3 5 0 3 4 1 4

2:30pm 1 9 0 3 0 4 3 1 8 5 5 2 2 1 1 3 4 6 3 7 5 4 0 3 2 3

3:00pm 4 11 1 1 0 2 1 0 4 6 2 4 4 3 2 3 3 5 3 5 2 4 1 4 2 2

3:30pm 3 0 2 5 0 5 2 1 3 5 5 5 2 3 1 3 1 3 1 1 3 4 6 5 3 0

4:00pm 4 0 4 3 3 5 4 1 4 3 2 6 2 3 3 2 3 3 4 4 11 5 6 0 2 2

4:30pm 6 0 2 1 3 3 3 5 1 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 3 4 6 7 10 5 3 4 0 3

5:00pm 7 0 2 1 3 4 5 6 5 3 6 3 3 4 7 3 6 4 2 7 11 6 2 9 4 2

5:30pm 21 0 0 3 4 2 10 7 6 4 6 3 14 8 6 3 3 4 0 5 8 7 3 8 7 6

6:00pm 16 0 4 3 5 2 9 10 5 6 4 4 4 7 3 2 0 2 0 7 9 5 1 6 6 6

6:30pm 0 0 7 2 4 5 8 9 5 3 3 5 7 3 5 2 0 3 0 5 4 4 4 2 4 3

7:00pm 0 0 8 7 4 4 9 2 8 2 5 5 9 3 1 2 1 4 0 7 4 6 3 0 7 5

7:30pm 0 0 6 7 4 2 10 4 2 1 5 3 6 1 3 3 0 7 0 5 7 6 2 3 9 3

8:00pm 0 0 10 9 6 3 6 3 4 2 1 1 9 5 5 4 0 3 0 8 7 5 0 4 0 5

8:30pm 0 0 0 11 3 0 5 5 4 5 0 0 4 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 3 0 3

Total: 152 71 107 88 57 70 127 88 90 98 101 75 90 78 96 83 64 69 69 98 143 94 89 80 107 80

5/2/2017 5/3/2017 5/4/2017 5/5/2017 5/6/2017 5/7/2017 5/9/2017 5/10/2017 5/11/2017 5/12/2017 5/13/2017 5/14/2017 5/16/2017 5/17/2017 5/18/2017 5/19/2017 5/20/2017 5/21/2017 5/23/2017 5/24/2017 5/25/2017 5/26/2017 5/27/2017 5/28/2017 5/30/2017 5/31/2017

Time Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday

Pool
6:00am 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0

6:30am 4 1 3 4 3 5 3 3 4 0 2 0 4 1 5 1 2 1

7:00am 2 0 3 0 0 1 4 2 5 1 4 0 4 0 2 0 3 0

7:30am 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 3 0 0 4 1 3 0 2 1 0 0

8:00am 1 1 1 1 3 0 2 1 3 1 2 1 2 0 4 1 2 1

8:30am 2 1 1 4 1 1 1 2 3 1 3 2 3 1 8 0 3 1

9:00am 3 2 1 6 2 2 3 0 5 2 0 1 3 2 0 5 10 8 10 0 2 1

9:30am 2 2 2 2 3 4 3 4 3 2 14 35 2 3 3 7 9 7 9 6 15 0

10:00am 2 1 2 1 7 4 2 0 5 2 4 6 50 39 1 3 10 4 2 0 2 4 4 6 14 10

10:30am 1 1 1 7 4 4 2 2 2 0 10 4 50 33 0 0 16 5 1 7 1 1 3 4 19 12

11:00am 2 2 1 4 2 1 4 3 1 0 14 6 50 0 0 3 18 2 1 5 0 1 13 6 14 4

11:30am 0 8 2 7 9 5 6 1 1 0 15 17 25 0 1 3 18 1 0 4 0 1 13 7 3 4

12:00pm 2 5 8 0 18 6 9 2 0 0 10 10 0 1 1 0 6 6 4 5 3 0 2 4 0 0

12:30pm 1 0 5 0 22 11 6 2 2 0 10 11 20 1 4 2 5 6 4 2 4 1 5 5 0 1

1:00pm 2 0 0 0 20 5 0 1 0 0 12 17 42 0 5 4 4 10 13 1 4 0 10 2 0 4

1:30pm 2 10 0 0 21 9 0 0 1 6 9 15 60 39 0 1 1 10 20 9 16 9 7 1 0 3

2:00pm 0 8 10 15 21 15 2 10 9 23 12 11 39 0 1 6 5 25 18 10 21 11 14 8 13 7

2:30pm 0 0 8 16 15 18 3 0 8 27 27 11 1 2 1 9 12 23 22 5 19 8 13 0 19 7

3:00pm 0 0 0 0 23 18 2 8 1 10 11 17 2 4 0 11 17 32 22 25 19 18 37 21 21 9

3:30pm 0 0 0 1 26 17 3 1 0 8 17 14 4 5 2 14 24 29 6 32 17 18 39 17 18 13

4:00pm 4 0 0 2 12 17 5 2 2 0 16 10 2 6 0 8 30 24 6 24 11 17 35 18 7 7

4:30pm 5 6 0 2 11 20 3 3 2 2 13 12 6 6 2 8 10 17 12 21 6 13 32 25 5 0

5:00pm 14 13 6 3 4 7 13 7 5 5 21 10 12 2 0 5 19 18 13 19 1 11 15 15 8 2

5:30pm 19 20 13 7 2 14 21 13 15 13 26 12 11 5 0 10 25 17 8 7 4 12 9 16 8 0

6:00pm 26 12 20 17 9 18 22 21 17 15 24 16 10 8 11 11 20 17 14 5 7 15 11 7 10 0

6:30pm 19 9 12 13 8 24 21 9 15 7 36 13 13 4 18 3 19 17 34 24 28 9 39 28 29 4

7:00pm 17 7 9 15 15 18 29 10 19 12 34 18 6 6 25 10 8 15 38 28 21 27 34 30 28 13

7:30pm 7 7 7 19 14 24 7 9 14 18 47 13 5 10 18 15 9 17 11 6 35 19 3 15 25 14

8:00pm 8 0 7 20 5 13 4 16 13 16 33 8 4 10 17 13 6 17 21 34 41 17 25 31 38 15

8:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 4 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total: 146 119 122 166 273 283 178 133 146 183 422 251 441 224 127 148 285 330 299 295 296 235 369 266 306 134

5/2/2017 5/3/2017 5/4/2017 5/5/2017 5/6/2017 5/7/2017 5/9/2017 5/10/2017 5/11/2017 5/12/2017 5/13/2017 5/14/2017 5/16/2017 5/17/2017 5/18/2017 5/19/2017 5/20/2017 5/21/2017 5/23/2017 5/24/2017 5/25/2017 5/26/2017 5/27/2017 5/28/2017 5/30/2017 5/31/2017

Time Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday Tuesday Wednesday

Spa
6:00am 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6:30am 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

7:00am 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0

7:30am 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0

8:00am 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 1 0 0

8:30am 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 2 1 0 0

9:00am 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 0

9:30am 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 3 2 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 1 2 1 1 0

10:00am 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 2 0 2 2

10:30am 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 3 0 0 1

11:00am 0 0 0 3 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0

11:30am 3 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 0

12:00pm 1 2 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0

12:30pm 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 3 0 0 0

1:00pm 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

1:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 3 0 1 0 1 0 0 3 1 0 0

2:00pm 1 0 0 2 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 5 1 0 1 0 0 6 0 0 4 1 4 1 0 0

2:30pm 0 0 0 2 3 1 1 1 0 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 2 0 0 0

3:00pm 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 4 0 0 2 0 2 5 0 0 1 4 6 1 0 0

3:30pm 1 0 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 1 3 5 0 0 0 1 3 3 0 3 3 2 4 2 2 0

4:00pm 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 3 5 0 0 0 0 1 3 3 1 1 0 1 3 0 0

4:30pm 0 1 0 0 2 2 0 0 1 1 3 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 2 5 1 1

5:00pm 0 3 2 2 4 3 0 0 0 2 8 2 0 1 2 1 0 4 3 3 0 0 4 2 1 0

5:30pm 3 0 2 0 2 2 0 0 2 1 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 2 1 0

6:00pm 0 0 2 0 1 0 1 1 3 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 1 4 5 0 0 1 1 2

6:30pm 1 3 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 6 4 2 0 4 1 2 0 1 0 1 1 0 1

7:00pm 1 2 1 4 2 3 0 0 1 4 2 0 2 3 5 0 0 1 2 1 4 5 0 3 2 1

7:30pm 0 0 0 0 2 3 1 1 0 3 4 2 3 2 4 0 2 4 1 0 2 6 1 4 2 3

8:00pm 2 5 2 1 3 1 2 2 0 5 4 0 2 1 4 1 0 3 0 2 0 6 2 1 0 2

8:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 31 22 21 28 10 19 46 23 17 33 31 41 30 19 13

149



YKFC Monthly Report May 2017 06/20/2017 

  
 

Page 13 of 13 

May 2017 Monthly Facility Averages 

 

May 2017 Monthly Area Averages  

 

Total Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Total Saturdays Sundays 

6:00am 3.4 4.2 2.75 3.75 6:00am

6:30am 8.8 6.2 7.5 6 6:30am

7:00am 6.4 4.6 5.25 3.75 7:00am

7:30am 2.2 1.4 2.75 3.75 7:30am

8:00am 3.4 2.4 4.5 2.5 8:00am

8:30am 4 2.8 6.25 4.5 8:30am

9:00am 5.2 5.4 5.5 8.25 9:00am 3

9:30am 10.6 11 6.5 7.25 9:30am 9

10:00am 17.8 12.2 8 4 10:00am 13.5 7.25

10:30am 24.6 12.6 10 3.5 10:30am 14.5 10.75

11:00am 23.6 7.4 9.75 6.25 11:00am 17 10.5

11:30am 13.2 7.2 4 6 11:30am 18.25 14

12:00pm 5.2 7 5.75 4.25 12:00pm 14.75 10.5

12:30pm 10.6 3.6 8 5 12:30pm 15.5 12

1:00pm 13.8 4.4 5 5 1:00pm 14.75 13.5

1:30pm 21 15.6 7.5 9.5 1:30pm 15.5 12.75

2:00pm 18.2 9.6 16 20.25 2:00pm 18.75 22.75

2:30pm 11.4 7.2 13.5 21.5 2:30pm 21.75 20.5

3:00pm 12.2 13.4 8 14.75 3:00pm 28 30.5

3:30pm 9.4 11.8 8.25 16 3:30pm 33.75 29.5

4:00pm 9 10 9.25 10.75 4:00pm 29.5 26.75

4:30pm 11.4 11.6 6.75 9.5 4:30pm 22 23.5

5:00pm 18.4 14.6 14 12 5:00pm 23 20.5

5:30pm 26 17.2 19 17 5:30pm 20.75 21.75

6:00pm 24.6 20 27.5 20 6:00pm 19 21.25

6:30pm 30.4 18.6 31.25 11.25 6:30pm 30 27

7:00pm 30 18.6 32.5 23.5 7:00pm 27.5 25.25

7:30pm 20 14.4 26.25 24.25 7:30pm 23.25 24.25

8:00pm 22.4 22.8 31.25 24.75 8:00pm 21.25 21.25

8:30pm 4.6 4.2 2.5 6.25 8:30pm 6 9

Studio Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Studio Saturdays Sundays Fitness Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Fitness Saturdays Sundays Pool Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Pool Saturdays Sundays Spa Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Spa Saturdays Sundays 

6:00am 0 0 0 0.25 6:00am 6:00am 3.2 3.4 2.75 3.25 6:00am 6:00am 0.2 0.8 0 0.25 6:00am 6:00am 0 0 0 0 6:00am

6:30am 0.2 0.2 0.5 0.5 6:30am 6:30am 4.8 4.4 3.75 3.5 6:30am 6:30am 3.4 1.6 3.25 2 6:30am 6:30am 0.4 0 0 0 6:30am

7:00am 0 0.2 0.25 0.5 7:00am 7:00am 3.2 2 1.75 2.5 7:00am 7:00am 2.8 0.4 3.25 0.5 7:00am 7:00am 0.4 2 0 0.25 7:00am

7:30am 0 0 0 0 7:30am 7:30am 0.8 1.4 1.25 2.5 7:30am 7:30am 1 0 1.5 1.25 7:30am 7:30am 0.4 0 0 0 7:30am

8:00am 0 0 0 0 8:00am 8:00am 0.8 1.8 1.5 1.25 8:00am 8:00am 2.2 0.6 2.25 1 8:00am 8:00am 0.4 0 0.75 0.25 8:00am

8:30am 0 0 0 0 8:30am 8:30am 1.4 1.4 2 1.75 8:30am 8:30am 2.4 1 3.25 2 8:30am 8:30am 0.2 0.4 1 0.75 8:30am

9:00am 0 0.2 0 0 9:00am 0 9:00am 1.6 1.4 1.75 2.25 9:00am 3.25 9:00am 2.4 3.4 3 5.75 9:00am 1 9:00am 1.2 0.4 0.75 0.25 9:00am 0

9:30am 0.2 0 0 0 9:30am 0 9:30am 1 0.8 1.75 1.75 9:30am 5.75 9:30am 8.4 9.8 3.75 4.25 9:30am 3.5 9:30am 1 0.4 1 1.25 9:30am 1.75

10:00am 0 0 0 0 10:00am 0.5 0 10:00am 3 1.4 4.5 0.75 10:00am 6.25 2 10:00am 14 10 2.5 2.5 10:00am 6.25 5 10:00am 0.8 0.8 1 0.75 10:00am 0.5 0.25

10:30am 1.2 0 0 0 10:30am 0.25 2.25 10:30am 8.8 1.4 8.25 1 10:30am 5 3.5 10:30am 14.6 11 1 2 10:30am 8.25 4.25 10:30am 0 0.2 0.75 0.5 10:30am 1 0.75

11:00am 0 1.6 0 2.25 11:00am 0.5 3.25 11:00am 9.4 3 8.75 1.25 11:00am 3.5 3.25 11:00am 14.2 2.8 0.5 2 11:00am 11.75 3.75 11:00am 0 0 0.5 0.75 11:00am 1.25 0.25

11:30am 1.8 1.8 0 1.75 11:30am 0 3.25 11:30am 3.8 1.8 3 1.25 11:30am 4 3 11:30am 6.8 3.4 1 2.75 11:30am 13.75 7.5 11:30am 0.8 0.2 0 0.25 11:30am 0.5 0.25

12:00pm 0.2 1.8 0 1.75 12:00pm 0.75 0.25 12:00pm 1.8 2.2 2.5 2 12:00pm 4 2.75 12:00pm 3 2.6 3 0 12:00pm 9 6.5 12:00pm 0.2 0.4 0.25 0.5 12:00pm 1 1

12:30pm 0 0 0 0 12:30pm 0.25 0 12:30pm 4.2 2.4 4 4 12:30pm 3 3.5 12:30pm 6.2 1.2 3.75 0.75 12:30pm 10.5 8.25 12:30pm 0.2 0 0.25 0.25 12:30pm 1.75 0.25

1:00pm 0 0 1 0 1:00pm 0.75 0.25 1:00pm 2.2 3 1.5 3.75 1:00pm 2.5 3.75 1:00pm 11.4 1.2 2.25 1 1:00pm 11.5 8.5 1:00pm 0.2 0.2 0.25 0.25 1:00pm 0 1

1:30pm 2 0 1.75 1.75 1:30pm 2.5 1 1:30pm 1.8 2.8 1.5 2.75 1:30pm 2.75 2.5 1:30pm 16.4 12.2 4.25 4 1:30pm 9.5 8.75 1:30pm 0.8 0.6 0 1 1:30pm 0.75 0.5

2:00pm 0 0 2 1.75 2:00pm 2.25 1.25 2:00pm 3.2 2.4 2.25 3.75 2:00pm 2.5 3.5 2:00pm 14.4 7 10.25 13.75 2:00pm 13 14.75 2:00pm 0.6 0.2 1.5 1 2:00pm 1 3.25

2:30pm 0 0 0 2 2:30pm 1.25 2 2:30pm 2.2 4.2 3.5 3.75 2:30pm 2.25 3.75 2:30pm 9 2.8 9 15 2:30pm 16.75 13 2:30pm 0.2 0.2 1 0.75 2:30pm 1.5 1.75

3:00pm 0 0 0 0 3:00pm 1.75 2.25 3:00pm 2.8 4.2 2.25 3.5 3:00pm 1.5 3.75 3:00pm 9.4 9.2 5 9.75 3:00pm 22 22 3:00pm 0 0 0.75 1.5 3:00pm 2.75 2.5

3:30pm 0.4 0 0 0.5 3:30pm 0.75 3.25 3:30pm 2.2 1 2.25 4.25 3:30pm 3 4.5 3:30pm 6.2 10.2 4.75 10.25 3:30pm 26.5 19.25 3:30pm 0.6 0.6 1.25 1 3:30pm 3.5 2.5

4:00pm 0.4 0 0 0 4:00pm 1 3.25 4:00pm 3.2 2 5.5 3.25 4:00pm 3.5 3.5 4:00pm 4.8 7.8 3.25 6.75 4:00pm 23.25 17.25 4:00pm 0.6 0.2 0.5 0.75 4:00pm 1.75 2.75

4:30pm 0.4 0 0.25 0.25 4:30pm 1 0 4:30pm 3.4 3.6 3.75 2.75 4:30pm 2.75 3.25 4:30pm 6.2 7.2 2.5 6.25 4:30pm 16.5 18.5 4:30pm 1.4 0.8 0.25 0.25 4:30pm 1.75 1.75

5:00pm 1.4 0.8 3.75 1.5 5:00pm 0 0.25 5:00pm 4.2 3.8 6.25 3.25 5:00pm 4.25 5 5:00pm 12 8.6 3 6 5:00pm 14.75 12.5 5:00pm 0.8 1.4 1 1.25 5:00pm 4 2.75

5:30pm 1.2 2.8 5 2 5:30pm 0 1 5:30pm 10.4 5.2 5 4.25 5:30pm 4 4.25 5:30pm 13.4 9 8 10.5 5:30pm 15.5 14.75 5:30pm 1 0.2 1 0.25 5:30pm 1.25 1.75

6:00pm 0.6 3.2 6 1.5 6:00pm 0 2 6:00pm 7 6 5.25 4 6:00pm 2.5 3.5 6:00pm 16.4 9.2 13.75 14.5 6:00pm 16 14.5 6:00pm 0.6 1.6 2.5 0 6:00pm 0.5 1.25

6:30pm 1.4 2.8 7 0.5 6:30pm 0 2.25 6:30pm 3.8 4 5.25 2.75 6:30pm 2.75 3.75 6:30pm 23.2 10 18.25 8 6:30pm 25.5 20.5 6:30pm 2 1.8 0.75 0 6:30pm 1.75 0.5

7:00pm 0 1 6 0 7:00pm 0.5 0 7:00pm 5 3.4 5.25 4.25 7:00pm 3.25 3.25 7:00pm 23.6 12.8 18.5 16 7:00pm 22.75 20.25 7:00pm 1.4 1.4 2.75 3.25 7:00pm 1 1.75

7:30pm 2.6 1.4 1.75 0 7:30pm 0 0 7:30pm 5 2.6 4.5 4.25 7:30pm 2.75 3.75 7:30pm 11 9.2 18.5 17.75 7:30pm 18.25 17.25 7:30pm 1.4 1.2 1.5 2.25 7:30pm 2.25 3.25

8:00pm 3.2 1.2 3.75 0 8:00pm 0 0 8:00pm 3 4.2 6.5 5 8:00pm 1.75 2.75 8:00pm 15 15 19.5 16.5 8:00pm 17.25 17.25 8:00pm 1.2 2.4 1.5 3.25 8:00pm 2.25 1.25

8:30pm 2.6 1 1.5 0 8:30pm 0 0 8:30pm 1.8 1.8 1 6.25 8:30pm 1 0.75 8:30pm 0 1 0 0 8:30pm 4.25 8.25 8:30pm 0.2 0.4 0 0 8:30pm 0.75 0

150



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

151



1 of 2 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  

907-543-1384 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 
 

Council Meetings and Events 
Regular City Council Meeting June 27, 2017 
Have not yet received a response from ONC on possible dates for the Joint Meeting. 
 
Website 
The website redesign is in progress; over the next few months there will continue to be 
changes to our current page structure and layout. The Office is also going page by page 
amending fonts, summaries, photos and structure to provide for more conformity within 
the site and ease of use. We are trying to consolidate (and make current) the forms and 
applications on the site to one location.  
 
With the Photo Contest complete, the Website design team has over 270 user generated 
content that we can use on our website. The design team will be presenting the Office 
with three different design concepts within the next two weeks.  
 
Facebook Photo Contest 
What a successes! For a fraction of the cost of a professional photographer the City has a 
huge selection of Bethel photos to use for publications, website and social media. It was 
such a success we are already getting requests for future contests.   
 
Election 
The Office has completed the 2017 Election Calendar and begun working on election 
documents and materials.  
 
Some election equipment has arrived in Bethel and will now be stored in temperature 
controlled environments. The remaining equipment should arrive in July. 
 
The first of two election trainings will be in the afternoon of July 25. 
 
Although the Office received no response in the attempt of finding Inupiaq speakers, to 
remain in compliance with the Voting Rights Act of 1965 the City may still be required to 
provide Inupiaq Language Assistance at the polls in October. 
 
Other Projects 
Working with administration on documents and processes for the vehicle disposal at the 
dump.  
 

Organizing the processes and documents related to the Community Action Grant. 
 

Cemetery management -this summer the office will establish a mapping of the Ridgecrest 
Cemetery which is long overdue. The City didn’t being requiring permits for the cemetery 
until 2002 and even then wasn’t strictly enforced. This has left much of the cemetery 

152

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


2 of 2 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  

907-543-1384 

 

without records. Within the coming month, the office will be going to the Cemetery to 
document and map the graves.  
 
2020 Census    
The Office hopes to be able to coordinate with Administration and the Planning 
Department to conduct an update to the census records related to geocoded residential 
and group quarter addresses. On July 17, the City Clerk met with Liz Brooks and Eddie 
Hunsinger with the Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development to go over 
Local Update of Census Address (LUCA), and what they hope the City will be able to work 
on in the coming months. We are now in the learning stage but hope that we can 
collaboratively ensure our local information is accurate.  
 
Liquor License Application 
The Office received notice from the Alcohol Beverage Control Board of a Package Store 
License from Swanson’s Liquor Store.  

 

153

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


 Election 
Calendar
Regular Election October 3, 2017

DECLARATION OF CANDIDACY PACKETS ARE AVAILABLEJULY 28

AUGUST 4 

Elections Office 

300 State Highway 

P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, AK 99559 

(907) 543-1384 

cityclerk@cityofbethel.net 

Contact Info

SEPTEMBER 3

SEPTEMBER 22

DECLARATION OF CANDIDACY FILING DEADLINE 

CANDIDATE NAME CHANGE AND AND WITHDRAW

AUGUST 21 

12 :00P

DECLARATION OF CANDIDACY FILING PERIOD OPENS

AUGUST 22 FILING PERIOD OPENS FOR WRITE IN CANDIDATES 

Packet submission shall be made in person or by mail, directly to the City 

Clerk's Office Monday - Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Fax and 

email submissions will not be accepted.

DEADLINE TO REGISTER TO VOTE OR UPDATE VOTER INFO

JANUARY 1 ABSENTEE BY-MAIL  BALLOT APPLICATIONS ARE EXCEPTED 

Forms are available online or at the City Clerk's Office

Forms are available online or at the City Clerk's Office

SEPTEMBER 18  ABSENTEE IN-PERSON AND SPECIAL  NEEDS VOTING OPENS

The City Clerk's Office will be open from 8:00 a..m. - 4:00 p.m. Monday 

through Friday. 

ABSENTEE BY-MAIL  BALLOTS ARE MAILED

DEADLINE TO SUBMIT ABSENTEE BY-MAIL  BALLOT APPLICATION

OCTOBER 2 LAST DAY TO VOTE ABSENTEE IN PERSON/SPECIAL  NEEDS

OCTOBER 3 ELECTION DAY

Polls are open from 8:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m. 

Precinct 1: LKSD District Office,  1004 Ron Edwards Memorial Drive 

Precinct 2: Cultural Center, 401 Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway 

OCTOBER 6 CANVASS BOARD MEETING 

The Canvass Board will review the precinct records, count absentee 

ballots, questioned ballots and special needs ballots. 

Printable from the City's website or pick up printed copies at the City Clerk's Office

Packet submissions shall be made in person or by mail directly to the City Clerk's Office 

Monday - Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00. Fax and email submissions will not be accepted. 

OCTOBER 10 COUNCIL'S CERTIFICATION OF THE ELECTION 
154



 

 
 

Executive Session   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

155



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

156


	All in one Packet Cover Letters.pdf
	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report
	Executive Session


	Action Memorandum Number Assigned by the City Clerk: 17-44
	Date action introduced: June 23, 2017
	Introduced by: City Manager Williams
	Date action taken: June 23, 2017
	Confirmed by the City Clerk: 
	DepartmentIndividualRow1: Bo Foley, IT Director
	RemarksRow1: Reviewed & Approved
	DepartmentIndividualRow2: Jim Chevigny, Finance Director
	RemarksRow2: RFP Issued
	DepartmentIndividualRow3: Patty Burley, City Attorney
	RemarksRow3: Contract Reviewed & Approved
	DepartmentIndividualRow4: Peter Williams, City Manager
	RemarksRow4: Reviewed, Approve to Sponsor
	DepartmentIndividualRow5: 
	RemarksRow5: 
	Amount of fiscal impactRow1: 
	Account informationNo fiscal impact: 
	Amount of fiscal impactRow2: $124,097
	Account informationFunds are budgeted for: 10-55
	Amount of fiscal impactRow3: 
	Account informationFunds are not budgeted Budget modification is required: 
	Action Memo Number Assigned by the City Clerk: 
	List any attachments: Copy of RFP, copy of proposed contract
	Action Title: Authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and potentially enter into Agreements with Arctic IT for System Maintenance and IT support.
	Action Summary: In early May a Request for Proposals was released by the City seeking proposals from qualified individuals or firms able to provide the City with remote technical support services.  The proposal was open for 30 days.  During that time no protests or questions were received.  The proposal was advertised on the City's website, in the Anchorage Daily News and in local trade sites. On the proposal deadline, June 12, only one proposal was received.  To date no other proposals were submitted.  The proposal was reviewed to ensure it fully complied with the RFP requirements - it did. Because there was only one proposal and because it fully met the requirements of the RFP, it was not scored.  A Conditional Notice of Intent to Award was issued on June 13. Following discussions, it was noted the City was already doing business with the successful proposer: this company already provides remote technical support for two of the City's servers.  Because of this, rather than having a third contract with the 
	Check Box7: Yes
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Yes
	Check Box10: Yes
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off


